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Cover Image Crystal Palace transmitter tower London

Height 219m

First broadcast 1956

Connecting ¢ 13m people to Dwptai Terrestnal Television FM AM and Digital Radio senaces
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Highlights

Arqiva, a leading UK communications infrastructure company enabling a vibrant digital economy
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Key steps in execution of Argiva's strategy include

»  Strengthening Arqiva’s position as the UK's leading independent tower provider by increasing the Group's site portfolio,

»  Establishing Argiva as the predominant UK provider of indoor Distnbuted Antenna Systems ('DAS'}) and small cells
by leveraging Arqiva street infrastructure and exclusive concessions i pnme locations,

» Continued development of the UK's DTT platform capacity and capabilities, supporting long-term use of the sub
B684MHz spectrum following 700MHz clearance,

»  Further extension of DAB coverage in the UK, sirengthemng DAB as the platform for the fulure as plans progress for
an eventual Analogue Radio swiichover,

»  Dnve new radio revenues across multiplexes and increase capacity utilisation, including that of the new second
National DAB multiplex,

»  Bulding value i the loT business by leveraging Argiva's two key networks Flaxnet for smart meters (gas, electneity
and water) and SIGFOX for Low Power Wide Area solutions,

» I(mproving the operafional efficiency and increasing capacity utihsation within the Satellite and Media business,
and continued expansion of media management capability including video-on-demand, streaming, metadata
management and ofher over-the-top serviges,

» Continuing group-wide focus on efficiencies and cost base optmisation, and

* Mantaining the robustness of Arqva’s capitat structure through the active management of its debt maturity profile,
utihsation of faciities and maintenance of an investment grade credit rating

Arqiva Group Liruted Anhual repont and consolidated financial statements

Year ended 30 June 2016
1



Highlights

Arqiva enjoyed a year of record revenues and earnings
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Operating profit

2016 E£271 1m, 2015 £248 6m, 2014. £274 6m

see page 23 for a reconciliation
to EBITDA

Free cash flow
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Operating cash flow
2016 £374 5m, 2015 £379 4m; 2014 £341 2m
see page 24 for a reconciiation
to free cash flow

Qrder book
£6 1bn

Terrestrial Broadcast
£4.1bn

Telecoms & M2M
£1 7bn

Satellite & Media
£0 3bn

Operating highlights

»

Strong revenue growth in Telecoms & M2M of 6 1%,
and in Terrestnal Broadcast of 4 6%,

Full capacity utlisation of the Digital Terrestnal
Telewsion ("OTT") platform,

Roliing out national igitai Audio Broadcasting
{'DAB’) coverage beyond 97% of the UK papulation,

Supporting launch of Freeview Play for BBC, [TV
and Channel 4,

Completion of circa 3,250 4G site upgrades for
mobile network operators since roll-out began in
2014,

Rollout of the smart energy metering contract now
exceeds the 80% network coverage milestone with
the Group beginning to earn recurring revenues,
Completing the build phase of the Thames Water
smart metenng network, with the supply of 60,000
meters,

Argva Group Limited

Operating segment revenue
£m

Terrestrial Broadeast
£4224m

Telecoms & M2M
£316 3m

Satellite & Media
£146 Om

»  Delivenng more than £25m gross cost savings on
an annualised basis through efficiency gains and
headcount reductions, and

»  Closure of the Group’s defined benefit pension

scheme to future accrual
Major contract wins include

» Enternng into contract with Ofcom, major
broadcasters and multiplex operaters to deliver the
clearance of 700MHz spectrum,

Numerous renewals and additons to our DVB-T
multiplexes (Freeview DTT Platforms), including
Sony, UK TV and QVC, and

Selected by Al Jazeera Media Network to provide its
global teleport and sateilile distnbution seniices cver
a long-term agreement

Since the fingncial year end, Argiva has also won a muly-
year contract with Anghan Water to deliver a tnal smart
water metening netwark of 7,500 meters

Annugl repart and consolidated financial statements
Year ended 30 June 2016
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Chairman’s statement

Following my first full year at Argiva, | am delighted

to report that the Group has recorded its highest

ever revenue and earnings Much of this growth has
corne from recurring, contracted revenues which has
translated into growth 1n our earnings and free cash flow

“With a year of record revenues and
eamings we are seeing the positive
impact of the Group's operational

delivery of its substantal orderbook”

Arqiva owns a [eading portfolio of broadcast and
telecoms towers mnfrastructure Maximising the
utiisation of capacity for existing and alternative uses
will bring us further growth In ine with our strategic
prionty of growing a finanoally successful business,
we continue to invest 1n our core broadcast and
telecoms nfrastructure markets to support and sustain
growth, whilst intensifying our efforts to operate these
businesses more efficiently

Our capital structure 1s long term, with an average
debt matunty profile of circa 7 years, and 1s investment
grade, being rated at BBB by both Fitch and Standard
and Poor’s

We delivered sigmficant operational efficiences and
achieved key milestones on major projects We
continue 1o invest in our people and our infrastructiure
in order to deliver growth in shareholder returns

The Group’s trading performance has continued to
strengthen, recording our highest ever revenues
of £884 7m, EBITDA of £424 4m and free cash
flow of £226 6m Much of this growth was dernved
from recurnng contracled revenues, showing an
improvement in the quahty of our earnings

Arqiva Group Lirmited

Strategic planning

“‘Our strategic planning process gives us
a clear view of our core markets where
we will focus investment ”

The successes that we have achieved this year have
been dnven by a combination of hard work, identifying
market opportunities to ulilise our core tower network,
and ensunng that the operationai side of the business
i5 the night s1ze and shape for the activities that we are
undertaking The fact that our savings have exceeded
our imhial targets at this stage puts the busingss in a
strong posttion going into the next financial year

Last year the Group announced that it had undertaken
a review of its operating model, working with externaf
consuitants to benchmark its cost base and review the
profitability of its service offering We set ourselves
the target of achieving operating cost savings cver the
course of this financia! year by re-focusing investment
into larger scale growth opportunities and exiting non-
core businesses, improving the end-to-end alignment
of the business, increasing efficiency and nght-sizing
central functions, and closing the defined benefit
pension scheme to future accrual

1 am pleased to report that we have achieved operating
efficlencies however we wili continue to look for
improvements and efficiencies to drive further savings

Change n our Chief Financial Qfficer

In Apni we announced that Phit Moses was [eaving Arqiva
in June, with Lillana Solomen appointed as his successor

On behalf of the Board | would ike to express our sincere
thanks to Phil for his valued contnbution to Argiva, in
particuiar through s £3bn refinancing in 2013 This
coupled with the operating review activities over the last
18 months leaves the Group in a strong position for the
comiIng years

We welcome Lihana to Argiva She brings significant
expenence to the business having worked in the
Telecoms industry for more than 20 years

Annual report and consoldatad financial statements
Year ended 30 June 2016
3



Chairman’s statement

Market outlook

“The services we provide will
continue to be in demand, and

we will continue to invest to deliver
meaningful earnings growth *

Bntain's decision to leave the European Union has
created an uncertain environment, particularly for those
businesses which trade extenswely with the Continent
Argiva’s assets, operations and markets, by confrast,
are predorminantly in the UK, and the business s
driven from this country We have minimal exposure
to mternational markets and foreign exchange We
expect that the services we provide will continue to be
in demand, people will continue to watch tefevision,
hsten to radio and use mobile devices Looking ahead,
the Group's contracted orderbook value at 30 June
2016 was £6 1bn pnmanly with blue chip, UK based,
customers

Looking ahead, Arqiva wili continue to generate

further operating savings whilst pursuing our strategic

objective to grow a financially successful business that
delivers increasing returns in the form of earmings and
cperating cash

Arqva Group Limited

We will continue to invest capital aver the coning
years and the Board remains focused on investing in
areas which detiver meaningful earnings growth and
operating cash returns

We continue to work with the key stakeholders in our
industries, including government and regulatory bodies,
to maintain our excellent relationships and ensure that
Argiva remains an achive participant in shaping key
decisions, and influencing trends in our markets

Fnally, on behalf of the Board, | would hke to thank our
employees across the business for therr dedication and
hard work, which has been central to our continued
growth and success

O vAS—

Mike Parton
Chairrman
September 2016

Annual report and consolidated financial statements
Year ended 30 June 2016
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Chief Executive’s statement

“We have made strong progress over
the past year and have a robust platform
to build on in the coming years"

Hawing joined the Group last August, | am pleased to
be wnting to you for the first tme in our annual report
as Chief Executive

| jomed Arqiva because of my passion for the
communmecations seclor, an appreciation of the role the
Group plays in the provision of eritical infrastructure
across the UK, and a conwiction that it 1s well placed
to make the most of opportunities as they anse Qur
industry 1$ going through a penod of change which wili
require us to be focused, agile and efficient and | have
no doubt that we will nse to the challenge

“Given the depth of our expertise

and the breadth of our products and
services, we are well placed to help our
customers respond to market changes
white at the same time benefitting
ourselves ’

Market environment

Over the course of my career, working across a number
of technology related sectors, including telecoms,
smant-metening, broadcast and more recently the
‘Internet of Things', | have witnessed many false dawns
in the area of ‘convergence’ During the last couple of
years however, convergence has clearly arrved with
full force

Arqiva Group Limited

Boundanes between broadcast, media and telecoms
are blurnng fast, and the Cloud, IP, ubiquous fibre,
super-fast broadband and the arnval of software
defined networks will accelerate the pace of change
For our customers and for Arqiva this change will
bring nsk and opportunity, especially in the face of
Government policy and regulatory environments that
are constantly evolving

We have therefore refined the emphasis of our
business so that we

» Focus our investment 1n the nght opportunities
and projects, such as small cells ta support 4G and
future 5G growth, delivering us long-term, profitable
growth, and delvering these as quickly as possible,

» Improve our efficiency and effectiveness to lower
our cost base, and

»  Algn the way we work to better reflect market
developments, enhancing customer focus and to
strengthen our ability to deliver complex projects

All of this 1s aimed at building a sustainable business
and enhancing shareholder value creation

Financial resuits

We've certainly made strong progress over the last year,
with growth in revenue and earnings performance and
growth in free cash flows resulting from lower capital
expenditure and reduced operating costs Qur resuits *
provide a robust platform to build on in the coming years
ahead as we

» move into the operational phases on our smart
meternng contracts and continue to see the benefits
from the Group's operating review on our earnings
and cash fiows,

» benefit from the reduction in demands for capital
investment on our major programmes, generating
meaningful cash returns for our shareholders, and

» Continue to dehver cost savings from operational
efficiency and procurement savings

Part of our growth came from our Telecoms & machine-
to-machine (‘M2M') business where we increased
revenues by 6 1% through a combination of 4G netwark
upgrades, smart metering network revenue and the
associated sales of smart water meters

Annual report and consolidated financial statements
Year ended 30 June 2016
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Chief Executive’s statement

We also expenenced revenue growth in our Terrestnal
Broadcast business of 4 6% dnven from uphfts in
recurnng contract revenues from our DTT customer
base, together with the commencement of project
revenues from the 700MHz clearance programme

Satellite and Media revenues and eamings have begun
to stabilise following service terminations of customers
within our Distnbution Platforms business where

there was hitle long-term value creation, together with
planned Wholesale Space segment terminations within
a number of Managed Networks contracts

Operational delivery

The Group has continued to deliver across a number

of large-scale projects which utilise our tower
infrastructure, mcluding smart energy metenng Our
network infrastructure has now reached the 80%
coverage milestone (for our contract region) and the
first communications hub orders have been received
with detivery planned for this financial year Additronaily
we have made sigmificant progress with our smart water
metenng network, for which over 60,000 water meters
have been supphed

DAB roll-out for the BBC has been progressing with UK
coverage now above 95% and we have also achieved
the rollout of a second national commercial DAB
service which went hve in March 2016

Foflowing the Government's decision not to extend
Mobile infrastructure Project beyond March 20186, the
Culture Secretary announced that the project would
deliver over 50 masts We are pleased te have been
able to surpass lhis target, dehvenng 75 masts in that
timeframe, providing coverage to over 7,000 premises

Argiva Group Limited

Key contract wins and market developments

Following a number of contract wins (Inctuding Sony,
UKTV and QVC) all 30 streams on our DTT platform
are fully utihsed giving an indication of the on-going
attractiveness of the platform t¢ broadcasters

The ncreased demand for mobile data continues to
dnive growth opporturties for our Telecoms & M2M
business We've expenenced a substantial increase in
activities relating to the upgrade of our sites for the roll-
out of 4G services, including supporting EE to deploy
its Emergency Services Network, and the depioyment
of small cells and in-bullding systems which provide 4G
coverage in dense urban areas

tMachine-to-machmne connectaaty continues to be an
expanding market, capturing a host of innovative 1deas
for products and services Arqiva has positioned itself at
the heart of this evolving market, roling out networks to
10 major UK cities as well as the development of smart
energy and water metenng networks We continue to
engage with prospective customers and showcase the
potential the technology has demonstrated in tnals

Outlook

| am excited about Arqiva’s future and how we can
benefit from opportuniies as markets develop | am
confident that with the plans set out and with the
support of our people, we will continue to dehver our
objectives and grow as a business

Simon Beresford-Wylie
Chief Executive Cfficer
September 2016

Annua! repart and consolidated financial statements
Year ended 30 June 2016
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Business overview

QrQIvo

The UK’s leading independent telecom tower operator and sole UK terrestnial
broadcast tower network

Argiva is a leading UK commumeations infrastructure company operating at the heart of a vibrant digttal economy

The Group is an Independent provider of telecom towers, with circa 8,000 active ceflular sites, and the only
national provider of terrestnal television and radio broadcasting Argiva has invested circa £800 milhon in the past
5 years allowing if to develop its communications infrastructure and technology Arqiva is irusted, independent and
reliable

Arqiva earns network access and transmission service revenues from its customers, as well as fees for
engineenng services and new projecis Argiva's senvices tend to be mission-cntical for sts customers, most of
whom rely on the Group to impiement new technologies and projects centrai to thew growth strategies as weli as
to provide the network coverage necessary for the fulfilment of the universal service obligations (US0s') set out in
their operating licences from the UK government

Pioneers In an always-on, always-connected world

Attractive UK » Explosive data traffic growth, proliferahen of mobile devices and 4G
roll-out dnving coverage requirements and demand for telecoms towers

communications and small cefls, and

infrastructure market »  DTT s the most popular TV platform in the UK reaching 24 million homes

and coverng 98 5% of the UK population

As a market leader Arqiva has the following key competitive positons

P The largest independent provider of telecom towers with ¢ 8,000

A market leader active cetlular stes,
» Sole provider of terrestnal television network access (Freeview), and

» Pre-emunent role in radio broadcasting both locally and nationally

Arqva owns the enbcal national UK infrastructure that enables Moblle Network
Qperators and Pubiic Service Broadcasters to meet ther Government
mandated umversal coverage obligations

High barners
The Group's unique site locahons and national footpnnt play a crucal role in
to entry supporting these coverage obligations

Significant investment would be required to replicate the infrastructure,
ncluding UK planning permissions to erect new masts Argiva also has long
established reiatonships with its customers spanning more than 80 years

Argiva Group Limited Annual report and consolidated {financial statements
Year ended 30 June 2016
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Business overview

Given the exponential growth of connected devices from smartphones and tablets to connected TVs and smart
meters, as well as the development of the 10T market, there 1s an ever increasing demand for data communication
it 1s essentai that businesses and consumers have access to seamless, uninterrupted commurications and
broadcaslt quality content anywhere and at any time

The Group's technology and infrastructure enable 1t to work with everyone from mobife network operators, such as
BT-EE, Vodafone, 02 and Three to mdependent radio groups and major braadcasters, such as the BBC, 1TV, Sky,
Tumer or CANAL+ to utihty companies such as Thames Water Arqiva’s hislory can be traced back to 1822 when

it broadcast the world's first national radio service In 1836, 1t carmed the BBC's first tetewision broadcast n 1978,

it enabled Europe’s first satellite TV test By the 1990s, Arqiva was working with the UK's mobile operators to bnng
mobile telecommunications to UK businesses and cansumers And in the 2000s, ¢ launched the UK's national DAB
radiz and digital terrestnal television networks

Behind the scenes, central to millions of wital connechons

Every day Argiva’s infrastructure and technology enable millions of people and machines 1o connect wherever they
are through TV, radio, mobile, WiFi and machme-te-machme {including the Internet of Thungs) Arqiva's TV and radio
services reach some of the most isolated mdividuals and communities in the UK, helping to bridge the digital divide
The Group strives to continuously find ingemous and smarer ways to support our customers

Argiva provides digital and satelite services and distabution for international chents in Europe, the U S | the Far East
and Australia, including Turner, Canal+ and the Al Jazeera Network

Investing to ensure that the UK has the commumications infrastructure it needs to thnve in an increasingly
connected world.

‘Every day Arqiva’s infrastructure and
technology enable mithons of people
and machines to connect”

Arqiea Group Limitad Annyal repont and consolidated financia) statements
Year ended 30 June 2016
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Business model

Argiva owns and operates a porifoho of celiular sites, TV and radio fransmission sites supporting broadcast

and commurmcations across the UK More recently, the Group has nvested in machine-to-machine network
connectivity utilising 1ts networks, which wilt support energy and water metening for more than 12 muliion premises
in the UK when fully operational Arqiva (s also a leader in satellite services with teleports that access more than
40 satelites This adds up o a sizeable portfolio, with in excess of £1 7bn'* of infrastructure assets

Argiva invests in its infrastructure to mamtan its rehabiity, but also to maximise its potential, with the Group
offenng a wide range of service capabilites including

» Broadcast transmission from our towers,

» Telecommunications sites,

» Fibre cable connections,

» DTT and satetlite multiplexes,

» Sateilite transmission/play-out,

» Machine-to-machine netwaork connectivity, and

» Small cells, n-bullding services and WiFt connectivity

For the year ended 30 June 2016, Argiva's business was aligned inio the following customer-facing business units,
supported by the Group’s corporate functions

Terrestnial Broadcast - owns a farge portfolio of transmission sites for the transmission of TV and
radio, operates the Group's licensed multiplexes, and delivers related engieenng projects Revenues
are denved from the utiisation of the Group's transmission sites, provision of transmission services, and
charges for spectrum utiisation The Group has also begun to earn revenues on the programme to clear
the 700MHz frequency range for use of mobile data

Within the Terrestrial Broadcast division, the Group utihises ts network of circa 1,150 TV towers to camy
Freeview into around 24 million households every day, making 1t the UK's most popular TV platform
Argiva's network 15 of significant national strategic importance providing coverage to 88 5% of the UK's
populatien

Argqiva is a market leader in commercial DTT spectrum, owning the licences for two of the three main
natenal commereal DTT multiplexes, enabling leading broadcasters such as UKTV, Sky, CBS and
Turner to deliver broadcasting content using aur charnel capacily Arqiva also owns both HD-enabled
DTT muttiplex ficenses that provide services to Fregview and other DTT-related platforms including
Youview In addition, the business unit operates more than 1,520 transmussion sites for radio, providing
coverage to 90% of the UK populahon Argiva I1s a shareholder and operator for both commercial
national DAB radio multiplexes and 1t 1s the service provider for the BBC national DAB radio multiplex
Broadcasting contnbutes significant and stable cash flows to the Group with a long-term contracted,
substanbially RP)-inked, order book of £4 1bn which runs as far as 2034

\ Telecoms & M2M - owns a large portfolio of active cellular sites and generates revenues from site

.\ share arrangements as well as installation services for the roll out of 4G data capabiihes and other
site and equipment upgrades This business unit also generates revenues with respect to the build
and operahon of the smart ‘machine-to-machine’ networks and other data transmission services
tncluding in-burding, small cefls, WiFt and M2M

The Telecoms & M2M division 1s the UK's largest independent provider of wireless towers, with
circa 8,000 active cellular sites It works with major blue-chip customers including BT-EE, Vodafone,
Telefonica 02 and Three UK through the MBNL and CTIL network shanng agreements, from which

! The camying value of these assets measwred on an amerised cost basis

Argiva Group Limited Annual repont and consoldated financia) statements
‘Year ended 30 June 2016
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Business model

Arqiva eams site share revenues and delivers equipment upgrades for the roll-out of 4G and future
mobile services such as 5G These towers are central to Mobile Network Operators’ contractual
obhgations to provide up to 98% 4G coverage by 2017

Arguva 15 3 neutral host provider of indoor and outdoor DAS with 45 in-building systems installed in
UX locations such as Canary Whaif and Excel London 1115 also a leading prowider of outdoor small
cells infrastructure, with exclusive access to street infrastructure in major UK ciies including London,
Birmingham and Manchester Telecoms has continued to be an area of revenue growth for the Group,
with an order book in excess of £1 7bn running as far as 2024

With 2 focus on innovation, Arqiva 1s embracing one of the world's fastest developing sectors - M2M - for
which Arqiva ublises its Flexnet network (for smart metenng - gas, electnoity and water) and SIGFOX
(for Low Power Wide Area solutions) The Group has mnvested in bulding M2M networks, which include
a major energy metenng contract spanming 15 years and covenng maore than 9 millon premises and a
water metenng contract which will cover 3 milion homes in an intal phase of 6 years, with scope for

an addiional 10 years Arqwa has Invested substantially in \nfrastructure as a result of these contracts,
which will result in recuming cash flows dunng the long-term operational phases of the networks

Salellite and Media - owns and operates teleporis at key locations in the UK, as well as an
international terrestnal fibre network, media facilities and leased satellite capacity These enable

' the business to provide customers with a comprehensive range of services to deliver their data,
" broadcasts and media services internationally
. J’ The Satelhte and Media dvision 15 the UK's leading independent owner and operator of teleports
and media management facilities serving many of the werld's largest muiti-channel broadcasters and

sports-nghts organisations, as well as providing data connectivity to the utiiies, defence and natural
resources sectors

Arqiva manages the distnbution of more than 1,100 internationa! TV channels inclyding coverage

of high profile sporiing events, and prowdes playout services for more thap 100 channels for high
profile customers including Al Jazeera, Discovery, BT Sport, Sky, NBCU, Rignet, Sony and Turner
Argiva's operation of reliable and secure VSAT (Vary Small Aperture Terminal) communications
networks across the globe uthises a world class satelite and fibre network, providing real-time cntical
communications to remote locations, including ol and gas exploration Arqiva uses its expertise and
expenence to enable it to keep pace with rapidly changing dynamics and technology advancements,
thereby underpinning the longewity and success of the Satelite and Media business Examples of this
include the use of IP technology 1o provide video-on-demand services on a pan-European basis, and
also developing the metadata layer befund Freeview Play

Corporate funi:tions comprise Finance, Lega! & Regulatory, Information Technology and

Connectivity, Procurement and Human Resources.

Arqiva Group Limited Annual report and consolidated financial statements
Year entded 30 June 2016
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Business model

Following a review of the Group's operating model in 2015, management dentified operational efficiencies from

the integration of the former Digital Platforms business unit with the Freeview mutiplex business, which was
subseguently incorporated into Terrestnal Broadcast The Connected Solutions and Hybnd TV businesses were
combined with the Satellite and Media business unit In addition, the Group's former Technotogy division was de-
centrahsed into the customer-facing business units to provide better end-to-end alignment This change was effective
as of 1 July 2015

In addition, management merged the former Smart Metenng M2M business unit and the Telecoms business umit
Into a single dwision The purpose of this was to deliver synergies, with both businesses offering sofutions to an
increasingly shared customer base, and the acknowledgement that cloud, IP and software defined networks are
accelerating the convergence of commumications and connected device technologies Management also oversaw
the integration of Strategy and Business Development into the customer facing business units This move hefps to
ensure that the Group's strategy 1s firmly grounded in its capability to deliver and that ts marketing 15 aligned with
sales actvity and customer requirements These changes took effect on 1 October 2015

Arqiva’s key strength 1s the asset base thal it has built with strategic investments and the subsequent mnovalion
applied to convert these investments into recurnng, and importantly, growing free cash flows The Group has

an ynnvalled site portfolio and the capability to dehver a broad range of services, and therefore holds a strong
competitive position across markets, which generally have high barners to entry High barners to entry include
planning permission requirements and significant capital expenditure 1o rephicate our networks, ownership of key
spectrum licenses, and tong-term contracts delivenng stable fulure operating cash flows

“Argiva’s key strength 1s the asset base

that it has buiit with strategic investments
and the subsequent Innovaton appled to
convert these investments into recurmng,
and importantly, growing free cash flows”

Arqva Group Limited Annual report and consohdated financial statements
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Strategic overview

Arqiva’s strategy 1s to reinforce its position as the leading UK communications
Infrastructure company, whilst supporting the development of a vibrant digital economy

The Group's strategy is summansed by the following strategic pnonties

1

Grow a financially successful business, feveraging our existing mfrastructure assets and customer
relationships with seilective invesiment to maximise vaiue by secunng long-term scalable growth cpportunities

Simplfy and standardise our technology, platforms and processes to optimise costs, improve efficiency
and drive supenor returns

Help Argiva’s customers prosper and succeed by delivenng supencr services in the most cost efficient way

Be a great place to work by continnuing to invest in our people build the Group's knowledge and grow its
expertise, fed by a dynamic new semior management team with a clear viston and proven execution track record

Our vision s the statement of our ambition for the future to be central to every wvital connection that people make,
every day

QOur core values guide how we work together and work with our customers

>

»

We lock for ingenious ways to support our customers, embracing change and fresh thinking to find solutions
that add real value,

We work with each other and our customers in a straightforward way to ensure that we are always effective
and understood, we keep things simple and clear and act with ntegnity, and

We bning expertise and passion to collaborative working to provide a cohesive service 1o our customers

Key steps in the execution of the Group's sirategy nclude

[ 4

| ]

Strengthening Argiva’s position as the UK's leading independent tower provider by ncreasing the site portfolio,

Become the predominant UK provider of indoor DAS and small cells by leveraging Argiva street infrastructure
and exclusive concessions 1n pnime locations,

Continued support of the DTT platform capacity and capabilities, supporting long-term use of the sub 694MHz
spectrum following 700MHz clearance,

Continuing to increase DAB coverage and strengthen DAB as the platform for the future, and plan for an
eventual Analogue Radio switchover,

Drive new radio revenues across mulhiplexes and increase capacity utiisation, including the new second
National DAB multiplex,

Building value in the loT business by leveraging Arqiva’s two key networks Flexnet for smart meters (gas,
electnaity and water) and SIGFOX for Low Power Wide Area solutions,

Improvement of operational efficiency and ncreasing capacity utiisation with the Satelhite and Media business,
and continued expansion of media management capabitity including video-on-demand, streaming, metadata
management and other over-the-top services,

Continuing group-wide focus on efficiences and cost base optimisation, and

Maintaining the robustness of Argiva’s capital structure through managing the Group's debt matunty profile,
utiksation of facithes and maintenance of an investment grade credit rating

Arqiva Group Linited Annual report and consohdated financial statements

Year ended 30 June 2018
14



,.,.T, i e “‘\--""’\ A
1‘. j’- '-\

“Arqiva’s strategy is to reinforce
its position as the leading UK
communications infrastructure
> company, whilst supporting the -
development of a vibrant dlgltal

-

_economy.

dated fingncis stltam-nts
Year ended 30 June 20 1§
. | 1




Business update

Business developments

Coniracted orderbook update

The Group’s contracted orderbook value at 30 June 2016 was £6 1bn In the year the Group added £0 5bn of
contracts to its orderbook A significant proportion of the value of this orderboak relates to medium to long-term
contracts which includes DTT and radio transmission, site shanng and smart metenng (energy and water), as well
as sateliite and ather infrastructure services The Group remains focused on growth opportunities m targeted, core
infrastructure areas

Continuous improvement

Dunng the year the Group has been in the process of embedding continuous improvement and on-going efficiency
witiatives into its organisational culture The Group made strong progress in achieving operational savings by
reducing headcounl, overheads and suppher costs through a range of mitiatives, including

»  Streamlining the organisation structure by reducing from five distinct business units to only three, achueving
immediate efficiencies,

» Reorganmising internal teams n a more efficient manner,
» Dnving process improvements, system developments, systems upgrades and a change in revenue mix,
» Downsizing corporate functions, and

# Generating cost savings with third party services through the renegotration with supphers, reduced usage and
consohdation of services

The Group's focus in the new fiscal year will be on efficient delivery of high quality senvices to all customers,
successfully completing key projects, targeted investment in selected areas of growth, and improved discipline in the
deployment of capital resources to grow earnings and cash flows

Terrestnal Broadcast

DTT Multiplex utihisation

As at 30 June 2016, all 30 streams on Argiva's two mamn DVB-T Multiplexes were fully utdised following new
contract wins including Sony, UKTV and QVC High Multiplex utthsation and a strong penod of sales with high
quahty customers give an indication of the on-going attractiveness to broadcasters of the Freeview DTT platform
Addhonally the Group has benefifted from the full year impact to revenue following the uplfts in the contract renewal
pnices of all ‘founder’ streams, agreed in the pnor year

700 MHz clearance and DTT spectrum

The DTT platform currently uses spectrum in the 470-790 MHz bands Plans are being implemented by Ofcom and
industry stakeholders to clear 700MHz (694 MHz to 790 MHz)} so that the spectrum can be auctioned for use by

the mobile network providers This 1s a change that will be adopted across Europe, Afnca, Middle East and central
Asia A wde range of activities are underway to plan for the move in frequencies, including determining changes to
the frequencies used, planning for infrastructure changes and work requirements and agreemng a rollout plan Argiva
continues to gear up for the programme dehvery phase and has commenced revenue recognition and biiling

The Group has entered into a contract with the mayor broadcasters and Ofcom and has agreed the commercial terms
refating to the programme Arqiva wili be respansibie for the infrastructure changes, spectrum pianmng, programme
management, network design, service contimurity, asset replacement, suppon to consumers where appropnate, and
retuning broadcast transmitters to enable broadcasters to move into a lower frequency Arqiva will generate cash flows
from the programme over the penad, 2016 to 2022

Arqwva Group Limited Annual report and consolidated financial statements
Year ended 30 June 2016
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Business update

Digital racho (DAB) reliout

The Group has been progressing with the delivery of the DAB rollout programme for the BBC, and upgrades to

the analogue radio network as part of the contract The build out of the BBC National DAB network continues and
as at 30 June 2016, Argiva had 152 new transmitters on air Increasing the UK DAB network caverage beyond 97%
of the population The rollout programme is expected to complete later this calendar year

The Group has also been progressing with the delivery of Commercial local DAB The programme 1s part of

an initiative to meet the local DAB coverage threshold of 90% as set by the UK Government in 2010 The 80%
thresheld is part of three overall cnteria to judge when a process to set a date for a full nathonal digital radio
switchover can be established This contract requires Arqiva to deliver new transmitters or upgrades at 220 sites
and as at 30 June 2016, work had been completed at 141 sites, achieving 85% coverage with the project due o
be completed on schedule later thus calendar year

Following the award of the second national DAB licence in March 2015 to Sound Digital {(a consortium which includes
Arqiva (40%)), construction by the Group of the transmission network was completed ahead of schedule The
network was officially launched by the UK's Secrelary of State for Culture, Media and Sport at an event in London on
1 March 2016 The new service carmes 18 commercoial radio stations utilising 88% of the available capacity A further
service IS expected to launch before the end of the calendar year utthsing the remaining spare capacity

Launch of Freeview Play

in October 2015, the Freeview brand {aunched its connected TV service, Freeview Pilay Freeview Play combines
DTT channels with catch-up TV from the BBC, iTV, Channel 4 and Channel 5, on-demand services and live
television, making a wide range of content available to a mass market This service will give viewers even

more choice In how they access TV programmes on a free-to-air platform The service is free from subscription
and works with all existing broadband services Freeview Play 1s available on new set-top boxes currently
manufactured by Humax and on Panasonic's new TVs

Freeview's DTT service is the biggest TV platform in the UK and 1s present in around 24 milhon homes Arqiva
has been fully committed to developing and modernising the platform and was responsibie for building part of the
technical solution for Freeview Play

Telecoms & M2M

Drsposal of WiFr business to Virgin Media

in September 2018, the Group reached an agreement for the sale of ts WiF1 business to Virgin Media The sale
inciudes venue WiF;, wholesale WiFi, roaming and media advertising The Group remains focused on growing iis
small cells, in-building and outdoor sclutions business areas Within the agreement with Virgin Media, Arqiva has
signed an exclusive partnership to provide indoor solutions to Virgin Media's WiF1 customers and to Virgin Media
Business customers The two businesses also signed a long-term agreement to continue to deploy public WiF)
services In Arqiva’s numerous street concessions The Group believes that Virgin Media i1s a strong match for our
customers, given its extensive expenence of the WiF1 market and that these new agreements will enable both Virgin
Media and Argiva to leverage therr respective strengths to deliver innovative and compelling solutions to customers
As part of the sale the Group expects to transfer circa 120 employees, subject to the consultation process

4G rofl-out

The four main Mobile Network Operators {{MNOs’) continue to increase their 4G network capability In turn, Arqiva
1 being contracted to carry out a large volume of antenna and feeder upgrade projects for its customers, resulting
In a significant increase in Installation Services revenues The Group had completed circa 3,250 4G upgrades
across Argiva-managed sites up to 30 June 2016 and a further circa 5,000 upgrades have been requested by the
MNGCs over the next 2-3 years

Argiva Group Limited Annusl report and consolidated financial statemenis
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Business update

Smari energy metenng rollout progress

Arqiva is bullding a smart metenng communication network as part of a 15-year confract signed in September 2013 with
the Data and Cemmumnications Company {the ‘DCC’, a body hicensed by statute and backed by the utiity companies)

The Group is i the Systems Integraton Testing phase as part of preparations to go live duning 2016, with end to
end testing and user training underway Service transition activities are in progress and resources are in place to
support the commencement of operational services The Arqiva network 1S now communicating end to end with the
DCC solution, successfully transmitiing and receiving service user requests through to meters

The rollout of the network now exceeds the 80% required by the time the DCC service 1s operationally live later

in 2016 and Arqiva has achieved all contractual milestones required to date The Group 1s therefore now earning
recurnng revenues under the contract, relating to bolh network avallability charges and set-up charges In addition
to this, heads of terms for new change requests were also agreed in the quarter which will further increase the
scope of the overall contract and orderbook value

Smart water metenng roil out — Thames Water

tn March 2015, Arqiva signed a contract with Thames Water for the provision of smart metening fixed network
infrastructure and associated water meters that enable the collection, management and transfer of metenng data
The contract s for an mitiat six year term that 1s extendable up to a total of sixteen years The service 1s expected
to cover 3 milion homes once fully deployed

The Group has completed two major programme implementation phases, compnising 17 contractuat milestones
and the service 1s ive Arqiva has achieved all milestones to date as per the agreed timeline and supphed more
than 60,000 meters

Smart water metenng tnal contract win — Anglhtan Water

In July 2016, Arqiva won a contract with Anghan Water for the delivery and monitonng of a smart water metering
fixed network tnal to facilitate the deployment and operation of 7,500 new meters This is a four year contract and
ts part of Anghan Water's plans for a long-term smart metenng programme The first phase of network build 1s
underway and the tnal 1s due to ge live In December 2016

Nationwide Buiiding Soctely WiFt roliout completed

In March 2015, the Group won a 5 year contract to provide WiF1 services to Nattonwide Building Society that would
cover both public and enterprise WiF1 (1 e customer and business use) In March 2016 the Group announced

the successful completion of the WiF1 service installation for the bullding society’s high street branch network of
around 700 branches, 16 admirustration centres and two data centres in the UK

Mobile Infrastructure Project update

The Mobile Infrastructure Project was a stralegic programme funded by the Gavernment with the uluimate goal of
providing a service to areas without any mobie coverage services (‘not-spots”’)

Following the Government's decision to end the project by March 2016, the Cullure Secretary publicly stated

that the project would deliver more than 50 masts This build phase of the project compieted in March 2016 and,
exceeding the staled target, 75 masts were bult  Many sites are already providing coverage and the latest 4G
services to local communiies The MNOs are now working to bring the remaining sites on-airr - When all sites

are on-air the 75 masts will provide coverage to more than 7,000 premises  With build responsibiliies now
substantially complete, Argiva 1s supervising the concluding MNQ activittes and performance tests to complete the
Mobile Infrastructure Project

Arqiva Greup Limited Annual report and consolidated financial statements
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Satellite and Media

Satelite and Media contract wins

In March 2016, Arqiva was selected by Al Jazeera Media Network (AJMN') to provide its global teleport and sateliite
distnbution services Qver the course of a long-term agreement, the Group will distnbute AJMN's flagship news
channels Al Jazeera Arabic and Al Jazeera English to popular global networks The new agreement will allow Al
Jazeera to offer its international audience a better viewing expenence as the bit rate and video quality wiil increase
Viewers will also be able to enjoy the improved network resiience thanks to the use of dual and tnplicate redundancy
on key components of the core fibre, satefite and teleport design The cantract gives the Group the opportunity to
showcase is capabilities m the Middle East region and expand its customer base

In June 2016, the Group was selected by Panasonic Avionics Corporation t¢ provide its hosting, connectivity and
teleport uplink services via Telesat's new high throughput satellite (HTS') The muiti-year contract wili see us deliver a
range of mohdity services for Panasonic, including mitight WiF1, which will operate round the clack from our Chalfont
Grove teleport site near London Signals are extended to the Panasonic Network over our managed core network

Subsequent 1o the year end, but as at the date of this report, Argiva have announced a partnership with multi-platform
media company Red Bull Media House to distnbute live video sports content to international broadcasters As part of
the muiti-year partnership the Group will be responsible for distnbuting the content, and delivering it globally through
its UK teleports to the nghts takers

Longer-term deveiopments

Intemnet of Things - Telecoms & M2M

In January 2018, Arqiva and Vision360 were [ointly selected as providers to one of two NHS England loT innavation
Test Beds The Test Bed will help people iving with dementia or frailty remain in therr own homes for longer with the
aid of network-enabled sensors, wearable technology, moniters and other devices to monitor their health at home
Arqiva and Vision36Q are working to deliver a national standards-based assistive care loT platform, which combines
Vision360's health and assistive care technology and Arqiva’s loT network

in March 20186, the Group announced a new partnership with machine-to-machine solutions provider Wireless
Logic The partnershup will see Wireless Logic become Arqiva’s first UK reseller of low power, wide area connectivity,
representing another step in the Group's joumey of growing the {oT business

These deals give Arqiva the cpportunity to showcase how its loT network can compiement other technologies and give
access to technology to those currently excluded The Group continues to run proof of concept tnals with a number of
other potential customers

Small cells opportunities and in-building solutions — Telecoms & M2M

Arqiva has been developing its outdoor Small Ceils proposition using low power base stations to provide street
level network capacity to MNOs, particularly in dense urban areas The Group is currently completing trals with
two MNOs in Hammersmith & Futham In addiion, Arqiva has now secured s first commercial orders from an
MNO Assessment and planning activity for these have commenced and the Group expects the deployment to
occur later in 2016

In January 2016, the Group deployed in-builiding solutions for Canary Wharf Group's retail centres at Canada
Place, Crossral Place, and Jubilee Place in Canary Wharf, London The in-bulding systems provide 4G coverage
that complement the existing 2G and 3G coverage at those locations Arqiva deployed a future-proof solution
which is designed to ensure a mobile signal 1s available when underground, in large bulldings, or where there 1s
heavy footfall Commuters and shoppers will be able to recetve 4G in the retail centres via their senvice providers
The technology will allow all MNOs to prowide therr molile services through one set of transnussion equipment

Other business developments

Change mn Chief Financial Officer

In Apnl 2016, Arqiva announced that its CFO, Phil Moses, was 1o leave the company at the end of June 2016
Liiana Solomon was appointed as his successor and joined ihe Argiva Senior Executive Management in June
Argiva Group Limited Annual report and consolidated financial statements
Year ended 30 June 2016
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2018 to ensure a smooth handover

Lihana brings extensive expenence in the telecoms industry, having held CEQ and CFO roles for Vodafone in
Europe, CFO for Cable & Wireless in UK, Europe, Asia and US, and CFO for T Mobile in the UK In addition to having
accountabilty for Argiva’s financial management and operations, Likana will also lead the procurement function

Closure of defined benefit pension scheme

Foilowing an extensive consultation penod and further discussions with BECTU, an agreement was reached
n January 2016 which closed the defined benefit pension scheme (o future accruals on 31 January 2016 and
transferred members to the existing defined contnbution scheme from that date

Acquisiions and disposals

As part of the Group's review of its operating model, management identified three non-core areas of the business
with fewer operational synergies and lower margns

* In July 2015, the Group disposed of its Satellite News Gathenng ('SNG') assets

» In October 2015, the Group signed a centract for the sale to telent, a lelecommunications contractor, of
its Secure Solutions assets and contracts which had been dentified as non-core business The sale was
completed in December 2015

» Also in December 2015 the Group sold the payphone business acquired in 2012 as part of the Spectrum
Interactive business, disposing of its 100% interest in the ordinary share capial of NWP Street Limited (a
subsidiary undertaking) to Clear Channet

Total consideration for these disposais was circa £20m

Financial reporting developments

Change in Company name

On 22nd June 2016 the Company filed a Nolice of Change of Name by Resolution with Companies House to change
its name from Argiva Broadcast Holdings Limited to Arqiva Group Lirited  This 1s the first annual report and financial
statements to be prepared under the name Arqiva Group Limited

Financial Reporiing Framework

The financial reporting framewcrk which now applies to entities prepanng financial statements in accordance

with legislation, regulation or accounting standards apphcable in the UK and the Republic of Ireland 1s FRS 100,
Application of Financial Reporting Requirements, which was 1ssued in November 2012 These standards are
mandatory for statutory financial statements for accounting pencds beginning on or after 1 January 2015 Pursuant
to the intreduction of these new standards, we have adopted IFRS for the Group's consohdated financial statements
and FRS 101 for single entity financial statements and we have alected for a transition date of 1 July 2013, and
present financ@al information for the three years to 30 June 2016

Argqiva Group Limited Annual report and consolidaied financial statements
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Financial review

Headline financials

Revenue Operating profit EBITDA

43.2%to $9.1% to $1.4%to

£884.7m £271.1m £424.4m

Loss before tax Operating cash flow Free cash flow

* 11.7% to * 1.3% to T 22.8% to

£(249.6)m £374.5m £226.6m

For the year ended 30 June 2016, revenue for the Group was £884 7m, an increase
of 3 2% from £857 1m in the prior year

There was growth n Terrestnal Broadcast (2016 £422 dm, 2015 £404 Om) pnmanly as a result of an increase I
recuming revenues from the Group’s DTT multiplexes (2016 £168 3m, 2015 £152 Zm) This was as a result of
greater utiisation of the DTT multiplex capacity following a number of new contract wins and renewals, as well as the
Group benefiting from the full-year impact of the uphfts in the contract renewal prices of ‘founder’ streams, agreed m
the prior year Additional growth has been denved from radio revenues, resulting from the DAB radio roll out, and an
increase in activiies relating to the 700MHz Clearance Programme following the completion of the mihal capability
study phase

Wwithin Telecoms & M2M there was also significant revenue growth (2016 £316 3m, 2015 £288 1m), particularly
within the Site Share business (2016 £249 7m, 2015 £232 7mj dnven by ncreased, low margin, installation
services activity relating to the MNOs' current 4G network rollout and site upgrades Additonally there was
growth within M2M (2016 £33 2m, 2015 £18 0m) n relation to smart water metenng contract revenues (for
which circa 60,000 meters have been supplred) and an uplift from new recurring revenues i relation to network
avallability for the DCC smart energy metenng contract This growth was partially offset by the non-recurrence of
certain one-off DCC smart energy metering milestone revenues and Site Share project revenues recorded in the
prior year, and revenues relating to the Secure Solutions contracts, the majonty of which were sold to telent, a
telecommunications contractor, in December 2015
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Within Satelhle and Media there was a 5 7% decrease in revenue (2016 £146 Om, 2015 £155 Om) Foliowing
some managed customer terminations in the Oistnbution Platforms business and Wholesale Space segment
terminabions within a number of Managed Networks contracts in the pror year, revenues have begun o stablise
Additional focus on capacity uthsation and management of the cost base has imited the impact on EBITDA

Grass profit was £540 Sm, representing a 1 7% decrease from £550 5mn the pnor year Cost of sales increased
at a higher rate than revenue principally due to an increase in the level of third party costs and internal resource
empioyed, pnmanty in our Telecoms business, and afso due to a siuft in the sales mix with milestone based project
revenues in the prior penod being replaced by an increase i Installation Services revenues and M2M meter sales
which both carry a lower gross margin

Other operating expenses before exceptional dems were £116 7m, representing an 11 8% decrease from £132 3m
in the prior year The reduction was principally achieved by savings denved from the operating cost base review
and the increase in the tevel of internal resource employed on cost of sales activities

The Group recogmised £13 6m of exceptional cperating expenses in the year This was primanly due 1o
reorgamnsation costs ansing from the operating review

Operating profit for the year was £271 1m, an ncrease of 9 1% from £248 6min the prior year The increase was
due to the reduction in other operating expenses and an impairment recorded 1n the pnor year (2015 £38 9mj,
partially offset by higher depreciatton and amortisation charges as a result of capital expenditure and assets being
brought into use

EBITDA? for the Group was £424 4m, representing a 1 4% increase from £418 7m in the prior year owing
to a small reduction in gross profit that was more than offset by the sawvings denved from the operating cost
base review

Reconciliation between operating profit and EBITDA Year ended Year ended Year ended
30 June 216 3¢ June 2015 30 June 2014

£m £m Em

Qperating profit 2711 248 6 2746
Exceptional operating expenses 136 7 83
Depreciation of property piant and equiprnent 129 4 134 114 2
impairment of non-current assets B 389 -
Arnorlisation of intangible assets 104 80 s
Otherd © 1) 09 oo
EBITOA ' E 4244 4187 4066

Fmance costs (net of finance income) were £535 Om, an increase of 7 7% from £486 6m in the pnor year The
increase was pnmarily as a result of the compounding effect of accrued (non-cash) interest on shareholder loan
notes Additional finance costs were aiso incurred as a result of the drawings on the Group’s facities

The Group reported £14 3m of other gains in the year ended 30 June 2016 (2015 £34 6m losses) This inciudes

a £7 9m fair value loss on interest rate swaps, inflation-inked terest rate swaps and swap options, a £45 9m farr
value gamn on cross currency swaps offsetting a £38 1m loss in relation to foreign exchange movements on foreign
denominated debt instrumenis, and a £14 4m exceptonai gain on disposal of a non-core subsidiary The cross-
currency swaps provide an econonuc hedge to the Group's USS denominated debt

? £BITDA 15 definett as earmnings before Ineres! tax depreaiation and amorusaton and adotionaity bafore the Group s share of resufts of and ot profil o foss
on disoosal of property plant and equipment non-nterest finance casls and excepbonal operating expenses EBITOA represents a measure of the Group's oparational petformante

I Includes snare of results of and Joint w other intome profl or 10ss on disposal of non-turrent 8s5ets and Aon-njerest finance cosis
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Financial review

Loss before tax was £249 8m, representing an 11 7% reduchion from £282 6m 0 the pror year due to the reasons
set out above The loss before tax for the year was reported after non-cash charges of £450 Om

Non-cash charges/{gains) Year ended Year ended Year ended
30 June 2016 A0 Jung 2015 30 June 2014

Em £Em £m

Depreciation 129 4 1134 114 2
Amortisation 104 80 105
Exceptional impawrment - 389 -
Share of results of associates and joint ventures o1 24) (12)
Accrued interest on shareholder loan notes 2785 244 8 2152
Other non-cash finance costs* n7 52 47 2
Foreign exchange on financing 381 175 {24 1)

Fair value movements on denvative financial instruments {38 0) 181 482

Total e 450.0 4735 410.0

Other nan-cash finance ¢osts mclude amortisation of debt 1ssue costs amounts tncluded in the ces! of qualifying assels unwanding of e discount on provisions and
imputed interast

Cash flow

Net cash inflow from operating activities was £374 5m representing a decrease of 1 3% from £E379 4m in the prior
year The addiiionai EBITDA generated in the year was offset by tming differences impacting working capital

The Group's net cash outflow on capital expenditure and financial Investment was £164 3m, compared to
£194 9m in the prior year (a decrease of 15 7%) The decrease was prmanly as a resuit of the phasing of capitai
expenditure on major capital programmes as well as proceeds generated from the disposal of non-current assets

The Group generated £226 6m of free cash flow for the year representing an increase of 22 7% from the pror year
(2015 £184 7m)

Reconcihation between net cash inflow from Year ended Year ended Year ended
operating activities and free cash flow 30 June 2016 30 June 2015 30 June 2014

£m £m £m
Net cash inflow from operating activities 3745 3794 341 2
Purchase of tangible and intangible assets (170 0) {195 4) (154 O)
Sale of tangible assets 57 05 81
Purchase of subsichary undertakings {net of cash acquired) - - {3 8)
Disposal of subsidary undertakings (net of cash disposed) 16 4 - -
Free cash flow ’ 2268 . 184.5 _ 191.5
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Financial review

Financing

In February 2013, the Group completed its refinancing raising funds from both bank facilities and bond markets
of some £2 Sbn in fotal In 2014, the Group refinanced a further tranche of medium-term bank faciities (£532 5m)
replacing them with new long-term debt instruments (£534 0m) In July 2014, a further £300 Om of the remaining
5-year faciity was repaid following a new 15-year US Prnivate Placement debt issue (within Arqiva PP Financing
Ple, a subsidiary financing vehicle) which raised £300 Om Following this repayment, only £353 5m of the onginal
£1 Bbn 3 and 5 year bank debt borrowed n February 2013 remains

At 30 June 2016 the Group’s financing (gross of 1ssue costs) compnsed

Year ended Year ended Year ended
ﬁnanma:“::;et:r:)elr:lz 30June 2016 30 June 2015 30 June 2014
£m £m £m
Shareholder financing*
Shareholder equity {(share capital and share premium) 27 968 5 968 5 969 5
Shareholder loan notes 23 1,273 6 12738 1,273 8
Total shareholder financing 2,243 1 2,24312 2,243 3
Bank loans
Senor term debt 23 7235 7235 10235
Other loans
Semor bonds notes and pnvate ptacements ** 23 1,643 5 1,604 7 1,287 4
Total senior*** debt 2,367 0 23282 23109
Junigr bonds 23 6600 600 0 600 0
Total jurior*** debt 2,967 0 2,9282 2,9109
Facihities drawn down 23 1259 1207 g5
Finance lease obligations 23 i34 138 14 0

Represents finance prowided by ihe shareholders of AGL (see page 41)

* Inctudes LSS denominatec debt revalued at the balance sheet date {see note 23} This 18 hedged wia cross-cumency Swaps (see nate 25)

=-Seruor lavel debt refers o the Group s financing up to and including the consoldated Arqiva Group Parent Lunited ( AGPL) group whitst junior level debt refers 1o
the Group s financing up to andincluging the consolidated Arqiva Broadeast Parant Limsied { ABPL ) group

Arqiva Group Limited Annual report and consolidated financia! statements
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Financial review

The Group holds interest rate swaps (nominal value £1,023 2m) and inflation-linked swaps (nominal value of
£1,312 5m) in order to hedge its interest rate and inflation exposure The Group maintains a hedging policy to
manage interest rate nsk and to ensure the certainty of future interest cash flows Argiva's interest rate swaps
convert variable rate debt interest costs 1o fixed rate debt interest costs The inflation swaps convert fixed interest
costs to RPi-inked costs, which fluctiuate in Iine with the RP1 index, as do a significant propertion of the Group’s
revenue contracts As a result of the July 2014 debt 1ssue, £300 Om of interest rate swaps were broken {(incurring
break costs of £100 5m) and replaced with new swaps (generating a premium of £100 Sm) in order to match the
matunty profile of the replacement debt Further details of the fransactions entered into dunng the year, their basis
and strategy for use 1s detailed in note 25 to the consoidated financial statements

Arqwva’'s financing has certain financial covenants attached, pnncipally an interest cover ratio and a debt leverage
ratio which are tested bi-annually in December and June The Group's property, plant and equipment and other
assetls have been pledged as secunity under the terms of the Group's external debt facilibes (see note 30}

The Group's senior bonds are currently rated as BBB by both Fiich and Standard & Poor’s

The Group continues to comply with all financial covenant requirements including the following histonc covenant
ratio requirements

30 June 2016 30 June 2015 30 June 2014
Covenant ratios - senior debt lavel
Maximum allowed ratio of net debt to EBITDA 750 750 750
Actual ratio of net debt to EBITDA 575 574 577
Mirimum allowed ratio of EBITDA ta interest 155 155 155
Actual ratio of EBITDA to mterest 23 235 227
Covenant ratios - junior debt level
Maximum allowed raho of net debt to EBITDA 850 850 850
Actual ratio of net debt to EBITOA 708 710 713
Mirmmum allowed ratio of EBITDA to interest 150 150 150
Actual ratio of EBITDA to interest 175 176 170

Matunty profile of gross debt
The matunty profile of gross debt excluding shareholder financing 1s as follows

800 Senior bonds,
700 notes and pnvate
. placements

500 ]

400 [ Senior term debt
300 .

200 1 D

100 T i Junior bond

o _mmm... Pl

<2 years 24 years 5-9 years 10+ years
Semgr bonds notes and pavata placements include Instruments that have an amorising repaymean profile and therefore span a number of matunly perods above
Argiva Group Limited Annual report and consohidated financial statements

Year ended 30 June 2016
26



Financial review

Included within the <2 year category is the Group's 5-year term loan facility (borrowed by Argiva Senior Finance
Limited, a group undertaking) which matures in February 2018, and within the 2-4 year categery s the junior bond
(issued by Argiva Broadcast Finance Plc, a group undertaking) which matures in March 2020

The Group lasi undertook a significant re-financing exercise in February 2013 and since then has continued to
re-finance elements of its debt structure further extending its matunty profile

As a result of these activiies in recent years, the weighted average Iife of gross debt has evolved as follows

Date ~ Weighted: average fife of gross debt

February 2013 6 2 years

June 2013 & g years

June 2014 7 5 years

June 2015 7 4 years

June 2016 6 8 years
Liguidity

To ensure it has sufficent available funds for working capital requirements and planned growth, the Group
maintains cash reserves and access to undrawn commitied facilities to cover forecast requirements The Group
carefully manages the credit nsk on liquid funds and denvative financial instruments with balances currently spread
across a range of major financial institutions, which have satisfactory credit ratings assigned by internatonal credit
rating agencies The levels of credit nisk are monitored through the Group’s on-going risk management processes,
which include a regular review of counterparty credit ratings Risk in this area 1s hmited further by setting a
maximum level and term for deposits with any single counterparty

As at 30 June 2018, the Group has a £400 Om capital expenditure facility against which it has drawn £120 0m
(2015 £120 0m), and £5 Om drawn against £100 Om working caputal faciittes, which cover short term cash flow
timing differences as required In addiion, the Group has £200 Om of iquidity facilities available to cover senior
interest payments and a £28 5m cash reserve to cover one junior interest payment if required

In order to support the Group's smart metenng contract, in the prior year, we established two further faciities
In Argiva Smart Financing Lirmited (*ASFL), a Group company that sits outside the main Whole Business
Secuntisation (‘WBS') financing Group The Comms Hub Receivables Purchasing facility allows the Group to
borrow up to £30 Om and the Fee Facilty allows the Group to borrow up to £1 6m

Further detalls of the Group’s debt faciities are given in note 23 to the financial statemenis

Going concern

This report includes information on the structure of the business, our business environment, financial review for the
year and details of the principal nsks and uncertainties facing the Group Notes 21, 23 and 25 of the consohdated
financial statements include information on the Group's cash, borrowings and denvatives, and financial nsk
management information presented within this report

The directors have considered the Group's profit and cash flow forecasts alongside the Group’s current funding
requirements and facihires available to the Group to ensure it can continue for the foreseeable fuiure The directors
continue to be confident that the Group will have adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future and consequently adopt a going concern basis in preparing the consolidated financial statements
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Key performance indicators

The Group uses a mixture of financial and non-financial key performance indicators ('KPls') to measure progress
aganst our strategic pnonties

Strategic prionties (see page 14)

» Growing a financially successful business {financial success),

» Simplfication and standardisation of our approach to efficiency {(dnving increasing returnsy,
» Helping our customers prosper and succeed (our customers), and

» Beng a great place to work (our people)

Financial success and driving increasing returns...

Revenue
i

Defimtion and basts of calculation - Revenue 1s net of value added tax
and 1s reviewed in accordance with amounts presented as turnover in our
financial statements

Revenue growth 1s calculated by measuring current and priar year revenue,
excluding matenal revenue from businesses acquired or disposed of in
those penods

i ] Result - 2016 saw the Group achigve its highest ever reported revenue

T ' and growth of 3% from the pror year This includes higher revenues from
785 835 885 the DTT platform (an uplift In revenues from founder contracts and higher
Em capacity utlisation) as well as recurring revenues from the smart metenng

3 2011 3 2012 =3 2013 contracts Additionally, due to surging demand for mobile data, Arqiva has
B 201+ B 205 EEA 2016 seen growth i revenue from installation services as MNOs seek network
upgrades for 4G capability

EBITDA Defimition and basis of calculation - EBITDA 1s an important measure for

the Group reftecting the level of business profitability and cost efficiency —
see page 23 for its defimtion and reconciliatien back to operating profit

Result - A 5-year annualised growth rate of 4 1% has been achieved 2013
saw a high EBITDA due to high one off project revenues The Group has
achieved revenue growth and has continued to review its operating model to
balance cost efficiency with delvery

320 370 420

BN 2011 I3 2012 =1 2013
BB 2014 JA 2015 [ 2016

Free cash flow Defimition and basis of calculation - Free cash flow represents the cash

generated after spending the mongy required to maintain or expand its asset
base This Is calculated as net cash flow frem operations minus the net cash
flow from capital expenditure and financial invesiment (which includes inflows
or outfiows in relation to the acquisition or disposal of assets or iInvestments)
- see page 24 for its definition and recanciliation back to net cash flow from
operating actvities

Result - A 5-year annualised growth rate of 13 3% has been achieved The
growth 1n revenue and EBITDA has not directly correlated to the growth in
300 free cash flow due to the timing of capital nvestment required on the Group's

major capital programmes This expenddure 1s anticipated to continue to
B3 2011 £ 20012 £33 2013 reduce as the major programmes move Into an operatonal phase

12004« R 2005 W 2016
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Key performance indicators

Our customers...

Own TV Network availability

Combined
Network

Availability

Multiplex
Availability

Definition and basis of calculation - Arqiva strives to provide consistently
high service levels and look to manage and monmitor the total annual level of

2014

99 99% 99 99% network avallability across both TV and radio infrastructure as a percentage
2016 9999%% 99 99% across all muttiplexes
2016 99 99% 99 99%

Result - Through careful management Arqwva has consistently been able to
achieve excellent levels of network avallability

Delivery on our customer promises

Defimtion and basis of calculation - When Arqiva undertakes significant engineenng projects, such as network
deployment, performance 1s measured on dehvery against the key contractual milestones

Result - The Group has continued to meet it contractual milestones on time and at the required quality and continues to
engage with all contract stakeholders to meet future milestones This includes

» Completion of the Pre-integration Testing (‘PIT") on the smart energy meternng contract, and

» Completion of all system build and implementation milestones on the smart water metering contract with Thames
Water, with the project now In its operational phase

The programme to increase UK DAB network coverage expenenced minor delays versus its contractual milestones,
however the Group has continued to engage with the programme stakeholders and a remedhal plan has been
established leading to 152 of the 163 sites having been completed by the end of the financial year

Our people...

Investors in people award

Investors in people

201213 Stiver Defirition and basis of calculation - The Group takes part in the ‘Investors
2013.14 Gold n People’ accreditation for which more than 16,000 UK businesses take part
2014-15 Gold

Result - The Group s currently undertaking the 2015-16 assessment with

results to be announced later in 2016, however the Group has maintained

its Gold award through 2013-14 and 2014-15 Less than 4% of participants
achieve Gold Standard

Arqiva Group Limited
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Spotlight: Terrestrial Broadcast

N/ ~
c.1,150 ) ¢.1,520 = 4
TV transmssion sites il radio transmission sites - DTT multiplex icenses
in the UK

Services delivered

The Terrestnal Broadcast business unit provides transnussion services and Our customers include

infrastructure for all terrestnal TV broadcasters and more than 90% of the UK's radio .

transmission, including ownership interests in the two commercial national digital E’B tbv sky
radio multiplexes Included within this business unit 1s the Group’s DTT mulbplex

business, which owns and operates two of the three main national commercial

digital terrestnal TV multiplexes, plus two DVB-T2 multiplexes (capable of providing @
additional services including HD content) sobel r ?54
The Group's radio and TV broadcast operations (network access and managed

transmission) are regulated by Ofcom on behalf of the wholesale broadcast
customers None of the Group's other business units are regulated

Business unit snapshot

Revenue EBITDA Headcount
£m £m (FTEs) |
H
i |
| !
! o .
i © i <t
< Y-
| b ! o
L - - S - o J— 1 — e —
2014 2015 2016 2014 2015 2016 2014 2015 2016

Growth in underying revenues 1s principally derwved from founder contract renewals on the Group's DTT multiplexes being
uplifted to market prices, together with new channel launches resulting in higher capacity utiisation, which has in turn flowed
through to EBITDA Addiionally, there have been higher revenues (following additional investment} from radio transrmission as
a result of the progress made on the roll out of DAB radio as part of the BBC New Radio Agreement and the award of a second
national DAB licence to our jaint venture, Sound Digital Limited Investment in headcount has been sustained to support the
increase n activittes in relation to the 700MHz clearance programime, leading to cash flows that are expected to continue over
the next six years

Market snapshot

The Group has remained at the forefront of new developments in UK broadcasting In March 2015, Arqiva was partof a
successful consortium bid to operate the second DAB multiplex for the UK as the digial radio market expands As part of the
‘New Radio Agreement’ signed in 2013 the Group has continued to increase DAB coverage to strengthen DAB as a platform for
the future, ahead of the potential switch over from analogue radio

Following the decision at the World Radio Conference to clear the 700MHz spectrum range for use by the mobile network
providers, Arqiva has entered into contract with the major broadcasters and Ofcom and has agreed the commercial terms to

its involvement in this significant engineerng programme  Argiva will be responsible for the infrastructure changes, spectrum
planning, programme management, network design, service continuity, asset replacement, and retuming broadcast ransmitters

The DTT platform remains the most popular telewision platform in the UK with a presence n mere than 80% of households
With the 800MHz and 700MHz spectrum range now committed to mobile data services, Arqiva worked to ensure that a decisien
was reached about the future use of the remaining DTT spectrum Arqiva worked with Broadcast Networks Europe, the industry
body representing the owners and operators of broadcast infrastructure, to lobby at a European leve! as well as working with
representatives from Asia, the Amencas, Africa, the Middle East and the Russian Commonwealth The result was the protection
of the future use of DTT specirum This, combined with the recent renewal of the BBC charter, provides some long-term
certainty for the continuation of terrestnal broadcast services

Additional infc regarding b unit developments is on page 18
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D§ Spotlight: Telecoms & M2M

c.8,000 J%—':TE 45 2 >12million

active sites E In-building systems m Premises to be covered

by our smart networks

Services delivered
Argiva's physical infrastructure gives maobile operators access to circa 8,000 active
sites This business unit icences space on our towers, In-building systems and
street furniture to national MNOs and other wireless network operators to enable 8 O
fT
2 BRITISH Al

Our customers include

-ﬂ

complete mobsle communications networks (‘site-share’) Arqiva I1s also working with AWAYS

major mobile prowides such as BT-EE, Vodafone, Telefonica 02 and Three UK to
upgrade networks to support 4G and future mobile services such as 5G

Argiva 15 a UK host provider of indoor and outdoor Distnbuted Antenna Systems (‘DAS') @ 1% gﬂwﬁNCHESTER
with 45 in-building systems installed in locations such as Canary Wharf and Execl Premics i

London, and is a provider of outdoor small cells infrastrcture with exclusive access to

sireet infrastructure 1n major UK obes including London, Bimingham and Manchester Heathroww mm \9

PO LS

vodafone
Utilising the Group's towers, Argiva 1s building machine-to-machine networks as part

of long-term contracts to provide a smart energy metering network for approximately
9 3 millon premises in Scotland and the north of England, and a smart water metenng
network for customers in the south of England Addinonally, the Telecoms & M2M
business unit manages the Group's WiFi infrastructure business which is one of the
UK's largest access point prowiders and the largest UK aiport hotspot provider

Business unit snapshot

Revenue EBITDA Headcount
£m : £m {FTEs)

|
|
|

|
|
L

2014 2015 2016 2014 2016 2016 2014 2015 2016

There was growth In site-share revenues driven pnmanly by the increase in actvities supperting the roll-out of 4G network upgrades
and site upgrades These revenues offset the one-off milestone project revenues recewved in the pnor year (and the Secure Solutiens
contract revenues disposed of to telent in December), however they carry a [ower gross margm and as a result negatively impacted
EBITDA year-on-year Additionally there was revenue growth from the smart water metenng contract and an uplft in recumng
revenues in relation to the smart energy network WiF: products also expenenced funther growth including service fee revenues

In order to support demand for the rofi-out of 4G upgrades, and the build phases of smart networks, the Group has invested in its
personnel and therefore the majonty of the additional investment in headcount has been retained in accordance with the scheduling of
these volumes

Market snapshot

The Group 15 the UK's largest independent provider of towers which are central to MNOs' contractual obligatons te provide nauenal
coverage Revenue from the Group's tower portfolio 1s secured by contracts with all of the large UK mabile operators Planning
restnchons and inbial capital expenditure requirements create high barners to entry The release of 4G spectrum in 2013 fer use in
the mobile market is also drwving an increase in demand with continued growth (n data demand leading to oppertumities for in-building
solutions and small cells Additional spectrum will be reteased in the future following the 700MHz clearance programme

Argiva continues to work closely with the MNOs as they seek to reduce their costs and adopt the latest technology The Group
15 a key supplier in this market, with contracts with all the UK MNOs Argiva aims to ensure (t1s at the heart of the mobile
operators’ network upgrade activity Growth in smariphones and mobie enabled devices along with faster download speeds has
led to a significant increase in the demand for mobile data services

The MNO markel 1s highly competitive with a recent trend of MNQOs seeking to develop a ‘quad-play’ service offenng {1 e
mobile, landling, television and broadband) This has prompted recent merger and acquisiion activity with BT Group reaching
an agreement in February 2016 to acquire EE Whilst Hutchison Group announced a proposed deal to acquire O2 in the UK to
combine with its Three mobile group, it 1s no longer proceeding having been biocked by the EU competihon watchdeg in May

Additional infermation regarding business umt devetopmentis is on page 17
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@ Spotlight: Satellite and Media

AT
“' 80 earth stations '-\\‘ 5 5”-—‘-\‘ We deliver via satellite
& l accessing 40+ satellites ‘ teleports ) to 5 continents 2417
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Services delivered

The Satellte and Media business unit provides a range of services to transmit Our customers include

and play-out content around the globe It holds five award winning teleports which .

represent a significant barner to entry in the market Arqiva provides customers with Fox Eﬁi‘ﬁ R?QN ot
up-linking and down-linking services to offer a satelite and fibre distnbution network e

to distnibute our customers' data and programming, including ¢ 50% of all channels

on the Sky platform Its media management services include the play-out of content, . @Q‘ML nscovery @
watermarking and advert placement, and connected TV services (including video on ToRmme R
demand, streaming, metadata management and and other over-the-top services)

Additionally, It can offer secure and rehable satellite data communications to remote Vviacom Mhe‘m‘"@
and hostile locations These customisable end-to-end soluttons are cumrently Gas Merworks
provided to energy companies and defence organisations

Y LTor)

Business unil snapshot

Revenue EBITDA Headcount
£m £rn {FTEs)

[ e e

146.0

2014 2015 2016 2014 2015 2016

2015 2016

The decline in revenue has now stabilised following the managed exit from the low margin Wholesale Satellite Space market (within
the Managed Networks business) and the termination of services with customers with mited long term potential within the Distnibution
Platforms business Additional focus on capacity utisaton and management of the cost base has limited the impact on EBITDA

Despite operating in a compeltive market, the business has had some significant contract wins in the year as well as being
selected by Al Jazeera Media Network to provide its global teleport and satellite distnibution services

Market snapshot

In TV broadcasting the market has seen a dnve in demand for HD services Since the launch of the Sky+ HD box nine years
ago, there are around nine million n operation today* HD services are seen as business cntical, with big shows attracting the
largest audience shares and therefore commanding the largest advertising revenues In the past year Angiva helped launch
more than 20 new channels on the Sky platform, adding two more Eutelsat transponders to the Group’s fleet this year, and the
continued demand means there may be opportunities to add a further HD platform in the new year

In recent years there has been growth in the number of different platforms, including the nse of over-the-top services and Internet
Protocol delivered content The broadeast market has, however, seen convergence in these technologies through, for example,
Smart TVs and set-top boxes prowiding the end-user with a seamless expenence regardless of the delivery method As a result of
the review of the operating model camed out duning prior the year, Hybnd TV activites have moved in to the Satelite and Media
business unit For satelite the amatgamation of these additional services provides longewvity to satellite distnbution which is often
thought of as more ‘traditional television’ The 2016 launch of Sky's new ‘Q box’ presents such an exciing development, combining
the tradittonal viewing expenence of television sets with the streaming potential of tablets or laptops

Adddional infermation regarding business unit developments is on page 19
*Per wiw freswewuk netfsky_tv php
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Corporate responsibility

Argiva is guided by its values to go the extra mile to help its customers reach therr
customers and audiences Arqiva endeavours to conduct ts business in a way that
benefits its customers, supphers, employees, shareholders and the communities

in which it operates Three values are at the heart of the organisation They were
developed by the Group’s employees and therefore they are truly ‘owned’ by its peaple

ingenious
Finding ingenious and smarter ways to support our customers

Straightforward
Talking and acting in a clear and straightforward way to make sure we're always
effective and understood

Collaborative
Bringing expertise and passion to collaborate as one team and go that extra mile

Arqwva never underestimates the contribution its people make to its business and its customers’ businesses That's
why the values guiding how 1ts people work were defined by its employees Values ‘champions’ from across the
company led workshops with their colleagues to ensure everyone had the opportunity to contribute to the decision-
making process

The Group believes it has a role to play in shaping its dynamic industry It actively engages with government, trade
associations and other industry players as it knows that to keep its customers connected it must continually work
to :denitfy and develop the ideas that will enable society's wireless digital future

Environment

The Group 1s committed to complying with all apphcable environmental legislation and annually assesses the
environmental impact of s activities, products and senices and aims to reduce any negative impacts through
active environment management The Group operates an environmental management system which s accredrted
to the mternabonal standards 15014001 and 18050001, the latter being the voluntary International Standard for
*Energy Management Systems”

Energy consumption i1s a key area of interest for the Group given it is a significant consumer of electneity Argiva
has launched a new energy policy which reflects the company's commitments to improving energy efficiency by

» Reducing energy consumption,
» Investing in energy efficient technelogy, and
» Monitoring carbon emissions

One of Arqiva's business aims is to reduce carbon emissions and energy costs whilst complying with energy
tegrisiation The Group 1s always looking at new and mnovative ways of driving down its carbon footprint
Responsible management of energy has a key role 1n mimimising enwironmental impacls and 15 embedded within
Arqiva Addiionally it inveshgates how emerging technologies and ingenious ways of working can help it and its
customers become more environmentally fnendly As new techneologies emerge and legacy equipment 1s replaced
Argiva looks for the most environmentally-fnendly ways to dispose of redundant hardware
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Corporate responsibility

The Argiva energy policy 1Is commitied to ensunng it meets and, where possible, exceeds the requirements of
apphcable legislation, policies and other commitments to which it subscnbes All employees are encouraged to
participate in the energy reduction aims of the company, and the Arqiva Semor Executive Management suppoert the
energy policy, as well as promoting and maintaiming & high profile for carban and energy 1ssues within the orgamsation

Argiva has achieved year on year energy consumption reductions and continues its efforis to make further
reductions The business looks for ways to reduce energy consumption, and as at June 2016, a 0 5% reduction
had been achieved against prior year

Health and safety

The Group is committed to complying with applicable health and safety legislation, and to continual improvement
in achieving a high standard of health, safety and welfare i its operations and for all those in the organisation and
others who may be affected by its actvities The Group operates a safaty management system that 1s accredited
to the internationa! standard OHSAS18001 The Directors regularly review health and safety reports in relation to
the Group’s activittes, employees and contractors

Information security

Due to the cntical importance of Arqiva's siteés and systems to the Argiva Group, its customers and, 1n some cases,
as part of the Criical Natonal Infrastructure, the Group takes information secunty very senously

In 2014, Argiva became the first company in the combined Broadcast and Telecoms industry to achieve ISC27001
certfication for all platforms and services (end to end) for all of its UK locations This allows Arqiva to caompete for
new business which requires 158027001 accreditation and it can confidently demonstrate its securty-conscious
culture and compliance with this internationally recognised standard There are two physical secunty audits and
two internal secunity audits conducted every month in order to maintain the certification and since certification,
Arqiva has passed every audit

Additonally Arqiva has also attained the UK Government Cyber Secunty Essentials accredifation which enables
i to supply inte government departments Moving forward, Arqiva 1s working to align its Business continuity and
Disaster recovery plans to 15022301 certification

Employees

The average number of persons employed by the Group during the year was 2,170 (2015 2,324} Arqiva
recognises the significant contribution of its employees and makes every effort to create a rewarding and engaging
working environment

The Group's policy 1s to provide equal opportunities for all employees, urespective of race, nationality, gender,
sexual onentation, manial status, religion or political belef, disability or age

The table below provides a breakdown of the gender of Direciors and employees

Malg Female
Number / % Number / %
Board of Directors 9/75% 3/25%
Arqiva Group employees 1,685/ 78% 4851 22%
Note Board of Diectors membership refers to the Group s Board of Directors (including ailemates and non-e ) and the of the Senor Execuive

Management thal represent management within the Board (1& the Chief Executive Otficer end the Chief Financial Officer)
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Corporate responsibility

The Group continues to address training and development
requirements for employees at all levels within the
organisation The Board also reviews future management
requirements and succession plans on an ongoing basis

In 2013-14 and 2014-15 Arqiva received an ‘Investors in
Peopie Gold Award' Tius s the tughest lavel of investors
in People recognition availlable Achieving the Gold
Award 1s recognition of the outstanding commitment

and hard work put in by many colleagues across the
business Argiva 1s commtted to retaining this award,
and is currently under re-assessment The results are
expected to be annaunced later this calendar year

Argiva has continued 1o be recognised for iis
investment in its people In March Arqiva’s apprenfice
programme won a Silver Award at the 'Apprenticeships
4 England’ awards in the ‘large employer’ category
Addiuonally the Group has earned a silver award

from the Defence Employer Recognition Scheme

This scheme 15 run by the Ministry of Defence to
recognise UK employers who pledge their commitment
to the armed forces As a silver award holder, Argiva
has demonstrated that if 1s dedicated to promotng

an armed forces-frendly position which helps to
ensure that personne! and their families do not face
disadvantage in their access to services

During the prior year, the Group was pleased to
establish its first democratically elecled Arqiva
Employee Board The AEB has been set up to provide
a voice for employees across Arqiva and provide a
clear and direct link between the Group's employees
and Senior Executive Management The AEB has since
met on a monthly basis to discuss key matters such as
performance management, or efficiencies and process
in order to develop responsive action plans The AEB
(as well as the Senior Executive Management} also
interacts with representatives of BECTU regarding
employee matters

The Group's employee forums provide an effective
channe! for communication and collective consultation
across the Group They play an important role in
enabling employees to help the Group manage change
effectively The goals of each forum are to act as the
formal staff consultative body for its part of the business
within Arqiva, provide a voice to management on
employee issues, mibiate and support division-wide
sacial activities, and promote consultation and shanng
of information

Argiva Group Limited

Significant emphastis 1s placed on employee
commumcation The Group intranet ‘Connect’ makes
information available to employees on ail matters
including company performance, growth, and 1ssues
affecting the industry The embedded values “ingemous,
straightforward, and collaborative — Always”, continue
to form the fundamental basis of all Arqiva business
conduct and communication  Arqiva’s monthly
employee e-magazine - ‘Stay Connected’ brings
together receni news and events as well as the most
important things employees need to know for the month
ahead

The Group wants all of its employees to benefit from s
success and growth as a business The annual bonus
scheme recognises the importance of high performance
and 1s designed to reward employeas for achieving
targets and constantly improving overall performance,
in hne with the values The scheme takes into account
the targets that have been set by the Group and then
multiplies this by a personal performance rating The
Group must achieve a minimum EBITDA before a
honus becomes payable which 1s then calculated
based upon the financial KPIs of EBITDA and
operating cash performance The bonus payment for
the 2016 financial year will be made in September
2016 In addition, certain members of senior executive
management participate mn a long term incentive plan
which 1s typically 3 years in duration and 1s designed

to recogmse the value of strategic intiatives being
undertaken by the Group during the long term incentive
plan pencd As with the annual bonus scheme, the
Group must achieve 2 nuinimum threshold of financial
performance before a bonus becomes payable under
the long term mcentive plans which 1s then calculated
based upon the 3 year Group financial KPls of
EBITDA and operating cash performance All such
arrangements are cash based incentive schemes which
operate against documented performance targets and
are reviewed at least annually by the Remuneration
Committee (which comprises members of the Board of
Directors)

“The Group wants all of its employees
to benefit from its success and growth
as a business "

Annuagl report and consobidated financial statements
Year ended 30 June 2016
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Corporate responsibility

Chantable donations, community and social activities

Argiva has committed to raising funds for The Prince’s
Trust ‘Milkion Makers’ challenge There have been a
number of fundraising events over the course of the
year with the Trust using amounts raised lo invest

in a small-scale enterprise challenge pitting teams
agamst each other across the UK The work of The
Pnnce's Trust fits perfectly with Arqiva’s purpose,
vision and values as its key aim 1s to keep young
people connected with society As part of our Corporate
Responsibility strategy, the Group continues to work
with The Prince’s Trust to help them run programmes
that encourage young people to take responsibility for
themselves and help them build the life they choose
rather than the one they've found themselves with

Ouring the year, the Group made a number of
chantable donaticns Contributions were made as
past of a matched funding scheme to match employee
fundraising for charitable events up to £250 per
employee The Group also supports the Give As

You Earn scheme, working in partnership with the
Chanties Ard Foundation which manages the scheme
- the UK’s leading payroll giving scheme Employees
are supported to take part in corporate volunteering
activites whereby they give their time to local charities
and organisations for special projecis

Global Corporate Challenge ({GCC') 1s a weliness
programme that encourages participants to be active
over a 100 day penod, using pedometers to track daily
steps This year, Arqiva has 20 teams {made up from
130 employees) participating from a number of different
lacations including a US team They will be joined by
over 40,000 other teams from 1,500 of the world’s
largest employers Arqiva 1s committed to supporting
musculoskeletal health, and this challenge 15 a great
activity to strengthen muscles and bones, and reduce
the nsk of injury

Arqiva has also demonstrated its commitment to
promoting health and wellbeing by launching the "Arqiva
Be healthy’ programme, aimed at promoting health
intialives and healthy lifestyle choices in addtion, we
have entered 'Brtain’'s Healthiest Company’ competition
which aims to recognise and reward companies and
their employees in their effort to fead heailthier lifestyies

Arqiva Group Limited

Modern Slavery Act 2015 Statement

Argiva 1s committed to ensuring that there 1s no medern
slavery or human trafficking in our supply chains or

in any part of our business Qur supplier Code of
Conduct reflects our commitment to acting ethically and
with integnty in all our business relationships and to
implement and enforce effective systems and controls
to ensure slavery and human trafficking 1s not taking
place anywhere in our supply chains The full statement
is included on page 38 and is alsc availabie on the
company website at www arqiva com

Ant-Bnibery and Anti-Corruption

In conjunction with the UK Bribery Act 2010, the Group
has adopted a Code of Conduct for employees, which
incorporates all of its anti-corruption policies and
procedures The policies apply to all Arqiva employees
employed on both a permanent and temporary basis The
Code of Conduct also sets out the policies and procedures
on the giving and receiving of gifts and hospitaiity

Taxation

The Group's approach to lax s lo ensure comphance
with all legal and statutory obligations Arqiva

1s committed to maintaining a transparent and
constructive working relationship with HM Revenue

& Customs and with local tax authonties in the
junsdictions in which it operates The total contnbution
to UK tax receipts including business rates, tax and NI
paid by both Arqiva and employees, totalled £84 1m
(2015 £83 1m) for the financial year

The Argiva Group 1s a pnmarly UK based infrastructure
group, while there are some trading operations

outside of the UK these generate less than 1% of
operating profit and there are no tax planning activites
undertaken which seek o reduce the Group's UK
profits or revenues by transfernng revenue or profit out
of the UK The Group's small trading entities overseas
deal directly with customers in therr area of residence
and fulfil their tax requirements in the local junsdictions

This report was approved by the Board of Directors on
20 September 2016 and signed on is behatf by

Badro—

Mike Parton,
20 September 2016

Annual report and consolidated financial statements
Year ended 30 June 2016
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Modern Slavery Act 2015: Slavery and Human

Trafficking Statement

Overarching Statement

This statement sets out the steps we are implementing
to combat slavery and human frafficking We remain
committed to further improving our practices in the
future o combat slavery and human trafficking

The statement has been made in respect of Arqiva
Limited and Arqiva Services Limited, subsichary
undertakings within the Group

Organisation’s Structure

We are 3 commurmcations mfrastructure and media
services provider, cperating at the heart of the
broadcast, satellite and mobile communications
markets We're at the forefront of network solutions
and services In the digital world We provide much

of the infrastructure behind television, radio, sateliife
and wireless communications in the UK and have a
significant presence in lreland, mainland Europe, Asia
and the USA

Argiva Lirmited and Argiva Services Limited, and their
respective substidianes, are part of the Argiva group
which has its head office in the UK We have over
2,000 employees and operate in the UK, Ireland,
mainiand Europe, Asia and the USA

Arqiva Limited and Arqiva Services Limited (including
their respective subsidianes) each have an annual
turnover In excess of £36 Om

Qur Supply Chains

The Argiva Supply Chain works in partnership with

our suppliers, ensuring we meet our customer needs
The Arqiva values of Ingenious, Straightforward and
Collaborative are core to how we interact with supphers
whether a high volume preferred supplier or a one-time
only suppher

We have an excephionally diverse range of serwices and
goods that are required by the business and sourced by
our Supply Chain team including

#»  Transmission — Arqiva has numerous transmisson
sites throughout the UK,

» Construction — Argiva undertakes a broad range
of construchion activities from small changes to the
construction of new transmission towers,

» Maintenance and Reparrs,

» IT Scftware and managed services,

» Satellite capacity, and

» Corperate facilities (encompassing stationery,
recrutment, legal and professional fees)

Arqiva Group Limited

Qur Policies on Slavery and Human Trafficking

We are committed to ensunng that there 1s no modern
slavery or human traflicking in cur supply chains or

0 any part of our business Qur Supphier Code of
Conduct reflects our commitment to acting ethucally and
with integrity in all our business relationships and to
implement and enforce effective systems and controls
to ensure slavery and human trafficking 1s not taking
place anywhere in our supply chains

Due Diligence Processes for Slavery and Human
Trafficking

As part of our imiiative to identify and miigate nsk we

» Aim todentify and assess potential nsk areas in our
own business and our supply chains,

» Mitigate the nsk of slavery and human trafficking
occurmng in our own business and our supply
chains,

» Monitor potential nsk areas in our own business and
our supply chains,

» Where possible bulld long standing relationships
with suppliers and make clear our expectations of
therr business behaviour,

» Require our supphers to comply with the Modern
Slavery Act 2015 and have ther own suitable
anti-slavery and human trafficking policies and
processes, and

» Encourage the reporting of concerns and support
the protechon of whistle blowers

Suppher Adherence o our Values

We have zero lolerance to slavery and human trafficking
We expect all these in our supply chain to comply with
those values and our Supplier Code of Conduct

The Transformation Director is currently responsibie for
comphance with the Modern Slavery Act 2015 and for
the suppiier relationships

Training

To ensure a ngh level of understanding of the nsks of
modern slavery and human trafficking i our supply
chains and our business, we will prowde training to all
relevant members of our staff Al directors and members
of the Management Board have been bnefed on the
subject

Annual repont and consohdated financial statements
Year ended 30 June 2016
38



Modern Slavery Act 2015: Slavery and Human

Trafficking Statement

QOur Effectiveness in combating Slavery and Human
Trafficking

We wili use the foliowing key performance indicators
to measure how effective we have been to ensure that
slavery and human trafficking 1s not taking place in any
part of our business or supply chains

» Use of robust suppher selection process including
suppher questionnaires and compliance with
Argiva’s Supphier Code of Conduct,

» Supplier RAG status nsk rating to be developed and
used for all existing and new suppliers High nsk
existing supphers would be questioned as to ther
complance and oniine due dilgence carned out, and

» Use of our payroll systems

Arqiva Group Limited

This statement 1s made pursuant to section 54(1) of the
Modern Slavery Act 2015 and constitutes Argiva Limited
and Argiva Services Limited’s (subsichary undertalungs of
the Group) slavery and human trafficking statement for
the financial year ending 30 June 2016

Note- The signed statement is avaifabie on the
company website at www arqiva com

Annual report and cansalidated financral statemenits
Year ended 30 June 2016
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Board of Directors and
Senior Executive Management

The Company 15 owned by a consortium of shareholders compnsing Canada Pension Plan investment Board
{48%). Macquane Eurcpean Infrastructure Fund Il (25%) plus other Macquane managed funds (1 5%}, Health
Super Investments Pty Limited (5 5%), 1FM Investors (14 8%) and the Motor Trades Association of Australia
{5 2%) There 1s no ultimate controiling party of the Campany, as defined by 1AS 24 ‘Related parties’

There are two investor companies which are related parties with the Group, in accordance with 1AS 24, by wirtue of
significant shareholding in the Group

» Frequency Infrastructure Commurications Assets Limited (‘FICAL’) (48%}, a company controfled by the
Canada Pension Plan Investment Board The Canada Pension Plan Investment Board Iis a professional
investment management organisation based in Toronto which invests the assets of the Canada Pension Plan
The Canada Penston Plan investment Board was ncorporated as a federal Crown corporation by an Act of
Parliament in December 1987

» Macquane European Infrastructure Fund Il { MEIF II') (25%), an investment fund managed by the Macquane
Group Macquane European Infrastructure Fund It 1s a wholesale investment fund focusing on investments
i tugh-quahty mfrastructure busesses across Europe Macquarie Group Limited 15 isted in Australia
{ASX MQG ADR MQBKY)

The directors of the Company who held office duning the year and up to the date of this report are detailed on
page 116 The Group’s Board of Directors is compnised of the following officers who were 1n office (on behalf of
the shareholder consortium) dunng the year and up to the date of the signing of the annual report and financial
statements

Mike Parton, Chairman

Mike joined Arqiva as Chairman mn April 2015 banging a wealth of expernience from
his background in telecoms and technology Mike started his career as a Chartered
Management Accountant, working for a number of UK technology compames
including ICL, GEC, STC and Marcom

Clive Ansell, Independent non-executive

Clive has previously held semor positions at Tribal plc, Royal Mail Group, BT and
the London 2012 Olympic bid team

He 15 also a Non-executive Director at Eckoh ple as well as at Argiva

Paul Mullins, Director

Paul heads Canada Pension Plan Investment Board’s Portfolio Value Creation
group which oversees and supports assets in the Infrastructure Natural Resources
and Pnvate Equity spaces Paul 1s a mermber of the investment committee for
Private Investments Pnor to this he was at Permira Adwvisors LLP and a Partner and
Managing Director at the Boston Consulhng Group

Peter Adams, Director (alternate)

Peter was appaomted on 24% June 2016, replacing Rebert Wall who resigned as
at the same date

Prior to joining CPP Investment Board in September 2010, Peter was with the
Boston Consulting Group, where he advised clients in the U S , Canada and
Europe on strategy and operations

Argiva Group Lirited Annual report and consolidated financial statements
Year ¢nded 30 June 2018
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Board of Directors and
Senior Executive Management

Appointed by Frequency Infrastructure Communtcations Assets Limited and Heaith Super Investments Pty

Limited (joint appointment}

Sally Dawis, Director

With over 30 years in the TMT sector Sally has held a number of sentor product, strategy
and chief executive roles including being a former Chuef Executive of BT Wholesale, one

of the four operating dnvisions of BT Prior to this, Sally had an early product management
career at Mercury Communications before becoming a director at NYNEX dunng its merger
with Bell Aantc to become Venzen

Sally 15 also a Non-Executive Director of the Boards of Telenor, Logstech, and City Fibre Holdings

Nathan Luckey, Director

Nathan 1s a Managing Director in Macquane Infrastructure and Real Asseis, and holds
a number of non-executive directorship roles for comparies within MIRA's investment
porfolic Nathan 1s a qualified Mechanical Engineer, with experuse across the utilities,
telecommunications, transpontation and media sectars

Mark Braithwaute, Director

Mark 1s a Senor Managing Diector in Macquane Infrastructure and Real Assets Mark was
previousty Chief Finangial Officer of Thames Water, the UK’s largest water and wastewater
services company Pnor fo joining Thames Water, Mark was Finance Director of the
customer and engrgy divisions at EDF Energy ple, and before that held a number of senior
Finance posiions at Seeboard plc Mark has other non-executive directorship roles for
companies within MIR&'s investment portfolio and 1s alse a trustee of Leadership through
Sport & Business, a UK social mobility and employability chanty

Chnistian Seymour, Director

Chnstan 1s Head of Infrastructure at IFM Investors, responsible for the business expansion
n Europe and oversight of IFM's existing European asset portfolio, of which Codan Trust
Company i$ an investment vehicle

Deepu Chintamanen, Director (alternate)

Deepu 15 responsible for the ongination and execution of Infrastructure transactions, and
asset management of existing mvestments Prior to IFM Investors, Deepu worked in the
Infrastructure and Energy Finance group at Criigroup in New York where she adwvised and
provided financing for transactions across vanous infrastructure secfors

Appointed by IFM Investors and Motor Trades Association of Australhia (joint appointment)

Damian Walsh, Director

Damian 1s a Partner in Hexdrick & Struggles, a leading global executive search firm
where he 1s a member of the global industnai and CEQ & Board practices Damian
has more than twenty years' nternational expenence as a chartered accountant,
management and leadershp consultant As the Director of Tax in the Emst & Young
Global Office, Daman was responsible for strategy formulation and execution 1o grow
the business across key geographies, industres and service lines

The Board of Directors also includes the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, part of the Senior Executive Management

Arqiva Group Limited

Annual report and consohdated financial statements
Year ended 30 June 2016
42



Board of Directors and
Senior Executive Management

The Semor Executive Management consists of the Executive Directors aligned to the operational structure of the
business

Simon Beresford-Wylte, Liltlana Solomon,
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
»  Arqiva CEO since August 2015 »  Arqiva CFQ since June 2016

uUnify CFO 2014-2016

Vodafone Group 2005-2014 - CFO Europe and CEQ Romania
Cable & Wireless 2004-2005- CFO UK, Europe, US & Asia
T-Mohile UK CFO 1999-2004

»  Samsung Electronics spenal advisor for network strategy
»  Elster Group CEC 2008-2012
»  Nokia 1998-2009 including founding CEO for

Nokia Siemens Netwarks

vyyYyYve

i, :s-'a
Steve Holebrook, Nicolas Ott,
Managing Director, Terrestrial Broadcast Managing Director, Telecoms & M2M
»  Arqiva since 1995 heading Temestnal Broadcast previousty »  Arqiva telecoms head since January 2012
including Satelite »  Everything Everywhera Vice President of Strategy.
»  Qther previous postions at Mercury Commumcations, Regulation and Planning
Kingston Satellite Services, Bntish Aarospace and Bntish »  Other previous posihons at Orange UK, Orange Group
Telecom tntemational and Equant

Dawid Crawford, Matthew Brearley,

Managing Director, Satelfite and Media Owrector of Human Resources

»  Argiva Satellite and Media head since March 2014 »  Argiva since February 2012

»  Commercial ieadership roles at Cable & Wirsless »  Vodafone UK HR & Property Director untd 2010
Commun:cations and Capita »  B&Q Director of Retail HR

b Cther previous posiions at Energs, Jardine Matheson and Bain = Other previous positions at Associated Bntish Foods

and Exxon Corporation

Michael Giles,
General Counsel

»  Appointed Argiva Group Commercial Director in 2008
»  More than 20 years at NTL Business and NTL Broadcast

Arqiva Group Limited Annual report and consoldated financial statements
Year ended 30 June 2016
43



Principal risks and uncertainties

Enterpnse wide managementi of nsk s important for Argiva to meet its corporate objectives and for i to protect
future competitive advantage The strategic \mportance of nsk management 1s recogrised by top performing
companies and 1s an important part of good corporate governance Argiva subscribes to the Enterprise Risk
Management approach to managing its nisk profile

Arqiva’s approach to managing risk 1s in accordance with the 1ISO31000 2009 Risk Process

Monitor g - Communicate '

and Review - and.Consult

T

To manage nsk, a risk register has been developed for each business unit This is then consolidated into a
corporate nsk register, the former being reviewed on a monthly basis by business unit management, the latter1s
reviewed by the Seniar Executive Management on a quarterly basis
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Principal risks and uncertainties

A selection of the key business nsks affecting the Group are set cut below together with a summary of the Group's
mitigating actions, in additon the Group has lang term contracts in place with a number of significant blue chip
customers which support the Group’s long term financial stability

*Business units have been abbreviated as follows Terresina! Broadeast {'TB"), Telecoms & M2M [ T) Satelite and Media {'SM)

' Risk type
Units*

Reputational Al

Business Description of risk /

uncértainty

Bad pubhcity damages

Arqiva's reputation as a

result of

»  Amajor event or
mnecident impacting our
SEPVICES

*  Untmely delvery on
major projects

*»  Repeated unexpected
service gutages

»  Secunty breach on
networks

Recent developments

Arqiva has continued fo
achieve its target result
for 'network avalabibity’
{see key performance
indicators on page 29)

The Group has achieved
and mamntained ISO27001
certification regarding
information secunty and
holds penodic reviews of
the secunty environment

Management of risk / uncertainty

The Group carefully engages with its
customers to ensure that project milestones
are carefully managed and management
regularty review the progress status of atl
projects

Through continuous measurement of
operational KPls and addressing shortfalls
n performance through process excellence
the nsk around service reliabifity 1s carefully
managed

The Group has in place a crisis management
ptan for public relations and external
communications to provide support should
there be any major events This 1S regulanly
monttored and reviewed

Demand T

Consoldation of market
players due to mergers
and acquisibons which
could lead to changes
in the timing of contract
renewal discussions

The MNO market is highly
compettive with MNOs
seeking to develop a
‘quad play service This
has prompted recent
merger and acquisition
activity with BT Group
agreeing the acquisition
of EE in Februaty 2016
and Hutchinson Group
announcing a proposed
deal to acquire 02 n
the UK to combine with
its Three Mobile Group
The latter however, 1s
no longer expected to
compilete

The Group has secured medium to long-term
contracts with all of the major UK MNOs,
including EE, Teleforuica O2 and Vodafone

The Group’s sites are predomunantly
located in rural and suburban areas Ther
location, exclusiaty, and restnctive planning
regulations create significant barners to
switching

The Group seeks to protect itself by
negotiating long term contracts where it
makes iiself the facal point for consahdation,
and facilitates the MNOs' consolidatien in
return for long term revenue certainty

The level of demand for
wireless communications
and impact on demand
for access to the Group s
towers

The Group has conhnued
to identify and evolve its
praduct propositions as
demands for data grow
wath growth in Wif, smail
cells and in-building
systems

Additonally the Group
has found alternative
sources for demand
such as the machine-
to-machine network
busiess offenng
Argiva 1s continuing to
support the MNOs 1n the
roll-out of 4G upgrades
to 15 sites reflecting the
surge in demand for
maobile dala

Significant amounts of capial expenditure
have been invested by the industry in
developing the wireless commurications
infrastructure in the UX The Group monitors
the demand for motile data which continues
to grow and indications are that spectrum
capacity and antenna deployments will
need to increase to cope with this demand
The Group continues to closely moniior the
development of wireless technology and
network deployment activities by MNQOs

Argiva Group Limted
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Principal risks and uncertainties

Risk type

Business

Units*

Description of risk /
uncertainty

Recent devalopments

Management of risk /: uncertainty

Qur contracts are worded such that the

Supplychain T Under-performance of Arqiva has continued
sub-contractors couid to meet its netwark Group's sk s mitigated through contractual
lead to an inability to deployment milestones reimbursements Qur contracts are
meet imeline and quality  on significant engingenng  structured into milestones such that we are
requirements and cause  projects dunng the year accountable to our stakeholders for our
programme shippage (see key performance contractiual obligations and our performance
indicators on page 29) 1s managed accordingly
Health and All Risk of an incident Ounng the year, Arqiva Traiming and rescue Skills courses are
safoty causing death or senous  mantained 1is comphance  required on an annual basis Rescue kits are
injury dunng site works or  with OHSAS518001 previded
engineenng regarding safety Arqiva maintains and regularly reviews its
management policy on workplace safety
Technological TB, SM Developments in We have leveraged off DTT retains the largest share of broadcast
alternative broadcast the development of our transmussion in the UK and IPTV remains
technologtes, such as Connected Solutions constrained by imited high speed broadband
broadband internet offenng to wan the contract  uptake and vanable rehability levels In
connected TV, which to provide engineenng addition the Group has mibgated some of
competes against the expertise supporting the this nsk by investing In YouView TV Limited
Group's OTT transmisgion  raltout of Freeview Play a jont venture formed to develop and
busmess promote the OTT platform, together with
its involverment in Freewview Play — a hybnd
Intemet Protocol Telewision/DTT offenng
QOperational All Majar infrastructure There ts a dedicaled Business Conlinuily
network or satellite falure Working Group wihich meets on a regular
causing multiple platform basts to review plans and procedures in
falures or service place and the prowision of disaster recovery
outages ServIces
The Group’s business continuity plans are
tested ta ensure that they are robust and fit
for purpose and that there 1s the nght skills
mix and knowledge withun the Group
All Networks systems The Group mainfains an 1S027001
and sites are subject to certification regarding information secunty,
securnty threats leading which includes Cloud Secunty Services
to a loss or corruption of Employee tramng on information secunty
data 1s mandatory ang quarierly reviews are
undertaken by external consultants to
examine the robustness of the secunty
environment
Palitical T8 Intermnational decisions The Group has now The Group confinues to engage with Ofcom
regarding the future use entered into contract with  and the broadeasters to ensure that Arqiva
of the 600 / 700MHz the major broadcasters and the television industry s needs are
spectrum for OTT ang Ofcom and has fully considered and sufficient spectrum s
The World Radio- agreed the commercial available for DTT
communications terms toits involvement
Conference 2012 in the 700MHz clearance
{WRC-12') signalled that ~ Programme
counines may clear the
700 MHz band of OTT In
preparation for future use
by Maobile Broadband
Thss would resuit i the
600MHz spectrum cleared
during DSO having to
be used for existing
terresinal TV
Financial Details of the financal nsks and details of miigating factors are set out in the Directors’ report on page 47
Argwva Group Limited Annual report and consolidated financial statements
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Directors’ report

The Directors of Arqiva Group Limited ('AGL),
registered company number 05254001, (‘the

Company’) and its subsidianes {'the Group') subnut
the annual report and audited consohdated financial
statements (‘financial statements’) in respect of the year

ended 30 June 2016

0On 22 June 2016, a Notice of Change of Name by

Resolution was

lo change the name of the Company from Arqiva
Broadcast Holdings Limited to Arqiva Group Limited

The Company 15 a holding company with an investment

submitted to Companies House

in a group of operating companies, financing

companies and

other holding companies

Financial nsk management

The principat nisks and uncenanties of the Group have
been outlined previously in this section of the report
(see page 45) As a result of these, as well as the on-
going business activities and strategy of the Group,
Argiva 15 exposed to a vanety of financial nsks that
include financing risk, purchase price risk, credit risk,
hquidity nsk, interest rate nsk and foreign exchange
nsk

The key financial nsks affecting the Group are set out
below together with a summary of how the nsks are
managed

The Directors’ report for the Company 15 on page 116

Risk type

Description of risk /
uncertainty

Management of risk

interest rate Exposure to interest rate nsk due to The Group uses interest rate and mflatton swaps to hedge its exposure
nsk borrowing vanable rate bank debt to nsing interest rates The Group maintains a hedging palicy to manage
nterest rate nsk and to ensure the certainty of future interest cash flows
It currently has fixed rate hedging, split between interest rate swaps and
inflation swaps Interest rate swaps convert vanable rate interest costs to
fixed rate interest costs while inflatign swaps convert fixed rate interest
costs to RPI-Hinked costs, which fluctuate in ing wath the RFPIindex as do
a swgruficant proportion of the Group's revenue coniracts Details of the
interest rate profile of the Group’s habilities are provided in note 23
Financing The Group will need to refinance at The Group mitigates this nsk by the strength of the stable long lerm
risk least part of its debt as it matures investment grade capital structure in place, our BBB ratings reflect
and may need addiltonal financing to our strong ability to service and repay debt from our cash flows over a
cover capital expenditure and cerfain  reasonable penod of me, maintaining an active dialogue with lenders
other expenses to support its growth  and investors mantatning debt with a vanety of medium and long term
plans The Group cannot be certain matunties so that over tme we do not have a significant concentration of
that such financing will be readilty debt due for refinancing in any given year and aiming to refinance debt
available on attractive or histoncally well in advance of the matunty date
comparable terms With regards to covenants the Group mantains financial covenant
Breach of debt covenanis and/or & momtonng and modeling, boih retrospechively and prospectvely and
downgrade n our rating could impact maintaing regular dialogue with credit ratings agencies
the avarlability of finance or the
comparability of ferms
Credit nsk The Group Is exposed to credit nsk This 1s managed through appropriate credd checking procedures pnor to
on customer recevables taking on new custorners, and higher nsk customers paying in agvance
The Group s exposed to counterparty of services being provided Performance 1s closely monitored to ensure
nsks in ils Treasury aperations agreed service levels are maintamned reducing the leve! of quened
payments ang miigahing the nsk of uncollectable debts
Details of the debt matunty profile are provided tn note 23 The Group
carefully manages the credit nsk on liguid funds and denvative financial
mnstruments with balances currently spread across a range of major
financial institubions which have satisfactory credit ratings assigned by
international credit rating agencies The levels of credit nsk are monitored
through the Group's on-going nsk management processes, which include
a reguilar review of the credit ratings Risk in this area is imited further by
setting a maximum level and term for deposits with any single counterparty
Arqiva Group Limited Annual report and consolidated financial statements

Year ended 30 June 2016
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Risk type Description of risk / Management of risk
. uncertainty
Liquidity sk Ensunng the Group has sufficient The Group maintains cash reserves and access (o undrawn commutted
available funds for working capual faciiies to cover forecast requiremenis As at 30 June 2016 the Group had
requirements and planned growth £41 Om cash (and £28 5m in reserve to cover one sermi-annuat mterest
payment on the jJunier bonds) and £375 Om available undrawn facilities
to meet planned growth and working capital requirements in additon,
the Group has £200 Om of hquidity faciiies avatlable to cover senmor
interest payments if required and a £30 Om facility to support ‘Comms Hub
Recewvables Purchasing’
Purchase Energy i1s a major component of the Alarge proportion of this 1s managed wia pass-through arrangements
price nsk Group's cost base and 1s subject to to customers The Group's residual exposure to fluctuabions in the
price volatiity electncity pnce 1§ managed by forward purchasing the majority of
power requirements up to 12 months in advance Key revenue and cost
milestones are set on larger projects to ensure the financial nsks of volatte
market pricing are miigated
Foreign The Group operates from UK sites Management regularly moritor the impact of foreign exchange nsks and

exchange nsk  and predominantly m the UK market
While some customer and supplier
contracts are denominated in other
currencies {mamnly US Dollars and
Euros), the majonty of the Group's
revenues and costs are sterling
based, and accordingly exposure o
forexgn exchange nsk (s kmited

assess ihe need to put any nuirgating financial instruments in place During
the year ¢ross currency swaps were In place to fix the exchange rate

in refation to US Dollar denorninated Semor bonds Details of the cross
currency swaps are provided in note 25

Internal control over financial reporting

The Board of Directors review the effectiveness of
the Group's systems of internal control, including nsk
managerment systems and financial and operational
controls {(see page 44)

Audit Committee

The Group’s Audit Commuttee 1s chatred by Damian
Walsh (and includes representation from the Board

of Directors) and monitors the integnty of the Group’s
finangial statements and the effectiveness of the external
audit process [t has the responsibility for ensunng that an
appropnate relationship exists between the Group and the
extemnal auditor, Including a review of non-audit services
and fees

In addiion, it has responsibilihes of oversight of sk
management procedures, monitonng comphance

and regulatory 1ssues (including whistle blowing
arrangements), and reviewing the effectiveness of the
Group’s intemal controls and intemal audit function The
internal audit function agrees its annual audit plan with
the Audit Committee and regularly reports its findings and
recommendations to it

The Commuittee 1s authonsed to seek any nformation it
requires from any employee of the Company n order {o
perform its duties, and to obtain any external legal or other
professional counsel it requires

Meetings of the Commuttee are attended, at the nwitation
of the Chairman of the Committee, by the external auditor,

Arqiva Group Limated

the Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer and
representatives from the business as required

Intemnal audit

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing the

work undertaken by the Group's internal audit function,
assessing the adequacy of the funchon’s rescurce and

the scope of ts procedures The Group’s internal audit
plan incorporates an annual rolling review of business
actwities, and incorporates both financial and non-financtal
controls ang procedures

External audit

The Audit Ccmmittee i1s responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-
appomtment and removal of the Group’s extemal audior
The Committee makes an assessment of the audior's
independence and objectivity taking into account the
relationship with the auditor as a whole, mncluding the
provision of any non-audit services

Durnng 2016, the Audit Committee has reviewed the
appomntment of the external auditor and completed a
compettive tender process The process was led by the
Charr of the Audit Commuittee with the involvement of other
shareholder representation and representation from the
management team Following this process the Board has
retained the services of PwC as external audtor

The auditor has provided certain non-audit services,
pnncipally in refation to transaction support services,
non-audit assurance and tax compliance The Audit
Committee ensures that appropnate safeguards of audit
independence are established and applied

Annugat report and consolidated financial statements
Year ended 30 June 2016
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Equal opportunities policy

Applications for employment by disabled persons are
aways fully considered, bearing in mind the respective
aptiudes and abwhihes of the apphicant concemed In the
event of members of staff beconing disabled every effort
1s made to ensure that their employment with the Group
continues and the appropnate training arranged it 1s the
policy of the Group that the traiming, career development
and promotion of a disabled person, should, as far as
possible, be dentical to that of a person who does not
suffer from a disability Further information on how Argiva
supports its employees can be found on page 35 of the
Strategic report

Charitable and political donations

Details of chantable donations can be found on page 37
No pohical donations were made dunng the year (2015
none}

Research and development

The Group performs research and development into
new products and technology, the costs of which are
capitahised in accordance with the Group's accounting
policy where they meet the critena for capitalisation
The research costs expensed in the year were £1 8m
(2015 £1 4m) In addition, the Group carries out
research and development as part of its contract tid
processes and these costs are expensed as part of the
bid costs unless the development expenditure can be
capitalised The bid cosis expensed during the year
total £3 8m (2015 £3 6m)

Development costs incurred as part of capital

expenditure projects, which support customer contracts,

are included with the total project spend within tangibie
fixed assets The Group's capital expenditure in the
year was £166 7m (2015 £177 7m) and ncludes
capitalised labour of £57 4m (2015 £55 9m) Other
development costs would be capitalised within
intangible assets In the year, development costs
capitalised total £6 1m (2015 £0 8m), with amortisation
of £2 9m (2015 £0 3m) charged agamnst such
capitalised development costs

Overseas branches

The Group has trading branches based in the Republic
of Ireland, Isle of Man and Jersey

Arqiva Group Limited

Events after the reporting date

There have been no events since the balance sheet
date which would have a maternial impact on the Group
and require adjustment within the financial statements
under IFRS

On 7th September 2016 the Group entered into an
agreement for the sale of Argiva WiFi Limited, a
subsidiary undertaking of the Group that forms part

of the Telecoms & M2M reporting segment (see note
5 to the financial statements) The sale s subject to
vanous pre-compietion conditions and is expected {0
be completed before the end of the calendar year This
disposal 1s in accordance with management's strategy
to divest non-core business areas The results of the
disposal group are not matenal to the Group’s financial
statements Further information 1s contained on

page 17

Dividends and transfers to reserves

The Company has declared no dividends in the year
(2015 none declared) Group companies Now Digital
(East Midlands) Limited and South West Digital Radio
Limited declared dividends of £0 3m and £0 1m
respectively (2015 £0 2m and £0 1m respectively)
The consolidated foss for the year of £249 5m (2015
£339 8m) was transferred to reserves

Going concern

The strategic report includes information on the
structure of the business, our business environment,
financial review for the year and details of the principal
risks and uncertainties facing the Group Notes 21, 23
and 25 of the consolhidated financial statements include
information on the group’s cash, borrowings and
derivatives, and financiat nsk management information
presented within this report

The directors have considered the Group’s profit and
cash flow forecasts alongside the Group's current
funding requirements and facilities available to the
Group to ensure it can continue for the foreseeable
future The directors continue to be confident that the
Group will have adequate resources to continue 1n
operational existence for the foreseeable future and
consequently adopt a going concern basis in preparing
the consolidated financiat statements

Future developments

The Group plans to continue to invest in its business
unuts in accordance with its strategy Further detail 1s
contained within the Strategic report on page 14

Annual report and consolidated financial statements
Year ended 30 June 2016
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Ownership and Directors

A descnption of the ownership of the Group and the Board
of Directors holding office dunng the year and up to the
date of signing of the financial statements can be found on
page 41

At 30 June 2016, Mike Parton was the Graup's
independent Chawman Michael Giles 1s the Company
Secretary

For details on the background of the Board of Directors
and the Serior Executive Management please refer to
page 41

Details of the statutory directors of the Company are
shown on page 116

Directors’ mdemnities

The Company has provided an indemnity for its Directors
and the Company Secretary, which is a qualfying

third party indemnity provision for the purposes of the
Companies Act 2006 The imdemnity was in force dunng
the full financial year and up to the date of approval of the
financial statements

Argqiva Group Limited

Disclosure of information to the independent Auditors

The Directors of the Comipany in office at the date of
approvat of this report confirm that

» so faras the Directors are aware there is no relevant
audit information of which the Auditors are unaware,
and

» each Director has taken all the steps that he ought
to have taken as a Director to make himself aware of
any relevant audit information and to establish that
the Company’s Auditors are aware of that information

On behalf of the Board

N

Mike Parton

Crawley Court, Winchester
Hampshire $021 2QA

20 September 2016

Annual report and consolidated financial statements
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Statement of Directors’ responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for prepanng the annual
report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations

Company taw requires the directors to prepare such
financial statements for each financial year Under that
law the directors are required to prepare the Group
financial statements in accordance with Intemational
Financial Reporting Standards (iFRSs) as adopted by
the European Union and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation
and have aiso chosen to prepare the parent company
financial statements under FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure
Framework in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom
Accounting Standards and applicable faw} Under
company law the directors must not approve the finanaal
siatements uniess they are satisfied that they give a true
and farr view of the state of affairs of the Group and the
Company and of the profit or loss for that penod

In prepanng these financial statements, the Directors are
required to

» select suitable accounting policies and then apply
them consistently,

» make judgements and accounting estimates that are
reasonable and prudent,

Arqivg Group Lirmited

» state whether IFRSs as adopted by the Eurcpean
Union and applicable UK Accounting Standards have
been followed, subject to any matena! departures
disclosed and explained in the group and parent
company financial statements respectively, and

» prepare the financial statements on the geing concern
basis unless it 1s inappropriate to presume that the
company wili continue n business

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate
accouniing records that are sufficient to show and explamn
the Group and Company's transactons and disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any time the financal position of
the Company and the Group and enable them to ensure
that the financtai statements comply with the Companies
Act 2006 They are also responsible for safeguarding

the assets of the Company and the Group and hence for
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection
of fraud and cther wregulantes

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and
integnty of the corporate and financial information included
on the Company’s website Legislation in the United
Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of
financial statements may differ from legisiation in other
junsdictions

Annua! report and consclidated financial statements
Year endad 30 June 2018
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Independent Auditors’ report to the Members of Argiva Group
Limited

Report on the group financial statements

OQur cpinion
In our opinion, Arqiva Group Limited's group financial statements (the “financial statements”)
= give a true and fair view of the state of the group’'s affars as at 30 June 2016 and of s loss and cash flows for the year
then ended,

« have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRSs”) as adopted by
the European Union, and

« have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Compames Act 2006 and Aricle 4 of the IAS
Regulabon

What we have audited
The financial statements, included within the Annual Report and Consolidated Financial statements (the “‘Annual Report™),
compnse

s the Consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 20186,

+ the Consolidated income statement and cansolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended,
s the Cansalidated cash flow statement for the year then ended,
« the Consotidated statement of changes i equity for the year then ended, and

+ the notes to the financal statements, which mciude a summary of significant accounting pohcies and other explanatory
information

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the financial statements is 1FRSs as adopted by
the European Umon, and applicable law

In applying the financial reporting framework, the directors have made a number of subjective judgements, for example n
respect of sighficant accounting estimates In making such estmates, they have made assumptions and considered future
events

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinien, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit

= the.nformation given i the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the financia) year for which the financial
statements are prepared 1s consistent with the financial statements, and

« the Strategic Report and the Directors' Report have been prepared in accordance with apphcable legal
requirements

In addition, in hight of the knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in the course of the audit,
we are required to report If we have identified any matenal misstatements in the Strategic Report and the Directors' Report We
have ncthing to report in this respect

Other matters on which we are required to report by exception

Adeguacy of information and explanations received
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion, we have not receved afl the information and
explanations we require for our audit We have no exceptions to report ansing from this responsibihty

Directors’ remuneration
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you 1f, iIn our opinion, certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration
specified by law are not made We have no exceptions to report ansing from this responsibility

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Our responsibilities and those of the directors
As explained more fufly in the Statement of Cirectors’ responsibilities, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view

Qur responsibiity s to audit and express an opimon on the financial statements i accordance with applicable law and
International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) (*ISAs (UK & ireland)’) Those standards require us to comply with the
Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors



This report, including the opimons, has heen prepared for and only for the parent company’s members as a body 1n accordance
with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Compames Act 2006 angd for no other purpose We do not, in giving these opmnions, accept or
assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any cther person to whom this report 1s shown or into whose hands it may
come save where expressly agreed by our pnor consent in wniting

What an audit of financial statements involves
We conducted our audit in accordance with 15As (UK & Ireland) An audit invelves obtaining ewvidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements suffictent to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from
matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error This includes an assessment of
+ whether the accounting policies are appropnate to the group’s circumstances and have been consistently applied and
adequately disclosed,

» the reasonableness of significant accounting estmates made by the directors, and
« the overall presentation of the financial statements

We prnmanly focus our work in these areas by assessing the directors’ jJudgements against available ewidence, forming our own
Jjudgements, and evaluating the disclosures in the financial statements

We test and examine information, using sampling and other auditing techniques, to the extent we consider necessary to provide
a reasonable basis for us to draw conclusions We obtain audit ewidence through testng the effectivensss of controls,
substantive procedures or a combination of both

In addiion, we read all the financial and non-financial nformation in the Annual Report to identify matenai inconsistencies with
the audited financial statements and to identfy any information that 1s apparently matenally incorrect based on, or matenally
inconsistent with, the knowledge acgquired by us in the course of performing the audit If we become aware of any apparent
matenal misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the imphications for our report With respect to the Strategic Report and
Directors’ Report, we consider whether those reports include the disclosures required by applicable legal requirements

Other matter
We have reported separately on the parent company financial statements of Arqiva Group Limited for the year ended 30 June
2016

Graham Lambert {Semior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
Southampton

Zc September 2018



Consolidated income statement

Year ended 30 June 2016 Year anded 30 June 2015

m Pre~ Pre- re-
excaptiona Bl Exceptionaf wceptiongl Excapional i
itery itents itermns items [
£m £m E £m £m, iﬂ

Revenue 5 8847 - 8847 B57 1 - 8571 8256 - 8256
Cost of sales {343 8) - (343 8) {306 6) - (306 8) (277 3) - (2773)
Gross profit 540 9 - 5409 5505 - 5505 548 3 - 548 3
Depreciation (129 4) - {1294) (113 4) - (113 4) (114 2) - (114 2)
Amoriisation {10 4) - (10 4) (80) - (8 G) (10 5) - (10 5)
Impaiment 7 - - - - {(389) (389 - - -
Other operating expenses 7 (116 7) {(136) (1303) {132 3) (117) (144 0) (141 9) 83 (150 2)
Total operating expenses (256 5) (136) (2701) (253 7) (506) (304 3) (266 6) 8 (274 8)
Other Income 02 - 02 - - ~ - - -
Share of results of

associates and joint 17 o1 - a1t 24 - 24 12 - 12
ventures

Operating profit 87 2847 {13 6) 27111 2992 {50 6) 2486 2829 83) 2746
Finance incorme g 13 - 13 27 - 27 27 - 27
Finance costs 10 (536 3) - {5363 (499 3) - (499 3) (481 2) - {481 2)
Other gains and losses 11 (0 1) 144 14 3 (35 6) 10 (346) (24 1) (70} (311}
Loss before tax (250 4) 08 (2496) (233 0) (498) (2826) (2197) {(153) {2350)
Tax 12 01 (57 2) (84 5)
Loss for the year (249 5) (339 8) {319 5)
Altnbutable to

Owners of the Company (249 6) (3399 (318 7)
Non-contrelling interests a1 01 02

(249 5) (339 8) {319 5)

All results are from contnuing operations Further comments on consclidated income statement line items are presented
in the notes to the financial statements

Argiva Group Lumited Annual report and consolidated financial statements
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

Loss for the financial year {249 5) (339 8) {319 5)

{tems that wifl not be recfassified subsequently to profit or foss

Actuanal (losses)/ gans on defined benefit pension schemes 32 {6 8) 13 (19
Movement on deferred tax relating to pension schemes - 12 04
(88) 25 (35)
Itemns that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations (19) ©07) 05
87) 18 36)
Total comprehensive 10ss (258 2) (338 Q) (322 5)
Aftnbutable to
Ownrers of the Compary {258 3} (338 1) {322 7)
Non-controliing mnterests o1 01 02
{258 2) (338 0) (322 5)
Arqiva Group Limited Annuaf report and tidated financial st ents
Company regsiraben no 05254001 Year ended 30 June 2016
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Consolidated statement of financial position

30%Jane 2015

_fm _
Non-currant assets
Googwill 14 19868 1988 4 20116 20087
Qther intangible assets 15 441 372 439 334
Property plant and equipment 16 1,768 8 1,736 6 1,676 6 1,634 2
Deferred tax 20 - - 557 1393
Retirement benefits 32 74 66 47 -
Interest in associates and joint ventures 17 48 46 111 100
38119 37734 3,8036 3,8256
Current asseots
Trade and other recevables 18 287 2 2374 2130 2194
Cash and cash equivalents 21 695 985 97 4 1490
3667 3359 3104 368 4
Total assets 41786 4,1093 41140 4,194 0
Current liabilities
Borrowings 23 {10419) (758 3) {513 3) (298 0)
Trade and other payables 22 (373 1) (368 B} (388 4) {384 2)
Provisions 26 {8 0) (113) (7 4) (72)
(1,423 0) (1,138 2) (909 1) {689 4)
Neot current liabilites (1,056 3) (802 3) (598 7) (321 0}
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 23 (4,350 3) (4 304 3) (4,159 1) (4,165 0)
Denvative financial nstruments 25 {1,146 3} (1,210 3) {1,267 0) (1,218 8)
Other payables {(including accruals and deferred 22
revene) (1721) (119 B)‘ (107 3) (117 4)
Provisions 26 (52 8) {44 1) (40 5) (46 9)
Retirement benefits 32 - - - B30
{5,721 3) (5,678 5) {5,573 9) {5,551 1)
Total habilities (7,144 3) {6,816 7) (6,483 0) {6,240 5)
Net liabilities {2,965 7) (2,707 4) {2,369 D) {2,046 5)
Equity
Share capital 27 6539 6539 6539 6539
Share premium 28 31586 3156 3156 3158
Retained earmings (3932 7) (3676 3) {3,338 9) (3.0157)
Translation reserve 29 (10) 03 08
Equity attnbutable to owners of the Company {2966 1) (2,707 8) (2,369 7} (2,047 0)
Non-controlling interest 04 D4 07 05
Total equity {2,965 7) {2,707 4) {2,369 0) (2,046 5)

Mike Parton — Director

Anglva Group Limited Annual report and consalidated financlal statements
Company regsiratan no 05254000 Year ended 30 June 2018
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

[Non.J
 Share)  Share SR Retained i Translation]  controfling] 7ot
[ cpitat S oramium SN eamings BN reserve) 1ol I interest]  equity)
] i) (] (e’ & & o) o
Balance at 1 July 2013 6539 3156 (3,015 7 {0 8) {2,047 0) 05 (2,046 §)
Loss for the year - - {3197 - (M9n 02 {319 5)
Other comprehenswe income - - {35) 05 (30) - {30)
Total comprehensive loss - - (323 2} as (322 7) az (322 §)
Dwidends paid 13 - - - - - - -
Balance at 30 June 2014 6539 3156 {3,3389) {0 3) (2,369 7) o7 (2,369 0)
Loss far the year - - {339 9) - (3399 01 {339 8)
Other comprehensive income - - 25 {07 18 - 18
Total comprehensive loss - - (337 4) 07 (338 1) 01 (338 0)
Drnderds pard 13 - - - - - {04 04
Balance at 30 June 2015 6539 3156 (3,676 3) {10} (2,707 8) 04 {2,707 4)
Loss for the year - - (249 6) - (249 6) 01 {249 5)
Other comprehensive mcome - - {6 8) 19 &7 - &7
Total comprehensive loss - - (256 4) {19) (258 3) o1 (258 2)
Dividends paid 13 - - - - - (01) [(UR}]
Balance at 30 Jung 2016 6539 3156 (3,9327) (29) {2,866 1) 04 {2,965 7)
]
Arglva Group Limited Annual report and tonsclidated Rnancial statements

Company registrabon nd 05254001
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Consolidated cash flow statement

Lo g

Net cash inflow from operating activities 28 3745 3794 3412
Investing activities
Interest received 05 07 09
Interest element of finance lease rentals (10 (11) {11)
Purchase of fangible assets (169 4) {194 8) (152 8)
Purchase of intangible assets (06) (0 6) 12y
Sale of tangible assets 57 05 81
Purchase of subsithary undertakings - - (38)
Sale of subsidiary ungertakings 154 - -
Divdends from investments - 02 04
(148 4} (198 4) (157 2}
Financing activities
Raising of external borrowings 52 4202 5349
Repayment of external borrowings - (3000) {532 5)
Finance lease capital 0 4) 03 (05)
Maovement in borrowings 48 1197 14
Loans to associates and joint ventures - {02) 02)
Interest pard {233 9} {225 3) (230 3)
Cash settlement of pnncipal aceretion on inflation-hnked swaps 25 (26 ) (74 9) -
Debt issue costs and faclity arangement fees - 33 @7
Cash outflow on close out of swap arrangements " - - 70
Proceeds on disposal of swap aptions 11 - 10 -
Dmdends pad to non-contrelling interest 13 - (04) -
(255 1) (180 1} {236 1}
{Decrease) / Increase in cash and cash squivalents 21 {29 0) 11 {51 6)
Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net debt
Net debt at 1 July (4.2057) (40817) {4,016 4}
{Decrease) / Increase in net cash {29 0) 11 (51 6)
fMovemient m tomrowings (4 8) (118 7) (14}
Other cash changes - 02 02
Other non-cash changes {46 2) {25 6) 7§
Net debt at 30 June 29 {4,2857) (4,205.7) {4,061 7)
Argiva Group Limited Annual report and consolidated financial statements

Company regstration no 05254001

Year ended 30 June 2016
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Notes to the Group financial statements

1 General information, authorisation of financial statements and Statement of
Compliance

Arqiva Group Limited ('AGL'} (‘the Company’) 1s a company tncorporated 1 the United Kingdom ("UK™) under the
Comparnies Act under registration number 5254001 The address of the registered office 15 Crawley Court, Winchester,
Hampshire, SQ21 2QA

On 22™ June 2016, a Notice of Change of Name by Resolution was submitted to Companies House to change the name
of the Company from Arqiva Broadcast Holdings Limited to Arqiva Group Limited

These consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidianes for the year ended 30 June 2016 comprnse
the Company and its subsidianes (together the "Group™)

The nature of the Group's operations and its pnincipal activities are set out in the strategic report an pages 8 to 38

Statement of Compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Intemational Finanoal Reporting
Standards ("IFRS"} (including international Accounting Standards ("AS") and interpretations ssued by the International
Accounting Standards Board ("IASB") and its committees) as adopted for use in the European Union {("EU"} and the
Comganies Act 2006

As at 30 June 2016, these are the Group's first annuat consolidated financial statements since adopting IFRS, and the
Group has elected 1 July 2013 as the date of transition to IFRS being the commencement of the earliest comparative
pentod presented (‘the Transiion Date"} The disclosures required by IFRS 1 concerming the transition from United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (‘UK GAAP') to IFRS are given in note 35

The Company has elected to prepare its financial statements in accordance with FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure
Framework These are presented on pages 116 to 129

2 First time adoption of IFRS, adoption of new and revised Standards

First time adoption of IFRS

These financial statements, for the year ended 30 June 2016, are the first the Group has prepared in accordance with
IFRS Accordingly the Group has prepared financial statements which comply with IFRS applicable for penods ending on
or after 30 June 2016, together with the comparative pencd data as at and for the years ended 30 June 2015 and 30
June 2014 In prepanng these financial statements, the Group's opening statement of financial posiion was prepared as
at 1 July 2013, the Group’s date of transition to IFRS Note 35 explains the principal adjustments made by the Company
in restating its UK GAAP financial statements, including the statement of financial position as at 1 July 2013 and the
financial statements as at and for the years ended 30 June 2015 and 30 Jfune 2014

Exemptions applied
On first tme adophon of IFRS an entity may elect to use exemptions that are alfowed by IFRS 1 The Group has appled
the following exemptions

IFRS 1 First-time adoplion

IFRS 1 also required that the UK GAAP carrying amount of goodwill must be used in the opening IFRS statement of
financial positon (apart from adjustments for gosdwill impairment and recognition or de-recognition of intangible assets)
in accordance with [FRS 1, the Group has tested goodwill for impairment at the date of transition to (FRS Under IFRS no
goodwill impaiment was deemed necessary at 1 July 2013

The Group has not applied IAS 21 The Effect of Foreign Exchange Rates retrospectively o fair value adjustments and
goodwiil from business combinations that occurred before the date of transiion to IFRS Such fair value adjustments and
goodwill are treated as assets and habilities of the parent rather than as assets and liabiities of the acquiree Therefore,
those assets and liabilities are afready expressed In the functional currency of the parent or are non-monetary foreign
currency items and no further translation differences accur

The UK GAAP carrying amount of property, plant and equipment {(based on depreciated histoncal cost} has been used In
the opening IFRS statement of financial position
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IERS 3 Business combinations

IFRS 3 Business Combinations has not been apphed to acquisitions of subsidranes, which are conswdered busnesses for
IFRS, or of nterests 1n associates and joint ventures that occurred before 1 July 2013 Use of this exemption means that
the UK GAAP carrying amounts of assets and liabifitres, that are required to be recognised under IFRS, is thewr deemed
cost at the date of acquisition After the date of the acquisiton, measurement s in accordance with IFRS Assets and
liabilites that do not qualify far recogniion under IFRS are excluded from the opemng IFRS statement of financaal
posthon The Group did not recognise or exclude any previcusly recogmsed amounts as a result of IFRS recogmtion
requirements

JAS 23 Borrowing costs
The Group has apphed the transstiona) prowisions 1in IAS 23 Borrowing Costs in relation to the capitalisation of financing
costs, and captahses borrowing costs relating to quahfying assets prospectively from the date of transihon

\FRIC 4 Determining whether an arrangemant contains a lease
The Group has applied the exemption from retrospectively appiying IFRIC 4 Determuning whether an arrangement
contans a fease and instead has considered the existence of lease arangements as at the date of transion

IFRIC 1 Changes in existing decomnusstoning, restoration and similar liabilities
The Group has taken the exemption from full retrospective apphication of IFRIC 1 Changes in Exisfing Dacommissioning,
Restoration and Similar Liabifies

Estimates
The estmates at 1 July 2013, 30 June 2014 and 30 June 2015 are consistent with those made for the same dates n
accordance with UK GAAP (after adjustments to reflect any differences in accounting policies)

New and revised Standards
The fallowing new and revised Standards and Interpretations have been adopted in the cumment year Thew adophion has
not had any significant impact on the amounts reported in these financial statements

Amendments to IFRS 7 Disclosures
The Group has applied the amendments to IFRS 7 Dusclosures — Offsetung Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

The amendments to IFRS 7 require entibes to disclbse information about nghts of offset and related arrangements (such
as collateral posting requirements) for financial instruments under an enforceable master neting agreement or similar
arrangement

As the Group does not have any offsetiing arrangements in placa, the application of the amendments has had no impact
on the disciosures or on the amounts recognised in the consohdated financial statements

At the date of authonsation of these financial statements, the following Standards and Interpretations which have not
been apphed In these financial statements were in 1ssue but not yet effective {and in some cases had not yet been
endorsed by the EU)

IFRS 9 Financial instruments

IFRS 10 and IAS 28 (amendments) Sale or contnbution of assets

IFRS 10 and 1AS 28 {(amendments) Investment entiies applying the consohdation exception
JFRS 14 Reguiatory Deferral Accounts

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IAS 7 {amendments) Statement of Cash Flows Disclosure Inibiative

1AS 12 {amendments} Recognihion of deferrad tax assets for unrealised losses
1AS 27 (amendments) Investment Entittes

The directors do not expect that the adoption of the Standards and Interpretations listed above will have a matenal
impact on the financial statements of the Group in future penods, except that IFRS 9 will impact both the measurement
and disclosures of financial instruments Whilst the expectation is that IFRS 15 wili not have a matenal impact, it 1s not
practicable to provide a reasonabie quantffication of the effect of this standard until a detalled review has been
completed

In addition IFRS 16 Leases, which was not applied n these financial statements, was issued in January 2016 but s not
yet effective, and has not yet been EU endorsed The directors expect that the adoption of this standard will have a
matenal impact on the financial statements of the Group in future penods, pnmanly through the recogmtion of the
Group's operating leases on the balance sheet (see operating lease cormmitments disclosed 1n note 30) however it 1s not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of this standard unbl a detarled review has been completed
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3 Significant accounting policies

(a) Basis of preparation

For penods up to and including the year ended 30 June 2015, the Group prepared its statements 1n accordance with UK
GAAP The financial framework which now applies to enttes prepanng financial statements in accordance with
legislation, regulation or accounting standards applicable in the UK and the Republic of treland 1s FRS 100, Apphication of
Financial Reporting Reguirements, which was 1ssued in November 2012 These standards are mandatory for statutory
financial statements for accounting penods beginming on or after 1 January 2015 Pursuant to the introduction of these
new standards, the Group has adopted EU-endorsed IFRS, which 15 an acceptable basis of reporting under FRS 100,
and therefore the Group financial statements comply with Article 4 of the EU IAS Regulation

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the valuation of certain properties, or
financial instruments that are measured at revalued amounts or far values at the end of each reporting penod, as
explained In the accounting policies below Histoncal cost 1s generally based on the fair value of the consideration given
In exchange for goods and services The pnhcipal accounting policies adopted are set out below These policies have
been applhed conssstently across the comparative financial penods included within these financial statements

IFRS 13 defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a Lability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price 1s directly observable
or estimated using another valuation techmique In estimating the fair value of an asset or a hability, the Group takes mte
account the charactenstics of the asset or habiity if market participants would take those charactenshes into account
when pricing the asset or hability at the measurement date Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes n
these financial statements 1s determined on such a basis Exceptions to this pnnciple have been made for leasing
transactions that are within the scope of IAS 17, and measurements that are approximations to fair value but are not far
value, such as value in use in IAS 36

In addibon, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categonsed into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the far value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are descnbed as follows

* Llevel 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or habilites that the entity
can access at the measurement date,

+ Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted pnices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or
habity, either directly or indirectly, and

* Level 3 inputs are uncbservable inputs for the asset or hability

With the exception of the items impacted by IFRS 1 (and therefore the retrospective exemptions taken for periods pnor to
the date of transibon), the policies set out below have been applied consistently throughout the current and preceding
years in the financial statements

The Company's financial statements have been prepared under FRS 101 and are included in this report - see page 116
(b) Basis of cansolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entities controlied by the
Company (its subsidianies) made up to 30 June 2016

Control 1s achieved when the Company
= has demonstrable power over the relevant activibes of the investee,
+ s exposed, or has nghts, to vanable retum from its involvement with the investee, and
s has the ability to use its power to affect ts retums

The Company reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes {o one or more of the three elements of contro! listed above

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company obtams control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Company loses control of the subsidhary Spectfically, the results of subsidianes acquired or disposed of dunng the year
are included In the consolidated income statement from the date the Company gains control until the date when the
Company ceases to contro! the subsidiary

Intra group profits have been eliminated Undertakings, other than subsidiary undertakings, in which the Group has an
investment representing not less than 20% of the voting nghts and over which it exerts significant influence are treated as
associated undertakings Associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting n accordance with 1AS 28
‘Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures' Joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method

Argiva Group Limited Annual report and consolidated financia! statoments
Company regsstratan ne 05254001 Year ended 30 June 2016
62



(c) Going concern

The Group's business activities, together with factors likely to affect its future development, performance and position are
presented within the Strategic report on pages 8 to 38 In addition, notes 21, 23, and 25 to the consohdated financial
statements include details of the Group's treasury activites, long-term funding arrangements, financial instruments and
financial risk management actvities

The Group has sufficient financial resources which, together with internally generated cash flows, will continue to provide
sufficient sources of liquidity to fund its current operations, including sts contractual and commercial commitments as set
out in note 30

The Dwrectors have, at the tme of approving the financial statements, a reasonable expeciation that the Group has
adequate resources to continue in operabonal existence for the foreseeable future Thus they continue to adopt the going
concem basis of accounting in prepanng the financial statements

{d} Business combinations

Acquisthons of subsidiaries and businesses are accounted for using the acquisihon method The consideration
transferred n a business combination 1s measured at fair value, which 1s calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date
fair values of assets transferred by the Group, llabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interest 1ssued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree Acquisition-related costs are recognised
in profit or loss as incurred

Goodwill 15 measured as the sum of the consideration fransferred, the amount of any non-controfling interests in the
acquiree, and the farr value of the acquirer's previously held equity mterest in the acquiree (if any) less the net of the
acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the habilibies assumed

(e) Goodwill

Goodwill 1s inibally recognised and measured as set out in note 3(d)

Gooedwiil 1s not amortised but is reviewed for impairment at least annually or where there 1$ indicaton of impairment (see
nete 3{p}}

On disposal of a subsidiary, the attnbutable amount of goodwil! is included In the determination of the profit or loss on
disposal

() Revenue recogmtion

Revenue represents the gross infiow of economic benefit for services provided utiising Argiva’s communications
infrastructure, completon of signficant engineenng projects and the sale of commumnications equipment Revenue s
stated net of value added tax Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable

Rendenng of services

Revenue from the rendenng of services 1s recognised in ine with the service provision over the coniractual
perod Revenue 1s recogrnised when 1t 15 probable that the economic benefits associated with a transaction wil
flow to the group and the amount of revenue and the associated costs can be measured rehably Such
revenues include television and radio transmission services, tower site rental to mobile network operators,
media services, WiFi services and machine-to-machine connectivity

For long-term services contracts revenue 1s recognised on a straight ine basis over the term of the contract
However, if the performance pattern is other than straight line, revenue 1s recogmsed as services are provided,
usually on an output or network coverage basis Such revenues include Smart metenng network build and
service operation

Costs related to delivenng services under long-term contractual arrangements are expensed as incurred Pre-
contract costs incurred in the inihal set up phase of a contract are deferred These costs are then recogmised in
the income statement an a straight line basis aver the remawing contractual term, unless the pattern of service
delivery indicates a different profile 1s appropnate These costs are diectly attnbutable to specific contracts,
relate to future activity, will generate future economic benefits and are assessed for recoverability on a regular
basis

Arqiva provides support to its customers by undertaking vanous engineenng projects Revenue from such
projects, which are long-term (greater than 12 months) contractual arrangements are recognised based on the
percentage of completton method The stage of complation 1s estmated using an appropnate measure
according to the nature of the contract Profit 1s recognised, if the final outcome can be assessed with
reasonable certainty, by mcluding revenue and related costs in the income statement as contract actty
progresses

Sale of communications equipment
Revenue from the sale of communications equipment 1s recognised when the significant nsks and rewards of
ownership are transferred to the buyer, which 1s typically upon delivery and acceptance by the customer
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Where a contractual arrangement consists of two or more elements thal are separable and have value to a customer on
a standalone basts, revenue s recognised for each element as if it were an individual contract The total contract
consideration 1s allocated between the separate elements on the basis of reiative far value and the appropnate revenue
recogmbon cntena are appled to each element Likewise where elements of a coniract, or mulliple contracts, are so
intrinsically inked that it 1s necessary to consider the elements on a bundled basis revenue IS recogrised in respect of
the bundled contractual oblgations taken as a whole

Cash received or invoices raised \n advance 1$ taken to deferred income and recognised as revenue when the services
are provided Where consideration received in advance i1s discounted, reflecting a sigruficant financing compenent, itis
reflected wathin ravenue and interest payable and simiar charges on a gross basis Revenue recognised in advance of
cash being received or an invoice being raised is recognised as accrued income

(g) Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantally all the nisks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee All other leases are classified as operating leases

The Group as lessar

Equipment leased to customers under finance leases is deemed 1o be sald at normal selling price and this value 15 taken
o revenue at the inception of the lease Receivables under finance leases represent outstanding amounts due under
these agreements, less finance charges allocated to future penods Finance lease interest 1s recognised over the
primary penad of the lease so as to produce a constant rate of return on the net cash investments

Rental income from operating leases Is recognised on a straight-ine basis over the term of the relevant lease Inimal
direct costs incurred In negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognised on a straight-hne basis over the lease term

The Group as_lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the group at their fair value or, If lower, at the present
value of the minimum lease payments, each determined at the inception of the lease The corresponding liability to the
lessor 1s included in the statement of financial position as a finance lease obfigation

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses and reduction of the lease obhgation so as to achieve a
constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the habiity Finance expenses are recognised immediately 1n profit
or loss, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalised in accordance with the
group's general policy on borrowing costs (see note 3 (1)) Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses in the penods
n which they are \ncurred

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to income on a straight-lne basis over the term of the relevant
lease except where another more systematic basis is more reprasentative of the time pattern in which economic benefits
from the lease asset are consumed Contingent rentals ansing under operating leases are recognised as an expense ih
the penocd in which they are incurred

In the event that lease Incentives are received to enter inta operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability
The aggregate benefit of incentives 15 recogmised as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-ne basis over the lease
temn, except where anather systematic basts is mare representative of the ime pattem i which economic benefits from
the leased asset are consumed

{h) Foreign currencies

The individual financial statements of each group company are presented in the currency of the pnmary economic
envirgnment n which it operates (its functional currency) For the pumpose of the consclidated financial statements, the
results and financial position of each group company are expressed in pounds sterling, which 1s the functonal currency
of the Company, and the presentation currency for the consohdated financial statements

In prepanng the financial statements of the individual companies, transactions in currencies other than the entity's
functonal currency (foreign currencies) are recogrised at the rates of exchange prevaring on the dates of the
transachons At each balance sheet date, monetary assets and habiibes that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retransiated at the rates prevalling at that date Non-monetary items carned at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined Neon-monetary items that
are measured \n terms of histoncal cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial statements, the assets and habilites of the Group's foreign
operations are translated at exchange rates prevaiing on the balance sheet date Income and expense ttems are
transiated at the average exchange rates for the penod, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that penod, m
which case the exchange rates at the date of transactions are used Exchange differences ansing, if any, are recognised
n other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity (attributed to non-contreiling interests as appropnate)
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(] Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attnbutable to the acquisiion, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessanly take a substantal penod of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets, untl such time as the assets are substanbally ready for therr intended use or sale

Invesiment ncome eamed on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on quahfying
assets 1s deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitatisation

All other borrowing costs are recognised In the iIncome statement in the penod in which they are incurred

(i Government grants

Government grants are not recognised unti there 15 reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received

Government grants are recogmised in profit or loss on a systematc basis over the penods in which the Group recognises
as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate Specifically, government grants whose
prnmary condition 1s that the Group should purchase, constiuct or otherwise acquire non-current assets are recognised
as deferred revenue i the consolidated statement of financial posthon and transferred o profit or loss on a systemalc
and rational basis over the useful lives of the related assets

(k) Operating profit

Operating profit 15 stated afler charging exceptional impaiment and restructunng costs, and after the share of results of
associates but before finance income and finance costs

{1} Retirement benefits
Defined Contnbution Schemes

For defined contrbution schemes, the amount charged to the income statement 1n respect of pension costs and other
post-retirement benefits 1s the contribution payable in the year Differences between contnbutions payable for the year
and contnbubions actually paid are shown as either accruals or prepayments in the statement of financial position

Defined Benefit Schemes

Defined benefit schemes are funded, with the assets of the scheme held separately from those of the Group, in separate
trustee adminustered funds Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and liabiities are measured on an
actuanal basis using the projected unit method and discounted at a rate eguivalent to the current rate of return on a high
quality corporate bond of equivalent cumency and terms to the scheme liabrlthies

The Group presents current and past service costs wathin cost of sales and admnistrative expenses (see note 32y n s
consohdated income statement Curtalments gains and losses are accounted for as past-service cost

Net-interest expense or Income 1s recognised within finance costs (see note 10)

The retirement benefit obligation recogmised In the consolidated statement of financial positicn represents the deficit or
surpfus 1in the Group's defined benefit schemes Any surplus resulting from this calculation 1s imited to the present value
of any economic benefits availlable 1 the form of refunds from the schemes or reductions in future contnbutions to the
schemes

A liability for a termination benefit 1s recognised at the earlier of when the entity can no longer withdraw the offer of the
termination benefit and when the entity recognises any related restructuring costs

{m) Taxation
The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax
Current tax

The tax currently payable 15 based on taxable profit for the year Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the
income statement because 1t excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it
further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible The group's liabrlity for current tax s calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred tax

Deferred tax 1s the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
lhabilities i the financial statements and the comesponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and 1s
accounted for using the baiance sheet liability method Deferred tax liabilites are generally recogrised for all taxable
temparary differences and deferred tax assets are recogrised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available agatnst which deductible temporary differences can be utitsed
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The carrying amaunt of deferred tax assets 15 reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it 15 no
jonger probabile that sufficient taxable profits will be avadable to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply i the penod when the hability 1s settled or the asset
15 reafised based on tax faws and rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date
Deferred tax is charged or credited in the income statement, except when it relates to tems charged or credited in other
comprehensive income, 1n which case the deferred tax s also dealt with n other comprehensive income:

Deferred tax assets and habilihes are offset when there 1s a legally enforceable nght to set off current tax assets aganst
current tax habiies and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authonty and the Group intends 1o
settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis

{n) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historic purchase cost (which includes costs directly attrbutable to bringing
the assets into working condition), being farr value for tangible assets acquired on acquisition, less accumulated
depreciation and any provision for impairment

Assefs in the course of construction for production, supply or admwnstrative purposes, or for purposes not yet
deterrmined, are carned at cost, less any recognised impairment loss  The cost of self-constructed assets includes the
cost of matenals and direct labour

Cost meludes professional fees and, for qualifying assefs, borrowing costs capitahsed in accordance with the group’s
accounting poiicy Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the
assets are ready for ther intended use

Freehold iand s not deprecrated

Depreciation 15 recognised so as to wnte off the cost or valuation of assets (other than freehold land and properties under
construchion) less their resigual values over their useful iives, using the straight-tine method, on the following bases

Asset Description Estimated Useful Life
Freehold buldings 20 - 80 years
Leasehold buildings Length of lease

Plant and equipment

- Communications infrastructure network 8- 100 years

- Network computer equipment 3-20years

- Motor vehicles 3 -5 years

The estimated useful hives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting penod,
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated aver the shorter of therr lease term and thewr expected useful hves {on
the same basts as owned assets)

An stem of property, plant and equipment 15 derecognised upon disposal of when no future economic benefits are
expected to anse from the continued use of the asset The gamn or loss ansing on the disposal of an asset 15 determined
as the difference between the saies proceeds and the carrying amaount of the asset, and is recogrised in the thcome
statement
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(o) Intangible assets
Recoghition and measurement

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost and are subsequently carned at cost less accumutated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses Amortisation 1s charged to the income statement on a straight line basis over the
estimated useful ife of the asset, on the following bases

Asset Description Estimated Useful Life

Licences Length of the icence penod (no more than 20 years)
Development costs 10 years

Access nghts Length of the agreement {no more than 20 years)
Software 10 years

Internally-generated intangible assets — research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities 1s recognised as an expense In the penod in which it 1s incurred

An internally-generated (ntangible asset ansing from development (or from the development phase of an intemal project)
1s recogmsed if, and only if all of the following conditions have been demonstrated

s the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale,
» the mtention to complete the intangble asset and use or sell it,

o the ability to use or sell the intangible asset,

s how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits,

+« the avallability of adequate techmeal, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sel!
the intangible asset, and

« the ability to measure reliably the expenditure aftnibutable to the intangible asset dunng its development

The amount initally recogrised for internally-generated intangible assets is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the
date when the intangible asset first meets the recognition cntena listed above Where no internally-generated intangible
asset can be recognised, development expenditure 1s recogmsed 0 profit or loss in the period in which it s incurred

Subsequent to imbal recognition, internally-generated intangible assets are reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets that are acquired separately

De-recognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset i1s derecognised on dispgsal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal
Gains or losses ansing from de-recognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised n profit or loss when the asset 1s derecogrised

(p) Imparment of tangible and intangible assets

At each balance sheat date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine
whether there 15 any indication that those assets have suffered an impaiment loss If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset 1s estmated to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any) Where the asset
does not generate cash flows that are independent from other assets, the group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be idenbfied,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allccation basis can be dentified

An intangible asset with an indefinite useful life, such as goodwill (see note 3(e)), 1s tested for impairment at least
annually and whenever there 1s an indication that the asset may be impaired

Recoverable amount ts the hugher of fawr value less costs to sell, and value it use In assessing value in use, the
estmated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the tme value of money and the nsks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) 1s estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) 15 reduced to its recoverable amount An impairment loss 1s
recogmsed immediately in profit or loss

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (ar cash-generating unit) 1s increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no mparrment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-
generating unit) in prior years A reversal of an impairment loss 1s recognised mmediately 1n profit or loss unless the
mpairment relates to goodwill, iIn which case it cannct be reversed
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(q} Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial habilites are recognised in the Group's statement of financial position when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual prowisions of the instrument

Financial assets and financial habiities are initially measured at fair value Transaction costs that are directly attnbutable
to the acquwsitton ar 1ssue of financial assets and financia! liabilities (other than financial assets and finanaial habilites at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financral habilities,
as appropnate, on inibal recogmition Transaction costs directly attnbutable to the acquisiton of financial assets or
financial labihities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss, presented as an “other
gamn or loss’

All financial assets are recognised and derecognised on 3 trade date where the purchase or sale of a financial asset is
under a contract whose terms require delivery of the financial asset within the tmeframe established by the market
concermed

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are ciassified into the following specified categones financial assets ‘at farr value through
profit or loss’ ('FVTPL’), ‘held-to-matunty’ investments, ‘avallable-for-sale’ (AFS) financal assefs and ‘ioans and
recaivables' The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and 1s determined at the tme
of imthal recogmition

Trade recewvables
Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are stated at therr norminal value as reduced by appropnate allowances
for estimated rrecoverable amaounts

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents compnse cash on hand and demand deposits, and other short-term highly hiquid investments

that are readily convertibie to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant nsk of change in value
Fnancial habihities

Financial habiiies are classified as either financial habilities ‘at FVTPL' or ‘other financial habilines' according to the
substance of the contractual arrangements entered into

Borowings
Interest-bearing bank loans and overdrafts are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct 1ssue costs Finange

charges, including premiums payable on setlement or redempbon, and direct 1ssue costs are accounted for on an
accruals basts to the income statement using the effective interest method, and are added to the carrying amount of the
instrument to the extent that they are not setfled in the penod in which they anse

Trade payables
Trade payables are not interest bearing and are stated at ther nominat value

Denvative financial instruments

The Group enters into a vanety of denvative financial instruments to manage 1ts exposure to interest rate and foreign
exchange rate risk, including foreign exchange forward contracts, interest rate swaps and cross currency swaps Further
details of denvatve financial instruments are disclosed in pote 25

Denvative financial instruments are recognised at fair vaiue at the date the denvatve contract 1s entered into and are
revalued at farr value at each balance sheet date The far value of these mstruments s detemuned from the expected
future cash flows discounted at 2 nsk-adusted rate The future cash flows are estmated based on forward
{(interestinflationfexchange) rates observable from rates and yield curves at the end of the reporting peniod, and contract
rates The difference between the farr value at the nsk-adjusted rate and the farr value at the nsk-free rate 15 used to
determine the debit valuation adjustment and/for credit vaiuation adjustment to these instruments The Group does not
apply hedge accouniing prninciples

A denvative with a positive fair value 1s recognised as a financial asset whereas a denvative with a negative fair value 15
recogmised as a financial llability A denvative 1s presented as a non-current asset or a non-current hability if the
remaining matunty of the instrument 15 more than 12 months and 1t 15 not expected to be realised or settied within 12
months Other denvatives are presented as current assets or currant habilihes
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(r) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obhgation (legal or constructive) as a resuit of a past event, t1s
probable that the Group will be required to settle that obligation and a reliable estmate can be made of the amount of the
obligation

The amount recognised as a provision Is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at
the balance sheet date, taking into account the nsks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation Where a provision 1s
measured using the cash fows estmated to settle the present obligation, s carying amount 1s the present value of
those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is matenal)

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party,
a recevable 1s recognised as an assel if it 1s virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the
recewable can be measured reliably

Decommissioning provisions are recognised within provisions for labiibes and charges and ncluded within property,
plant and equipment, where the costs of dismantling assets are considered matenal The amounts recognised within
property, plant and equipment are depreciated over the usefu! economic fife of the asset The provisions are discounted
to reflect the ime value of money where matenal

When the probability that the Group will be required to settle an obligation or a reliable estmate cannot be made of the
amount of the obligation the Group disclases a contingent liability in the notes to the financial statements

{s) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash includes cash at bank and in hand and bank deposits repayable on demand

(t) Interest

Interest income and expense are accounted for on an accruals basis and compnse amounts recetvable on deposits and
payable on borrowings and finance leases

{u} Dividends
Dividends are recogrused through equity on the earlier of their approval by the Company’s shareholders or their payment
v) Exceptional items

Exceptional items are those that are considered to be one-off, non-recurnng in nature or so matenal that the Directors
believe that they require separate disclosure to avoid the distortion of underlying performance Underlying performance is
the reported performance excluding significant one-off and non-recumng events that more fairly represents the on-going
trading performance of the business These items are presented separately on the face of the income statement
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4 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are descnbed in note 3, the directors are required to make
judgements, estmales and assumptons about the carrying amounts of assets and habilibes that are not readlly apparent
from other sources The estimates and associated assumptions are based on histoncal expenence and other factors that
are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an cn-going basis Rewvisions to accounting estimates are
recognised 0 the penod i which the estimate is revised If the revision affects only that penod or in the penod of the
revision and future penods if the rewision affects both current and future penods

Critical judgements and key sources of estmation uncertainty in applying the Group's accounting policies

The following are the cntcal judgements and those nvolving estimations, that the Directors have made in the process of
applying the Group's accounting policres and that have the most significant effect an the amounts recognised in financial
statements

Revenug recognihon
In applying the group’s revenue recogrition policy, as set out in note 3, judgements are made in respect of certain areas
including

« determination of distinct contract components and performance obiigations,
« measurement of vanable consideraton,

= determination of fair value of non-cash consideration,

+ the recognition of a significant financing component, and

¢ 1n the application of the percentage of completion approach to long-term contractual arrangements which relies
on estimates of total expected contract revenues and costs, as well as reliable measurement of the progress
made towards completion

Such judgments are consistently applied across simiar contracts and key estimates are regulary monitored throughout
the relevant contractual penods with reference to the stage of completion and any applicable customer milestone
acceptance This 1s particularly relevant to the approach for significant engineenng projects, such as the 700MHz
clearance programme, which typically contain a programme build phase and a long-term operational phase

Deferred tax

The largest element of deferred tax that requires judgement relates to tax losses camed forward (see note 20)
Applicable accounting standards permit the recogmtion of deferred tax assets only to the extent that future taxable profits
will be generated to utilise the tax losses carned forward The assessment of future taxable profits involves significant
estimation uncertainty, pnncipally relating to an assessment of management's projections of future taxable mcome based
on business plans and on-going tax planning strategies

Useful Iives for property, plant and equipment and intanqibles

The assessment of the useful economic lives of these assets requires estimation Depreciation or amartisation s
charged to the income statement based upon the useful hves selected This assessment requires estmation of the
penod over which the Group will denve benefit from these assets

The Group manages its property, plant and equipment on a portfolio basis through a central estates team This team
contains qualified surveyors who have a wealth of expenence working for the Group and within the industry as a whole

The carrying values of intangibles are disclosures in note 15, and those for property, plant and equipment are disclosed
n note 16

Provisions and confingant habifities
As disclosed in note 26, the Group’s provisions prnincipally relate to obligattons ansing from contractual obligations,
restructunng and property remediation plans and decommissioning obligations

Estmates have been made in respect of the probable future obiigations of the Group These estimates are reviewed
annually to reflect current economic cenditions and strategic plans

Management exercises judgement m measuring the exposures to contingent hiabilites (see note 30) through assessing
the likelihood that a potential claim or habity will anse, and in quantifying the possible range of financial outcomes

{mpairrnernt af goodwilt
The carrying amount of the Group’s goodwill 1s reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there 15 any

ndication of impairment, 1n comphance with the Group's accounting policies Deciding the recoverable amount of a ine
of business to which goodwill 15 attnibuted nvolves management estmates The recoverable amount is the higher of the
fair value less costs to sell, and the value in use
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The Company determines these values using methods based on discounted cash flows These discounted cash flows
are founded on five-year projections built on financial plans approved by the Board The cash flow projections take
account of past expenence, and are based on management's best estimates of future developments based on
contracted growth and necessary expenditure to maintain the assets required to generate that expected revenue Cash
flows beyond the planning penod are exirapolated using an expected terminal growth rate

The most mportant assumptions undertying the changes in value in use mnvolve estimates of the discount rate {with
reference to weighted average costs of capital), projected cash flows and terminal growth rate

The camrying amount of goodwill at the statement of financial postion date 1s disclosed in note 14

Discount rate used to deterrune the carrying amount of the Group's defined benefit obhgation

The Group's defined benefit obhgation 15 discounted at a rate set by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting
penod on high quaity corporate bonds Significant judgement s required when setting the cntena for bonds to be
included in the population from which the yeld curve is denved The most significant cntena considered for the selechon
of bonds nclude the issue size of the corporate bonds, quality of the bonds and the identfication of cutliers which are
excluded The Group selects these assumptons In consultation with an external qualfied actuary Additionally, the
present value of the scheme lhabihites depend on such factors as the Wfe expectancy of the members, the salary
progression of our current employees and pnce infiation

Estimates are used for ail of these factors 1n determirung the pension costs and habifities incorporated 1 our financial
statements The assumptions reflect histoncal expenence and our judgement regarding future expectations The value of
the net pension obligation at 30 June 20186, the key financial assumphons used to measure the obligation, the sensitivity
of the JAS 19 {Revised 2011) pension hability at 30 June 2016, and of the income statement charge in the year then
ended to changes In these assumptions are disclosed n note 32

Eair value measurements and valuafion processes

Some of the Group's assets and habilities are measured at fair value for financial reporting purposes In estmating the
fair value of an asset or a lability, the Group uses market-observable data to the extent it 15 avallable Where Level 1
inputs are not available, the Group uses estimation techniques in accordance with the requirements of IFRS 13 This
includes the assessment of the fair value adjustments with respect to credit nsk {specifically debit valuation adjustments
to the fair value of the denvative liabiities) for which the Group incorporates market-observable data into s valuation
techniques

Information about the valuation techniques and inputs used in determining the fair value of vanous assets and labilbes
are disclosed in notes 14 and 25

Providing for doubtful debts

The Group provides services primanily to business customers, mainly on credit terms  On occasion certain debts may not
be paid through default of our customers Estmates, based upon our historical expenence and credit rating systems, are
used in determining the leve! of debt that we do not expect to be collected The vaiue of the provision for doubtful debts
1s disclosed in note 18
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5 Revenue and segmental information

The Group denves its revenue from the rendenng of services and the sale of communications equipment. See note 3(f)
for the accounting policies adopted

The following revenue was generated by the Group

T 30June2016  30June 2015 30 June 2014

Rendenng of services 8155 8054 7932
Engineenng projects 56 5 516 324
Sale of goods 127 01 -
Revenue 884 7 857 1 8256

Segmental reporting

Information reported to the Group’s Chief Operating Decision Maker ('CODM’) (which 1s collectively the Group’s Board of
Directors, CEQ and CFOQ) for the pumoses of resource allocation and the assessment of segmental performance 15
focused aon the three customer-facing business units, supported by central corporate functions which are non-revenue
generating The Group’s reportable segments under IFRS 8 are therefore

« Terrestnal Broadcast,

e Tetecoms & M2M, and

« Satellite and Media

‘Other’ segments refers to our corporate business untt, which is non-revenue generating

Information regarding the nature of these business units 1s contained on pages 30 to 32 within the Strategic report

Year ended 20 June 201% . . Terrestrial  Telscoms &  Satellite and

Broadcast M2M Media

£'m £'m

Revenue 4224 3163 1460 - 884 7
Segmaent result” (EBITDA) 3080 1328 321 (48 5) 424 4
Depreciation and amortisation (1398)
Other expenditure 02
Excepticnal tems (136}
Share of result of joint venture and associates 01
Other income & 02
OQperating profit 2711
Finance income . 13
Finance costs ! (536 3)
Other gains and losses i 143
Loss before tax f_ i (249 6)
Arqiva Group Limited Annual report and consolidated financlal statements

Company regstraton no 05254001 Year ended 30 June 2016

72



Vaar ended 30 June 2015 Teresiial I Teiecons & M Sataliie 2k LOter]
ED D

(£'m] L&m) & (' &
Revenue 404 0 2981 15590 - 8571
Segment rasult* (EBITDA) 296 1 147§ 32¢ (57 5) 418 7
Depreciation and amartisation (121 4}
Other expenditure (05
Exceptionai tems (50 6)
Share of result of joint venture and assotiates 24
Operating prafit 248 6
Finance income 27
Finance costs (499 3)
Other gains and losses (34 6}
Loss before tax (282 6)
Year ended 30 June 2014  eresirial QT eiccoms & S Suiitie o) Othe?

m oD

& a8n L £'m] L &
Revanue 3836 265 1 166 8 - 8256
Segment result” (EBITDA) 2757 1449 35.9 {49 9) 406.6
Depreciation and amortisation (1247
Other expendiiure 02
Exceplional tems 83)
Share of result of joint venture and associates 12
Operating profit 2146
Finance \ncome 27
Finance costs . (4812)
Other gains and losses @11
Loss bafors tax . (2350)
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*Segment result 1s defined as total operating profit before the items set out below

- ear ended did ear ended]’
30 June 2016 30 June 20144

(£ (£'m) &)
Operating profit 2711 2486 2746
Depreciation 128 4 1134 114 2
Amortisation 104 &0 105
impairment - 389 -
Exceptional operating expenses 136 117 83
Share of resulls of associates and joinl veniures 01 {2 4) (12
Other income 02 - -
Other (including (profithloss on disposal of property, plant and 02 05 02
equipment and non-inferest finance costs prncipally bank charges)
Total segment resuit 424 4 418 7 406 6

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as the Group's accounting pohicies descnibed in note 3

Segmental result represents the profit earmed by each segment without allocation of the reconaling items above or
central admimistration costs including investment revenue and finance costs, and income tax expense This 1s the
measure reported to the Group's CODM for the purpose of resource allocation and assessment of segment performance

For the purpose of monitenng segment performance and allocating reseurces between segments, the CODM monitors
the capital expenditure (presented on a cash basis) planned and ubilised by each segment, an analysis of which is shown
below

Toreouia K Teiccoms & SR Siie and) [oine- N Consoiicaied
(Erosaces @ @D

@ 6 an 6 ao
Capital expenditure
For the year ended 30 June 2016 497 755 142 300 1694
For the year ended 30 June 2015 436 1109 190 214 184 8
For the year ended 30 June 2014 54 2 381 305 299 152 8

Note the above 1s presented on a cash basis and therefore cannot be directly reconciled to the accrued capital additions
presented in note 16

Geographical information
The UK 15 the Group's country of domicile and the Group generates the majonty of its revenue from external customers
in the UK The geographic analysis of revenue i1s on the basis of the country of ongin in which the customer 1s invaiced

The following revenue was generated from external customers

¢ B
UK 868 6 836 5 8017
Continental Europe (including Republic of (reland) 88 115 152
Rest of World 73 91 87
Revenue 884 7 857 1 8256
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The Group holgs property, plant and equipment i the following geog

raphical locations

UK 17646 17307 16703 16215
Continental Europe {including Republic of ireland} 28 38 39 40
Rest of World 14 21 24 27
Property, plant and aquipmant 1,768 8 1,736 6 16766 16342

Information about major customers

included In the revenues ansing from Terrestnal Broadcast are revenues of £137 Om (2015 £131 3m, 2014 £129 im)
which arose from sales lo the Group's largest custemer Addiionally, Telecoms & M2M revenues include £130 2m

{2015 £117 Om, 2014 £84 4m) from a major customer

No other single customers contnbuted 10% or more to the Group’s revenue in the aforementioned financial years

6 Operating costs

_Operating profit for the year has been arnved at after (Crediting) / charging.

Net foreign exchange (gains) / losses
Research and development costs

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Owned assets
Assets held under finance lease

(Profit) / loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Amorbizaton of intangible assets

Grant ncome

Operating lease renfals

Employee costs (see note 8)

(14

1

18

290

04
©3)
104
7
531
995

03
14

1130
04

03
80
©7
499
1028

1137
05
24
105
(12)
454
1040

Services provided by the Group’s Auditors and network firms

Fees payable to Company Auditors for the audit of parent company and
consalidated financial statements

Fees payable for the audit of the Company’s subsidianes
Non-audit services

COther assurance services

Services relating to taxation

Services relaling to corporate finance (including refinancing)

Tota) cost of services provided by the Group's Auditors

01 01 01
a3 03 03
g4 03 04
01 01 01

- - 02
09 0.8 1"
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7 Exceptional items

The Group recognises exceptonal items i accordance with IAS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ where matenal
iterns, denved from events or transactions within the ordinary activities of the Group, require disclosure by wirtue of therr
size or incidence for the financial statements to give a true and fair view Further information 1s disclosed in note 3(v)

Loss an ordinary activities before taxation Is stated after charging

Operating expenses

Reorganisation and severance {13 3) M1 82)
Caorporate finance actviies ©6) - on
Imparment 14,15 - (389) -
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment 03 - -
(136) (50 8) 83)
Other gains and losses
Prafit on disposal of subsidiary 3 144 - -
Close out of swap arrangements - - (70)
Disposal of swap options - 10 -
Total exceptional items o8 (49 6) {15 3)

Reorganisation and severance expenses include costs relating to the review of the Group’s operating model
Comorate finance activity costs relate to the early refinancing of debt

Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment relates to the divestment of non-core assets (and the associated
contracts) in conjunction with the review of the Group's operating model

With the exception of impairment (2016 £nil, 2015 £38 gm, 2014 £nil) the expense amounts included within exceptional
iterns above are deductible for the purpose of taxation

The profit on disposal of subsidiary (see note 31 for further information) 1s not subject to corporation tax as a result of the
substantial shareholding exemption
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8 Employees

The average monthly number of persons {expressed as ‘full-ime equivalents’) employed by the Group dunng the year
was as follows

B vear ended
30 Junws 2014

. M e [Number]
UK 2,112 2,248 2108
Non-UK 58 76 58
Total employeas 2,170 2,324 2,166

Terrestnal Broadcast 653 664 592
Telecoms & M2M 609 666 434
Satelite and Meda 389 4114 388
Corporate functions 519 583 752
Totat empioyees 2,170 2,324 2,186

Their aggregate remuneration compnsed

=T
2 -
Wages and salanes 1308 1330 1239
Social secunty costs 151 14 3 133
Other pension costs 110 12 101
Total staff costs 1569 1585 147 3
Own work capitatised (57 4) (55 9} 433
Income statement expense 995 1026 104 0
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9 Fminance income

Bank deposits

Finance lease interest recevable
QOther loans and receivables
Total interest receivable
Dindends received

Total finance income

05 04 o4
02 03 02
06 18 17
13 25 23

- g2 04
13 27 27

10 Finance costs

Interest on bank overdrafts and loans
Other loan interest
Bank and other [oan interest

Amaortisation of debt 1ssue costs

Interest on obligations under finance leases
Shareholtter loan note interest

Other interest

Total Interest payahle

Less amounts included in the cost of qualifying assets
Unwinding of discount on provisions (see note 26)
Total finance costs

100 1 938 106 5
1250 124 4 1112
2251 2182 217 7
122 145 261
10 il 11
2785 244 8 2152
194 207 195
536.2 499 3 479 6
17 an .
18 17 16
5363 499 3 481 2

The shareholder loan notes carry fixed interest rates of between 13 0% and 14 0%, payment of which can be deferred at
the option of the Group subject to certain condittons, quakification of which are subject to bi-annual review (see note 23)

Borrowing costs included in the cost of qualifying assets dunng the year arose on the general borrowing pool and are
calculated by applying a capitalisation rate on expenditure on such assets equal to the Group's effective interest rate for

capital expenditure (2016 3 0%, 2015 3 0%, 2014 3 0%)
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11 Other gains and losses

Foreign exchange on financing (38 1) (17 5) 241
Fair value toss an denvatve financial mstruments 25 80 (18 1} {48 2}
Other gains and losses (0 1) {35 6) {24 1)
Exceptional profit on disposal of subsidiary 3t 14 4 - -
Exceptional cose out of swap amrangements 7 - - (7 Q)
Exceptional gain on disposal of swap oplions 7 - 10 -
Total other gains and losses 143 (34 6) 31 1)

Foreign exchange on financing anses on the revaluation of the Group's US doflar denominated debt (see note 23)

12 Tax on loss on ordinary activities

UK Corporation tax
- Current year (01) o1 02
- Adjustment in respect of pnor years - - -

Current year overseas tax - 02 03
Total current tax 01} 03 05

Deferred tax (see note 20)

- Onginatton and reversal of temporary differences {10 1) 51 (13 5)
- Change i recogrised deferred tax assets 17 620 794
- Deferred tax on pension habiity charged 6 income - - -
staterment
- Adjustment in respect of pnor years (16) - -
- Impact of rate ¢change - - 181
Tatal deferred tax - 569 840
Total Tax (credit) / charge for the year (0 1) 572 845

Corporation tax 1s calculated at 20 0% (2015 20 75%, 2014 22 5%) of the estimated taxable profit for the year Taxation
far other junsdictions 1s calculated at the rates prevailing n the respective junsdictions
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The (credit) / charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit in the income statement as follows

a &0

Loss before tax on continuing operations (249 6) (282 6) (2350)
Tax at the UK Corporation tax rate of 20 0% (2015 20 75%, 2014 (49 9) {58 6) {52 9)
22 5%)

Taxf :effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable 410 538 398
profi

Tax effect of income not taxabie in determining taxable profit 29 - -
Change in recognised deferred tax assets 117 620 794
Impact of change in tax rate - - 181
Total Tax (credit) / charge for the year 1) 572 845

In Finance Act 2013, the main rate of UK corporation tax was reduced from 23 0% to 21 0% with effect from 1 Apnl 2014
and to 20 0% from 1 Apni 2015 For the purpose of this current tax charge analysis a rate of 20 0% (2015 20 75%, 2014
22 50%) has been used Changes to the UK corporation tax rates were substantwely enacted as part of Finance Bull 2015
on 26 October 2015 These include reductians to the main rate to 19% from 1 Apnl 2017 and to 18% from 1 Apni 2020
UK deferred tax has therefore been considered at the reduced rate of 18 0% (2015 20 0%, 2014 20 0%, 2013 23 0%)
as this 1s the rate at which deferred tax balances are forecast to unwind

On 16 March 2016 it was announced that the main rate of UK corporation tax would be further reduced to 17 0% from 1
Apnl 2020 As this change had nat been substantively enacted at the balance sheet date its effect 1s not included in
these financial statements

In addition to the amount charged to the income statement, the following amounts relating to tax have been recogmised in
other comprehensive income

[
Current tax - - -
Daferred tax
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit and loss

- Re-measurement of net defined benefit plan liabdity - 12 04
Total tax recognised in other comprahensive income - 12 04

There were no (2015 none, 2014 none) deferred tax items that may be subsequently reclassified into profit and loss
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13 Dividends

Year anded Year ended Year snded
'35 Jun 2016] (30 5w 2014]
¢ per share Em Q€ parshare | Jf e per share) om
Now Dugital (East Midlands} Linnited 030 01 045 02 i .
South West Digital Rad:o Limited 0 42 i 015 02 . .
Total dividends payable to minority interests 01 04 . .

The above amounts represent dividends declared but not pard (2015 declared and pad) to non-controlling interest
shareholders by Group comparses No dwidends were paid to AGL shareholders

14 Goodwill

[ N L

Cost.

At 1 July 2013 20087

Additions 29

At 30 June 2014 and 30 June 2015 20116
Disposals (24 4)

At 30 June 2016 T 19872

Accumulatad impairment logses
At 1 July 2013 and 30 June 2014 -

Impaiment 232
At 30 June 2015 232
Disposals (22 8)

At 30 June 2016 N

04

Carrying amount

At 30 Junp 2016 19868
At 30 June 2015 1,988 4
At 30 June 2014 20118
AL 1 July 2013 2,0087

The Group disposed of £E1 8m of goodwill in association with the disposal of a subsidiary (see note 31) The amount
disposed of was treated as a cost of disposal and a reduction in the net profit recogmised n the income statement

Addtionally, the Group disposed of £22 8m of goodwill (fully impaired in the year ended 30 June 2015) in association
with the disposal of non-core areas of the business This pnmaniy reiated to the digposal of the Secure Solutions
business

impairment dunng the year ended 30 June 2015 relates to the write down of the carrying value of non-core busingss
areas and investments

Goodwil acquired in a bustness combination is allocated, at acquisihon, to the cash generating units (‘CGUs’) that are
expected to benefit from that business combinaton The CGUs that have associated goodwll are Terrestnal Broadcast,
Telecoms & M2M and Satelite & Media These are the smallest identifiable groups of assets that generate cash mflows
that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other groups of assets, and to which goodwill 15 allocated
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An analysis of the pre-tax discount rates used and the carmying value of goodwill as at the balance sheet date by the
prnncipal CGUs 1s shown as follows

L]

Terrestnal Broadcast 1,236 1 1,236 1 1,236 1 1,236 1
Telecoms & M2M 647 2 648 8 668 6 663 6
Satellite and Media 103 5 1035 106 9 104 0
Total 77% 1,9868 0% 19884 79% 20116 69% 20087

The Group tests goadwil! annually for impaiment, or more frequently if there are indications that goodwill might be
imparred The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined from value-in-use calculatons (‘'ViU') The key
assumptions for the VIU calculations are those regarding the discount rates, growth rates and expected changes to cash
flows during the penod for which management has detailed plans Management estimates discount rates using pre-tax
rates that refliect current market assessments of the time value of money and the nsks specific to the CGUs Growth
rates are based on internal and external growth forecasts Changes to cash flows are based on past practices and
expectations of future changes in the market

Recoverable amount

The value In use of each CGU 1s determmed from the cash flow forecasts denved from the most recent financial
forecasts approved by the Board for the next five years They reflect management's expectations of revenue, EBITDA
growth, capital expenditure and working capital based on past expenence and future expectations of performance

Drscount ratg
The pre-tax discount rate applhed to the cash flow forecasts are denved using the capital asset pncing model for
comparable businesses The assumptons used are benchmarked to externally available data

Terminal growth rates

The terrminal growth rate 15 determined based on the long-term growth rates of the regions in which the CGU operates
(2016 2 1%, 2015 2 3%, 2014 2 1%, 2013 2 1%) The growth rate has been benchmarked against externally available
data This rate does not exceed the average long-term growth rate for the relevant markets

Sensitivities
There s significant headroom n all CGUs For Satellite and Media, the value m use exceeds the carrying value of the
CGU by approximately £50 0m The following changes to key assumptions (in 1sclation) would cause the recoverable
amount to fall below the carrying value

- An mncrease in the discount rate of 300 basis points,

- Areduction in the terminal growth rate of 270 basis points, or

- Shortfalls in trading performance agamnst forecast resulting i termunal cash flows decreasing by £75m or more

For Terrestnal Broadcast and Telecoms & M2M no reasonably possible changes in the key assumptions would cause
the carrying amount to the CGUs to exceed the recoverable amount
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15 Other intangible assets

m Devslopment] Access rights W m

casts

[£'m] & &D o )
Cost
At 1 July 2013 46 28 231 428 733
Addirons 22 31 - 157 210
Disposals - - - (10) (1
At 30 June 2014 68 59 231 575 933
Additions a7 15 - 24 46
At 30 June 2015 75 74 231 599 979
Addiions - 70 - 104 17 4
Disposals - {(59) - (0 4) 63)
At 30 June 2016 75 85 231 699 1090
Accumulated amortisation and
impairment
At 1 July 2013 26 16 158 199 399
Amortisation 086 03 15 81 105
Disposals - - - 10 (10
At 30 June 2014 32 19 173 270 494
Amortisation 06 10 o8 56 80
impairment - i3 - - 33
At 30 June 2015 38 62 181 326 607
Amortisation 05 14 08 77 104
Disposals - (58) - (0 4) 62)
At 30 June 2016 43 18 189 399 649
Carrying amount
At 30 Juneo 2016 32 67 42 300 44 1
AL 30 June 2015 a7 12 50 273 a2
At 30 June 2014 36 40 58 305 439
At 1 July 2013 20 12 73 229 334

Development costs in respect of products and services that are being developed by the Group are being capitalised in
accordance with I1AS 38 These are amortised over their expected useful life once the product or service has been
commercially launched

Other intangible assets are recognised at cost and are amortised over thew estimated useful lives
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16 Property, plant and equipment

Freetiold fand Leasshoid Assets under the
and bujldings buildings i

£ &
Cost
At 1 July 2012 3133 1323 1,444 1 1830 20827
Acquisitions - - G3 - g3
Addibons 15 - 09 1654 3 1667
Transfers 107 64 204 5 {221 6) -
Disposals (83) {0 86) 327 - {41 6)
At 30 June 2014 AMr2 1381 1617 1 1357 22081
Additions - - 154 162 3 1777
Transfers 95 22 104 4 (116 1) -
Drsposals o on 21 0) - 218
At 30 June 2015 326 6 1396 17159 1819 23640
Additions - - 110 1557 1667
Transfers 26 78 2272 (237 6) .
Disposals {10) {09} {33 8 - {357
At 30 June 2016 3282 146 5 14,9203 1000 24950
Accumulated depreciation and
impaitment
1 July 2013 162 349 397 4 - 4485
Depreciaton 54 48 1040 - 1142
Disposals (39 05) (26 8) - 312)
At 30 June 2014 177 /82 474 8 - 8315
Depreciation 48 44 104 2 - 113 4
Impaiment 04 01 30 - 35
Disposals 0 1) o7 {202} - (210)
At 30 June 2015 228 43¢ 5616 - 627 4
Depreciation 53 67 1174 - 129 4
Disposals 07 Q7) (28 2) - (30 6)
At 30 June 2016 274 490 6498 - 7262
Carrying amount
At 30 June 2016 3008 975 1,270 5 100 0 1,768 8
At 30 June 2015 ag3s 966 11543 181 8 1,7366
AL 30 June 2014 2995 989 11425 1357 16766
AL 1 July 2013 297 1 g7 4 1,046 7 183 0 1,634 2

Freehold land mncluded above but not depreciated amounts to £180 Om (2015 £1790m, 2014 £179 0m, 2013 £178 5m)

The Group’s current and non-current assets have been pledged as secunty under the terms of the Group's external debt
facilities (see note 30) In addition, the Group's obhigations under finance leases (see note 24) are secured by the lessors’
title of the leased assets, which have a carrying amount of £6 2m (2015 £6 7m, 2014 £7 1m, 2013 £7 6m)

Dunng the year, £1 7m (2015 £17m, 2014 ni)) of interest was capitalised, as set out in nete 10 The carrying value of
capitattsed interest mcluded within property, plant and equipment was £20 5m (20156 £22 2m, 2014 £205m, 2013
£20 5m}

At 30 June 2016, the Group had entered mto contractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and
equipment amounting to £22 4m (2015 £33 7m, 2014 £44 4m) — see note 30 for further details

ncluded within plant and equipment are telecommunications assets inmally recognised on a fair value basis at a value of
£20 6m (2015 £18 7m, 2014 £4 7m, 2013 mil) and accumulated depreciation of £36m (2015 £17m, 2014 £02m,
2013 nif} Farr value was determined using observable inputs (fawr value tierarchy Level 2)
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17 Interest in associates and joint ventures

In addition to the subsidiary undertakings (see the notes to the Company financial statements on page 124) the Group
holds the following interests in associates and joint ventures

Country. of
incorporation

Company]

[Principal activities

Registered office

&

Joint ventures

United
Sound Digital Limited Kingdom
Arts Alhance Media Bntish Virgin
Investment Limited Islands

Uruted
Youview TV Limited Kingdom
Assocrate undertakings

Uruted
Muxco Limited Kingdom
DTT Multiplex Operators United
Limited Kingdom

Urited
Digita! UK Limited Kingdom

United
DTV Services Limited Kingdom

United
MXR Holdings Liwited Kingdem

Ownership and operation of
UK DAB radio muttiplex
licence

Digital cinema distnbution

Open source IPTV
development

Bidding for UK DAB digital
radio muitiplex icences

Transmission services
Transmission services
Freeview market services

Transmission services

Media House Peterborough
Business Park, Lynch Wood,

Peterborough, United Kingdom,

PE2 6EA

Landmark House, Hammersmith
Bndge Road, London, W6 SEJ

10 Lower Thames Street Third

Floor, London, EC3R 6YT

9Ba, Curtain Road, London
EC2A 3AA

27 Mortimer Street, London,
England, WiT 3JF

27 Mortimer Street, London,
England, W1T 3JF

2nd Floor 27 Mortimer Street,
London, England, W1T 3JF

30 Leicester Square, London,
WC2H 7LA

31-Dec

30-Jun

31-Mar

31-Dec

36-Jun

30-Jun

31-May

30-Jun

40 0%

24 99%

14 30%

250%

250%

250%

200%

12 0%

-

30 June 2015

Interest in asscciates and joint ventures

Amounts relating to associates and joint ventures

Non-current assets

Current assets

Current habiibies

Non-current liabilities

Net assets

Group's share of net assets of associate

Total interest 10 associates and joint ventures

Amounts relating to assacrates and jont ventures

Revenug
Prafit after tax

Group’s share of profit after tax of assoclate

01 01 88 as
kYl 381 46 4 354
442 373 204 195
(28 6) (23 1) (223 (14 4)
(28 5) (34 3) (44 3) (357
189 180 92 48

47 485 23 12

48 46 111 100
384 480 546

05 97 29

01 24 12

Dunng the year ended 30 June 2015 the Group recorded £8 7m impairment against its interast in associates and joint
ventures recognised in the Income sfatement

The Directors consider the carrying value of the Group's mvestments on an annual basis, or more frequently should
indicators arise, and believe that the carmying values of the investments are supported by the underlying trade and net

assets
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18 Trade and other receivables

30 June 2016 un 30 Junw 2014

Trade recevabies 157 723 743 8g8
Amounis recewvable from joint ventures DS 05 03 01
Other recevables g1 58 104 43
Prepayments 788 68 4 632 740
Accrued income Q07 878 618 480
Amounts recevable from finance lease arrangements (see 24 26 30 32
nole 19)

297 2 2374 2130 2194

The ageing of the Group's net trade recevables which are past due but not impaired 1 as follpws

30 June 2015

30 June 201s I

“ i Juty 2013

____Cm Ga o)
Up to 30 days overdue e 111 38 as
Up to 90 days overdue 56 33 56 77
Between 51 and 150 days overdue 20 03 04 18
More than 150 days gverdue 07 - - 20
183 147 98 200

Trade receivables are stated after deducting allowances for doubtful debts, as follows

i 30 June 2015

LE™) ]
Allowance at 1 July 98 149 14
Amounts utihised (2 5) (43 68
Provided / (reversed) dunng the year 22 (0 8) 103
Aflowance at 30 June 95 98 149

The Group's policy is to recommend providing for trade recewables outstanding for more than 90 days beyond the
agreed terms, or where the business environment indicates a specific nsk Management will make an assessment of the
lave! of provision based on the Group policy Adjustments to the calculated level of provision will be made accordingly

In determining the recoverability of a irade recewvable the Group considers any change i the credit quality af the trade
recervable from the date credit was intially granted up to the reporting date Before accepting any new customer, the
Group uses an extemal credit sconng system to assess the potential customer’s credit quality For further information on
how the Group manages credit nisk see note 25
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19 Finance lease receivables

30 June 2015

30 June 2014 ]

Gross amounts receivable under finance leases
Withim one year

In the second to fifth years inclusive

After five years

Less uneamed finance income
Present vaiue of minmum lease payments receivable

Not amounts receivable under finance leases
within one year

In the second to fifth years inclusive

After five yaars

Present value of mimimum lease payments recewvable

Analysed as

Non-current finance lease receivables
Current finance lease recewables
Total finance leases

04 04 05 05
19 19 19 24
12 18 23 23
35 41 47 52
LR ) an 20
24 28 30 32
02 g2 02 o2
12 10 09 11
140 14 19 19
24 26 30 32
22 24 28 30
02 02 02 02
24 26 30 32

The group entered into finance leasing arrangements for certain sites  The average outstanding term of finance leases
entered in o 1s 7 8 years at 30 June 2016 (2015 8 B years, 2014 8 8 years, 2013 10 8 years)
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20 Deferred tax

The movement on the deferred tax account 15 shown below

Qpening asset - 557 1393
Charged to the income statement - (56 9) (84 0)
Credited to other comprehensive income - 12 04
Ciosing asset - ~ 557

The movement In deferred income tax assets and habihites dunng the year, without taking nto consideration the
offsetting of balances within the same tax junsdiction, is as follows

AL 1 July 2013 - 2123 2123
Charged to the income statement - {116 0) (116 0)
At 30 June 2014 - 96 3 963
Charged to the mcome staternent - {71 0) (710)
At 30 June 2015 - 253 253
Credited / (charged) to the income statement 139 (25 3) (114)
At 30 June 2016 139 - 139

Daferred lax fiabililies Accelerated tax Other’
[ -] depreciation temporary

differences

2] 2
At 1 July 2013 {60 0) (130 (73 0)
Credited to the income statement 298 22 320
Credited to other comprehensive income - 04 04
At 30 June 2014 {302) {104 (40 6)
Credited / (charged) to the incame staternent 216 (7 5) 141
Credited to other comprehensive income - 12 12
At 30 June 2015 (8 6) {16 7) (25 3)
Credited lo the income statement 86 28 114
At 30 June 2016 - {139 {139)

Deferred tax assets are not recognised untess it 1s probable that there are sufficient taxable profits against which they will
be realsed Due to the leve! of tax deductible interest and capital allowances avallable, the group has an unrecogmised
deferred tax asset of £205 4m (2015 £216 5m, 2014 £154 6m, 2013 £86 5m) This 1s In respect of tax logses £39 9m
{2015 £42 3m, 2014 £39 5m, 2013 £23 1m), denvatve financial instruments £163 8m (2015 £174 2m, 2014 £115 1m,
2013 £63 4m) and accelerated tax depreciation £1 7m (2015 £nil, 2014 £nil, 2013 £nil} These deferred tax assets
may be carried forward indefimitely

This value has been calculated based on the UK corporation tax rate of 18 0% (2015 20 0%, 2014 20%, 2013 23%).
the rate substantively enacted at the balance sheet date

No deferred tax liability 1s recognised on temporary differences of £nd (2015 £nil, 2014 £nil) relating to the unremitted
earnings of overseas subsidianies as the Group 1s able to control the tmings of the reversal of these temporary
differences and it 1s probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeabie future Temporary differences ansing in
connection with interests in associates are insignificant
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21 Cash and cash equivalents

1'July 2013

Cash at bank 174 172 179 1286
Short term deposits 236 528 510 1079
Restncted cash 285 285 285 285
Total cash and cash equivalents 695 985 574 1490

The restncted cash balance relates to a reserve account required to cover one semi-annual interest payment on the
£600 Om of jJunsor bonds matunng n 2020

22 Trade and other payables

30 June 2016 §

Currant

Trade payables 555 444 775 68 4
Taxahion and social secunty a3 258 199 188
Other payables 73 80 70 57
Accruals a7 7 1083 117 4 129 4
Deferred revenue 1823 184 1 166 6 1619
Total current trade and other payables 3731 368 6 388 4 384 2
Non-current

Other payables 01 01 0z 12
Deferred revenue i720 1197 107 1 116 2
Total non-current trade and other payables 1721 1198 1073 117 4
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23 Borrowings

Within current liabilities
Finance lease obligations (see note 24)
Bank facility

Accrued interest on shareholder loan
notes

Borrowings due within one year

Wwithin non-current liabllities
Bank loans
- Senror debt
- Issue costs
- Capial expenditure facifity
- Other faciities
Other loans
- Servor bond, notes and private
placements
- Jumor bonds
- Issue costs
Shareholder loan notes
Finance lease obligations ($ee note 24)

Borrowings due after more than ane
year

Anatysis of total borrowings by currency
Stering

US Dollar

Total borrowings

Stering denominated
Sterfling denominated
Stering denommated

Steding dertommated
Steriing dencminated
Stering denominated
Stering denormnated

Sterfing denominated
US doltar denominated
Sterting denominated
Sterfing dengmmnated
Sterding denomtnated
Sterling denominated

04 04 03 0s

50 . . .
1,036 5 7579 5130 207§
1,041 9 758 3 5133 2980
839.9 8377 1,0127 1,181 0
7235 7235 1.0235 1,186 0
(45 (6 5) (113 (250)
1260 120 0 - -
09 07 05 -
2,2238 21794 1,858 9 1,716 1
1,3770 1,377 0 1,077 0 9130
266 5 2277 2104 2349
6000 6000 6000 600 0
(197) (25 3) (28 5) (31 8)
12736 1,2738 12738 1,2739
130 134 137 140
4,350 3 4,304 3 4,159 1 4,1650
51257 4,834 9 4,462 0 4,226 1
2665 2277 2104 2349
5,392 2 5,062 6 4,672 4 4,463.0

The fair value of the quoted senior bonds based upon observable market pnces was £996 Om (2015 £983 2m, 2014
£945 2m, 2013 £736 6m) whilst their carrying value was £914 Om (2015 £914 Om, 2014 £914 Om, 2013 £750 Om}

The fair value of the quoted junior bonds based upon observable market prices was £642 1m (2015 £662 5m, £688 1m,
2013 £623 7m) whilst their carrying value was £600 Om (2015 £600 Om, £600 Om, 2013 £600 Om)

The shareholder loan notes carry a fixed rate of interest ranging between 13 0% and 14 0% applicable to the capital and
un-paid interest which can be deferred at the option of the Group subject to certain condions, qualification of which are
subject to bi-annual review The Group has exercised thus option to defer interest payments since June 2009

The weighted average interest rate of borrowings (excluding shareholder mterest as descnbed above) is 7 86% (2015

7 82%, 2014 7 88%)
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An analysis of total borrowings (excluding 1ssue costs) by matunty 1s as follows

30 June 2016 JIL 30 June 2015
[£'m] [£'m] 2
Borrowings failing due wathin
One year 1,041 9 7583 5133 2980
One to five years 1.639 5 1,534 2 764 0 1,296 0
More than five years 27350 2,801 9 34349 29258
Total 5,416 4 5,094 4 4,7122 4,519 8

Bank loans are compnsed from the Group’s senior debt Other loans are compnsed from the Group’s senior bonds
and juruor honds

Senior debt includes 5-year term bank debt of £353 5m, due in 2018, barrowed by Arqiva Senior Finance Ltd under a
Senior Facility Agreement (2015 £353 5m, 2014 £6853 5m, 2013 £786 Om) The loan has a floating interest rate which
ranges between LIBOR + 2 5% to LIBOR + 4 00% by the end of the agreement The Group also holds a £480 O0m 10 year
term loan from institutional mvestors (drawn in January 2014) held by Arqiva Financing No 1 Ltd, and a £180 Om 10 year
term loan from the European Investment Bank (‘EIB'), again held by Arqiva Financing No 1 Ltd

The Group has £575 0m (2015 £580 Om, 2014 £700 Om, 2013 £700 Om) undrawn facihties available These facilites
are at floating interest rates For further information on the Group's hquidity risk management, sge note 25

In December 2013, as part of the Group's smart metenng contract we established two further facilittes in Arqiva Smart
Financing Linmited, a Group company The Comms Hub Receivables Purchasing (‘CHuURP’) facility allows the Group to
borrow up to £30 Om, the Fee Facility allows the Group to borrow up to £16m At 30 June 2016 a balance of £0 9m
(2015 £07m, 2014 £0 5m, 2013 ml) has been drawn aganst the fee facility, this loan has floating interest rates of
LIBOR + 1 20% and s fuily repayable on 30 June 2017 There were no drawdowns on the CHuRP faciity as at 30 June
2016 (2015 nil, 20114 mi), and this foan has floating interest rates which range from LIBOR + 1 20% to LIBOR + 1 75%
dunng the imbal six years of the facilty, increasing to LIBOR + 2 50% at the end of the agreement in June 2026

Senior bonds, notes and pnvate placements include the 1ssuance of £750 Om Notes raised in February 2013 and
£164 Om Notes raised in February 2014 by Arqiva Financing Plc, each of which are hsted on the London Stock
Exchange These are rated BBB by Standard & Poors and Fitch These Notes have fixed interest rates which range
between 4 04% and 5 34% and are repayable between June 2018 and December 2032

QOf the remaiming senior bonds, £300 Om were raised in July 2014 at a caupon rate of LIBOR + 2 1% through a new 15-
year amortising US Private Placement debt 1ssue and £398 5m were raised n June 2013 by Arqiva PP Financing Plc
through a US Pnvate Placement transaction 1n a combined stering and US dollar denominated offering These Notes
have fixed interest rates which range between 4 101% and 4 420% and have amoriising repayment profiles commencing
December 2018 with an end matunty date of June 2025

All of the above financing instruments have covenants attached, pnncipally an interest cover ratic and a debt leverage
ratio, and benefit from secunty over substantally all of the Group's assets under a Whole Business Secuntisation
structure  The Group continues to comply with all covenant requirements

Junior bonds of £6000m represent amounts raised from the issuance of Notes by Arqva Broadcast Finance
Pic These Notes have a fixed interest rate of 9 5% and are repayable in March 2020 These Notes are histed on the
Luxembourg Market and have interest cover and debt leverage covenants attached The Group continues to comply with
all covenant requirements

All shareholder loan notes are unsecured, are histed on the Channe! Islands Stock Exchange and are repayable
between March 2021 and March 2022, they cannot be called upon early The shareholder loan notes carry a fixed rate of
interest ranging between 13% and 14% which can be defeired at the option of the Group subject to certain conditions,
applicable to the captal and un-paid interest The Group has exercised this option to defer interest payments since June
2009 and a balance of £1,036 5m (2015 £757 8m, 2014 £513 Om, 2013 £297 5m) s held in retation to accrued interest

There have been no breaches of the terms of the loan agreements during the current or previous year
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24 Obligations under finance leases

Future mintmum payments under finance leases are as follows

Within one year 14 14 13 16
In more than one year, but not more than five years 58 57 56 55
After five years 149 16 4 179 193
Total gross payments 221 235 248 264
Less finance charges ncluded above 87 97 {10 8 (119
Total obligations under finance leases 134 138 140 145
Analysed as

Amounts due for settlement withun one year 04 a4 a3 as
Amounts due for settlement after one year 130 134 137 140
Totaf finance ieases 134 138 140 145

The farr vaiue of the Group's lease ocbligations 18 approximately equal to their carrying amount

The group's abligations under finance leases are secured by the lessors’ nghts over the leased assets

25 Financial instruments and risk management

Capital nsk management
The Group manages its capital 1o ensure that entibes in the Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the retum to shareholders through the optrmusation of the debt and equity balance

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt (as set out in note 29, see note 21 for cash and cash eguivalents
and note 23 for borrowings) and equity of the Group (compnsing 1ssued capital and share premium, reserves, retained
earnings and non-controlling interests)

To the exient the Group has arrangements with regulators and hcence prowiders, they may include certain capial
requirements

Significant accounting poficies

Detals of signficant accounting policies and methods adopted (including critena for recogniion, the basis of
measurement and the bases for recogniton of income and expenses) for each class of financial asset and financial
liabiity are disclosed n full in note 3 (q)

The Group's denvativas (i e interest rate swaps, cross-currency swaps and swap options) are measured on a fair value
through profit and ioss basis Whiist the Group’s denvatives act as an effective hedge in economic tems, hedge
accounting pnnciples are not apphed This means that the Group's denvatives are recognised at their nsk-adjusted farr
value (i @ nsk-adjusted Mark-to-Market value) at the date they are entered mto and are revalued at each balance sheet
date, with gains and losses being reported separately in the income statement as ‘other gains and losses’ Net amounts
pad in the year {excluding termmation amounts) on interest rate swaps (together with similar amounts under the cross
currency and index hnked swaps) are reported as a component of net bank and other loan interest within interest
payable

Financial nsk management

The Group's Treasury function provides services to the business, co-ordinates access to domestic and international
financial markets, monitors and manages the financial nsks relatng to the cperations of the Group using financial
nstruments wherever it 1s appropnate 1o do so The Treasury functon reporis directly into the Chief Finanoial Officer and
the Group's Board of Directors and the Audit Commuttee, an independent function with & scope that includes monitoring
the risks and poiicies implemented to mitigate nsk exposures The main rnsks addressed by financial nstruments are
interest rate nsk and foreign currency exchange nsk The Group's policies in respect of these nsks, wiich remam
unchanged throughout the year, are set out on the following page
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The Group enters nte a vanety of denvative financial instruments to manage 1ts exposure o foreign currency and
interest rate nsk, ncluding
- Interest rate swaps, including inflaton-inked interest rate swaps, to mibgate the nsk of movement i interest
rates,
- Cross-currency swaps to mitigate the nsk of currency exposures on foreign denominated borrowings, and
- Forward foreign exchange contracts to manage exchange nsks ansing from transactiona) foreign exchange
exposures

The Group does not enter into or trade financial instruments, including denvatve finangial instruments, for speculative
purposes

Foreign currency nsk management

The Group pnncipatly operates from UK sites and predominantly in the UK market, but has some overseas subsidianes
and transactions denominated n foreign currencies  While some customer and supphier contracts are denominated
other currencies (mainly U S dollars and euros), the majonty of the Group's turnover and costs are stering based and
accordingly exposure to foreign exchange nsk 1s imited

Foreign currency exchange nsk can be subdivided into two components, transactional nsk and translatron risk

- Transactional nisk, The Group's policy 1s to hedge matenal transactional currency exposures via the use of
forwand foreign exchange contracts The measurement and contro! of this nsk is monitored on a Group—wide
basis

- Translation nisk The Group translates overseas results and net assets in accordance with the accounting
policy in note 3 Given the Group predominantly operates i the UK, there is a relabvely small exposure with
overseas entiies accounting for only 0 5% {2015 0 1%, 2014 1 1%) of operating profit and 0 1% (2015 0 1%,
2014 0 2%, 2013 0 1%) of total assets for the Group

The sterling equivalents of the carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency denominated monetary assets and
liabilttes {excluding hedged t} S dollar-denominated senior bonds) at the year-end were as follows

30 Juno 2014 Il 30 June 2015]

Monetary assets*

- US Dollar 69 68 67 85
- Euro 19 170 2823 387
- Other (including SGD and HKD*) 05 03 a1 -
Total 193 241 351 45 2

Monetary lfabilities

- US Dollar 28 (42) (4 3) (6 8)
- Ewo (102) @1 {116 (16 1)
- Other including SGO and HKG*) o1 o1 oy -
Total 131) (12 4) {18 0) {22 9}

* refers 10 Singapore dohar and Hong Kong dollar, being the most frequently transacted currencies within other manetary assets and hiabilives
Foreign currency denominated cash balances have a weighted average interest rate of 0 0% (2015 0 0%, 2014 0 0%)

Dunng the year cross currency swaps {(nominal value USD 358 Om) were used to fix the exchange rate to $1 S2/£1 in
relation to U S dollar-denominated senior notes (nominal value USD 358 Om) This provides an effective economic
hedge of the foreign currency impact on the Sterling cost of future interest and capital repayment obligations

After taking into account our hedging activiies, management does not cansider there to be a matenal residual exposure
to exchange rates Accordingly no sensitivity analysis has been presented

Interest rate nsk management

The Group has vanable rate bank debt and uses interest rate swaps ('\RS’) and inflation-hinked swaps (ILS’) to hedge its
exposure to nsmg interest rates  The Group mamtains a hedging policy to manage interest rate nsk and to ensure the
certainty of future mterest cash lows The Group has fixed rate hedging, sphit between IRS and LS IRS convert
vanable rate interest costs to fixed rate interest costs while ILS convert fixed or vanable rate interest costs to RPi-linked
costs, which fluctuate in ine with the RPI index as do a porton of the Group's revenue contracts These swaps are
entered into on terms (Including matunty) that muror the debt instrument they hedge, and therefore act as an effective
economic hedge
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As the Group uses hedging to maintain fixed interest rates on all of its matenal borrowings (excluding revolving facilities),
there 1s mumal exposure on the interest expense to interest rate movements A nse or fall in interest rates would
therefore not matenally impact the interest expense payable by the Group

Liquidity nsk management

To ensure It has sufficient available funds for working capital requirements and planned growth, the Group maintains
cash reserves and access to undrawn committed facilites to cover forecast requirements Details of the Group's debt
matunty profile are shown on page 25 The Group carefully manages the counterparty credit nsk on iquid funds and
denvative financial instruments with balances currently spread across a range of major financial inshtutions, which have
satisfactory credit ratings assigned by intemational credit rating agencies  The levals of credit sk are momtored thraugh
the Group’'s on-going nsk management processes, which inciude a reguiar review of counterparty credit rabings  Risk in
this area 15 imited further by setbng a maximum level and term for deposuts with any single counterparty

The table below outhnes the additional financing faciibes available to the Group

30 Jure 2016 JI 36 Jure 2015 JRl 30 June 2014 1 July 2013
o G &n & :
Secured bank faclites
-~ Amount utihsed 1260 1200 - -
-~ Amount unutiised 5750 58090 7000 7000
Total 7000 700 0 7000 7000

The table below shows the matunty profile of the Group’s hedge denvative financial instruments (excluding swap options,
and cross-currency swaps) and hedged borrowings Amounts are stated at thewr nominal amounts

[30 June 2015]

30 June 2016

Derivative flnancial instruments
Falling due within

One year - - - R
One tg five years 7035 7035 853 5 1,187 5
More than five years 1,632 2 1.632 2 1,682 2 1,148 2
Total 2,3357 2,3357 2,3357 23357
Borrowings

Faling due within

One year - - - -
Gne to five years 7035 7035 6535 1,187 5
More than five years 16326 16325 16825 1,148 5
Total 2,336 0 2,336 0 2,336 0 2,336 0

When debt has been refinanced the Group has also restructured the associated swaps 10 reflect the new matunty profile

Credit nsk management

The Group 1s exposed to credit nsk on customer recewvables, wihich 15 managed through credit-checking procedures pnor
to taking on new customers and tigher nsk customers paying in advance of services being provided Performance 1s
closely monitored to ensure agreed service levels are maintained, reducing the level of quened payments and mitigatng
the nisk of uncollectable dabts

Financial instruments

With the exception of denvative fnancial mstruments (which are recogmised and measured at far value through profit
and ioss) the Group’s financial assets and financiai llabifites are recogrised and measured following the foans and
recevables recogrition categary

The weighted average interest rate of fixed rate financial liabiiies at 30 June 2016 was 6 10% (2015 6 10%, 2014
5 83%) and the weighted average penod of funding was b 8 years (2015 7 4 years, 2014 7 5 years, 2013 6 9 years)

Within the Group’'s financial habilites were borrowings of £5,382 2m (2015 £5,062 8m, 2014 £4,6724m, 2013
£4,463 0m) (see note 23}, which includes £1,023 5m (2015 £1,023 5m, 2014 £1,023 5m, 2013 £1,023 5mj with floating
rate \nterest and the remainder with fixed rate interest {pnor to the hedging arrangements descnbed previousty)

Argive Group Limited Annual ceport and consolldated financia! statements
Company regsiraion ao 05254000 Year ended 30 June 2016
94



Dervative financial instruments
The Group seeks to manage the exposures of its debt payment obhgations through a combination of indexed linked,
interest rate and cross currency swaps

At the year end, the Group held nterest rate swaps with notional amounts of £1,023 2m which hedge the nterest
obhgations of the Group's vanable rate debt The average fixed rate on these instruments 1s 6 213% £353 2m of these
nstruments have mandatory break ciauses co-termuinus with the 2018 maturity date of the Group's floating rate term
loan, whilst the remaining £670 Om have matunty dates between 2024 and 2029 which match the matunty dates of the
Institutional Term Loan {('ITL") and EIB loans and the amortising 2014 US Pnvate Placement i1ssue

The Group aiso holds index hnked swaps with notional amounts of £1,312 5m where the Group receives floating and
pays fixed interest obligations to an average rate of 2 906% indexed with RPI The notional amounts of these swaps
increase with RP! and these accretion amounts are cash settled annually, most recently in June 2016 (£26 Om) All of
these nstruments have a matunty date of Apnl 2027, however £235 Om of these have a mandatory break clause in 2023
These instruments have been entered into to hedge the Group's fixed rate debt (namely fixed rate stering bonds and the
2013 US Pnvate Placement 1ssue) and in order to ensure that the cash flow charactenstics align with these instruments,
the Group has entered into £1,312 5m of fixed to floating rate interest rate swaps to match the cash flows on both the
fixed rate debt instruments and the index inked swaps set out above

In addition, the Group has entered into USD 358 Om of cross-currency swaps to fix the Sterling cost of future interest and
capital repayment obligations relating to the USD tranche of the 2013 Pnvate Placement at an exchange rate of 1 52

The fair value of the interest rate, inflation and cross currency swaps at 30 June 2016 excluding the infiaton swap
principal accretion of Emit (2015 £nil, 2014 £58 9m, 2013 £20 2mj), 1s a habihty of £1,157 2m {2015 £1,213 1m, 2014
£1,208 8m, 2013 £1,201 5m) This farr value 1s calculated using a nsk-adjusted rate

The Group holds Swap Options with a total notional principal amount of £353 2m (2015 £410 7m, 2014 £843 2m) The
options are exercisable at matunty in February 2018, and hedge the Group's exposure for the duration of the interest rate
swaps to a decline m LIBOR to below 1%

The following table details the farr value of financial instruments recognised on the statement of financial position within
non-current liabilities

30 June 2016 [l 3¢ Juns 2015 Il 30 Jun

G0 & @

Interest rate swaps (441 9) (355 5) {296 4) {300 Q)
Inflabion-hinked interest rate swaps (including principal accretion of £nil, (746 4) (842 8) {946 7) (914 2)
2015 Erl, 2014 £59 9m, 2013 £20 2m)
Swap Options 109 28 17 29
Cross-currency swaps 311 (14 8) (26 6) (7 5)
Total (1,146 3) (1,210 3} (1,267 Gj (1,218 8)
Change in fair value recognised in the income statement

- Aftnbutable to changes i market condshons (27 0) {14 D) 398

- Aftnbutable to changes in percewed credit nsk 650 (41) (88 Q)
Total gain / {lass) recognised in the income statament 380 {18 1) (48 2)
Less cash setllernent of pnneipal accretion on inflation-linked swaps 260 749 -
Total change in fair value 64 0 56 8 (48 2)

Where possible, the Group seeks to match the matunty of any denvative contracts with that of debt instruments that it
has issued !n some of the Group's denvative instruments, break clauses have been included to both match underlying
facility matunties and to optimise the avaiiability and cost of hedging hnes with our denvative counterparties
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Fair value hierarchy
Financial instruments that are measured subsequent to inihal recognition at fair vaiue are grouped into tevels 1 fo 3

based on the degree to which the fair value 1s observable

- Level 1 far value measurements are those denved from quoted pnces (unadjusted) i active markets for
identical assets or iabilities,

- Level 2 fair value measurements are those denved from nputs other than quoted pnces included within Level 1
that are observable for the asset or habiity, either directly (1 & as pnces) or wndirectly (1 e denved from pnces),
and

- Leve! 3 far value measurements are those denved from valvation techmques that include inputs for the asset or
itability that are not based on observable market data {unobservable inputs)

Interest rate swaps, inflation rate swaps, swap options and cross-currency swaps (as disciosed on page 95) are ali
classed as level 2 on the far value hierarchy In each case the items are valued based upon discounted cash flow
Future cash flows are estimated based on forward (interestinfiation/exchange) rates cbservable from rates and yield
curves at the end of the reporting penod, and contract rates, discounted at a nsk-adjusted rate
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26 Provisions

Decommissioning Restructuring BRI Rermediation F Ouror B
o &w  Gu @ o)

At 1 July 2013 22 372 35 104 08 54 1
income statement expense 13 62 75 - - 90
Unwind of discount - 16 - - - 16
Reteased € 5 {01} - (F:)] {03 an
Utihsed (10} 02 (78 @) - 91)
At 30 June 2014 20 38,7 32 35 0s 479
Income statement expense 36 - 114 04 - 154
Unwind of discaunt - 17 - - - 17
Released - - (0 3) - - 03
Utilised 02) {0 6) {8 5) - - 93)
At 30 June 2015 5.4 39.8 58 39 05 554
tncome statement expense 23 o5 28 08 04 69
Additions created through property, - 82 - - - 82
piant and equipment
Unwind of discount 01 19 - - - 18
Released {10) (100 - - - {20)
Utiised {15) - {82) - - 97
At 30 June 2416 51 434 05 47 [15-] 606

130 June 2015 J 30 June 2014 JI 1 July 2013

I Ga £ 82

Analysed as
Current 80 113 74 72
Nort-current 528 44 1 405 46 9

606 554 479 54 1

The onerous contract provision relates to suppher contracts where the costs are expected to exceed the benefiis, and
onerous lease confracts where the buldings are empty but lease costs are being incurred The provision 1s expected to
be utihsed over the next five years

Provisions are made for decommissioning and asset at nsk costs where the Group has an obligation to restore sites and
the cost of restoration 1s not recoverable from third parties The prowvision 1s 10 relation to assets of which the remaning
useful economic life ranges up to 18 years

The restructunng provision relates to the costs of a reorganisation of Group operations which will be utiised dunng the
next financiat year

The remediation provision represents the cost of works identified as being required across a number of the Group's sites
and 1s expected to be utihsed over the next ane to three years

Other provisions represent a variety of smaller items which are expected o be utlised over the next one to three years
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27 Share capital

] 30 June 2015

30 June 2016

Authonised, 1ssued and fully pad
653,928,000 ordinary shares of £1 each

6539 6539 6539 6539

28 Share premium account

30 June 2016  Jus

Share premium

3156 56 31546 3156

Asgiva Group Limited
Company registraton no 05254001
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29 Notes to the cash flow statement

Reconciliation from loss for the year to net cash from operating actiwvities

Cperating profit 2711 248 6 2746
Adgjustments for

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 129 4 113 4 1142
Amartisatton of intangible assets 104 8¢ 105
Impairment - 389 -
Loss an disposal of property, plant and equipment 03 03 24
Other income 02 - -
Share of results of associates and joint ventures 1) {2 4) {12)
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 4109 406 8 400 5
Decreasef(increase) in receivables (717 {29 1) 21
Increasef{decrease; n payables 323 {31) {52 3)
Increasef(decrease) in provisions 28 57 TN
Cash generated fram operating activitles 3743 3799 3416
Taxes refundedi{paid} 02 {0 5) {0 4)
Net cash from operating activities 374§ 3794 341.2

Analysis of changes 'n net debt {compnsing shareholder loan notes excluding accrued interest thereon, bank and other
loans and finance lease obligations offset by cash and lpans to joint ventures

| Non-cash changes At 30 June 2016
2

© o
Cash at bank and cash equivalents 21 98 5 {290) - 695
Amounts receivabie from joint ventures 18 05 - - as5
Debt dug within one year 23 {0 4) (4 6) 04) 54)
Debt due after one year 23 {4 304 3) - (46 0) (4,350 3)
Total (4,205 7} (33 6) {46 4) (4,285 7)
At 30 June 2015

[ Note] &m

Cash al bank and cash equvalents 21 97 4 11 - 985
Amounts receivable from jont ventures 18 03 0z - g5
Debt due within one year 23 {03} 03 (04 (0 4)
Debt due after one year 23 (4,159 1) (120 0) (25 2) {4 304 2}
Total (8,061 7} (118 4) (25 6) {4,205 7}
Frovee At1'Suty 2013 ) SR A 30 Jine 2014

Cash at bank and cash equivalents 21 1490 {51 6} - 97 4
Amounts recevable from joint ventures 18 ot 02 - 63
Debt due wathin one year 23 (0 5) 05 {03) 0y
Debt due after one year 23 {4,165 D) {19) 78 {4,159 1)
Total (4,016 4} {52 8) 75 (4,061 7}

Major non-cash changes include a movement in unamortised debt issue costs and revaluations in US dollar denominated
borrowings (see note 23)
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30 Financial commitments and contingent lhiabilities

Financing commitments

Under the terms of the Group's external debt faciities, the Group has provided secunty over substantially afl of its assets

by way of a Whole Business Secuntisation structure

Capital commitments

Commitments for the acquisition of plant and equipment contracted for at the reporting date but not recognised as a

hability are payable as follows

i

e B M

Within one year 219 35 37 198
Within two to five years 05 02 107 -
Total capital commitments 224 337 44 4 198

QOperating leases

Future mimmum operating lease payments for the Group n relation to non-cancellable operating leases for land,

buildings and other infrastructure locations fall due as follows

 comy owgp omgp  omgg

Within one year 294 251 229 225
Within two to five years 2] 783 731 760
After five years 148 2 1356 139 5 1430
Total future minimum operating lease payments 269 5 2390 2355 2415
Other annual lease commitments fail due
s % 130 June] {30 June
2015 2034)
G0 (om)] @D
Wiliwn one year 16 i8 13 15
Wilhun two to five years 14 195 12 09
Total future minimum operating lease payments 310 33 25 24

31 Profit on disposal of subsidiary

On 11 December 2015 the Group sold its 100% mterest in the ordinary share capital of NWP Strest Limited, a subsidrary

undertaking There were no disposals of subsidianes made in 2015 or 2014

1

oo

Profit on cisposal 144
Total Consideration 165
Satisfied by cash and cash equivalents 165

16 4

Net cash mnflow ansing on disposal

The profit on disposal 1s included within the income statement in other gains and losses as an excephonal item {see

notes 7 and 11 respectively)
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32 Retirement benefits

Defined contribution scheme

Argiva Limited has operated a Defined Contnbution Scheme dunng the year, for those employees who are not members
of the Group’s Defined Benefit Pian Contnbutions payable in respect of this Scheme for the year were £7 Om (2015
£6 4m, 2014 £6 Om) The assets of the Scheme are held outside of the Group

An amount of £0 6m (20158 £0 8m, 2014 £1 0mj s ncluded in accruals beng the outstanding contnbutions to the
Defined Contnbution Scheme

Defined benefit pian

In the year to 30 June 20186, the Group operated one Defined Benefit Plan, sponsored by Arqiva Limited The Defined
Benefit Plan 15 admimistered by 3 separate entty that is legally separated from the Group, and therefore the Plan assets
are held separately from those of Argiva Limited  The trustees of the Plan are required by law to act in the interests of
the Plan and of all relevant stakeholders in the Plan The trustees are responsible for the investment policy with regard to
the Plan assets

The Plan typically exposes the Group to nsks such as investment nsk, interest rate nsk, and longewvity nsk

Investment risk The present value of the defined benefit Plan habmty for IAS19 purposes 15 calculated using

. a discount rate determined by reference to igh quality corporate bond yields, which 1s

N different to how the Plan assets are invested Currently the Plan has a relatively balanced

investment in equity securites, debt nstruments and real estate Due to the long-tem

nature of the Plan habiities, the trustees of the Plan consider it appropnate that a

reasonable partion of the Plan assets should be invested in equity secuntes to leverage the
expected retumn generated by the Plan assets

Interest risk A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the valuaton of the Plan's 1AS19 liabihty
but this will be parhially offset by an mcrease in the value of the Plan's corporate bond

tnvestments

Longewty risk The present value of the defined benefit Plan hability 1s calculated by reference to a best
estimate of the mortality of Plan participanis both dunng and after therr retrement An
increase n the life expectancy of the Plan participants will increase the Plan's assessed

liabihity

The present value of the defined benefit Plan habilty 15 calculated by reference to the future
salanes of Plan participants As such, an increase in the salary of the Plan participants will
increase the Plan's hiabrlity

Salary nsk

The Plan closed to the future accrual of benefits on 31 January 2016 The weighted average duration of the expected
benefit payments from the Plan s around 21 years

The most recent tnenmal actuanal funding valuation of the Plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit
liability was camed out at 30 June 2014 by an independent firm of consultng actuanes The present value of the IAS19
defined benefit liabity, and the related current service cost and past service cost, have been measured using the
projected unit credit method based on roll-farward updates to the thenmal valuation figures

The pnncipal assumphons used for the purposes of the actuanal valuahons were as follows

I
Key assumptians
Discaount rate 310% 4 Q0% 4 40% 4 40%
Pnce infiation (RPY) 2 80% 120% 330% 330%
Life expectancy of a male / female
age 60 (current pensioner) 27 tyrs/ 29 3yrs 27 Oyrs 1 29 2yrs 28 8yrs / 29 Jyrs 26 Tyrs 1 29 3yrs
Life expectancy of a male / female
age 60 {future penstoner) 29 Oyrsf 31 3yrs 28 Gyrs 1 31 2yTs 28 dyrs [ 31 2yrs 28 3yrs /30 9yrs
Other linked assumptions
Price inflation (CP1) 1 80% 220% 230% 2 40%
Pension increases (RPIwith a
mirimum of 3% and maximum of 3 50% 3 70% 3I70% 370%
5%)
Pension increases (RF1with a s o
maximum of 10%) 2 80% 3 20% 320% 340%
Satary growth n'a 2 70% 2 80% 3 40%
Argiva Group Limited Annus] report and consalidated financial statements
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Armounts recogmised in the conschdated incorme statement in respect of the defined benefit pian were as follows

ear ended Year ended

Service cost
- Current senice cost 29 48 47
- Past service cost and loss from settlements 04 04 -
Gaing from curtailments 05) - .
Components of defined benefit costs recogmsed in profit or foss {0 5) (03 02

23 4.9 45

The net interest ttem has been included within finance income (see nate 9) All other tems in the table above have been
included in administrative expenses The re-measurement of the net defined benefit hability 1s ncluded in the statement
of comprehensive income

Amounts recognised i the statement of comprehensive income 1n respect of the defined benefit plan were as follows

30" 30 June 2015

Return on Plan assets excluding Interest income (13 4) {11 4) 53
Experience (gamns) / losses angming on the Plan's liabilities {29 28) -
Actuanal losses / (gains) ansing from changes in financial assumphions 231 124 92
Actuanal losses ansing from changes in demographic assumplions - 05 -

68 (13 39

The amount included In the statement of financial positon ansing from the Group's obligations in respect of its defined
benefit plan were as follows

30°June 2016

Present value of defined benefil Flan habiliies 2160 189 9 1697 150 1
Fair value of Plan assels (223 4) {196 5) {174 4) {147 1)
{Surplus) { Deficit at 30 June {T4) (6 6} 47 30

The Group have considered the impact of IFRIC14 and n line with the Pian’s Ruies, the Group i1s able to recognise the
Plan’s surplus 1n its entirety
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The reconcihatian of the statement of financial position over the year 15 as follows

{Surplus) / Deficit at 1 Juty (66) @7} 30
Amount recognised In expense 23 49 45
Amount recogrised in Cther Comprehensive Income 68 (13) 39
Company contnbutions 9% {55 {16 1}
Surplus at 30 June (7 4) (6 6) 47

The present value of the plan habilities has moved over the year as foliows

1 July 1899 1697 1501
Current sernvice costs 289 48 47
Past service cost 04 04 -
Gamns from curtaiiments (G 5) - -
Contnbutions by employees 10 14 13
Interest cast 75 T4 72
Benefits pard 54) {39) {2 8)
Expenence gains ansing on the Plan's habikies (2 9) (2 8) -
Actuanal losses ansing from changes in financial assumptions 231 124 92
Actuanal losses ansing from changes in demographic assumptions - 05 -
30 Juns 216 0 189 % 1697

The far value of the plan assets has moved over the year as follows

o Ga
1 July {196 5) {174 4) (147 1)
Interest ncome B0 7n (7 4)
Retum on Plan assets excluding interest income (13 4) (114) (53)
Contnbutions by emplayer 99 55 {16 1)
Contnbutions by empioyees (10) {14) {(13)
Benefits paid 54 ag 28
30 June {223 4) {196 5) (174 4)
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The major categones and farr values of Plan assets at the end of the reporting period for each category are as foflows

30'Jone 2016

P (€'
Equity instruments 712 66 3 585
Diversified growth funds 187 196 188
Corporate bohds 595 493 46 8
Govemment bonds rals 608 501
Cash and equivalents 23 05 02
Totaf 223 4 1965 174 4

The majonty of the Plan's equity and debt instruments have quoted pnces tn active markets

The Plan includes holdings of giits and corporate bonds, which are intended to partally hedge the financial nsk from
habiity valuation movements associated with changes n gilt and corporate bond yields  1AS18 hability movements from
changes i the discount rate will also be parhially hedged by the Plan’s corporate bond holding

No amounts within the fair value of the Plan assets are in respect of the Group’s own financial nstruments or any property
occupied by, or assets used by, the Group

Faollowing completon of the latest funding valuation as at 30 June 2014, Arqiva Limited has agreed lto pay deficit
contnbutions of £2 5m per annum to 31 July 2018, and then payments of £3 3m per annum to July 2020 As such, the
Group anticipates contributions to the defined benefit plan for the year ending 30 June 2017 will be £2 Sm

Sensitbvity Analysis

The assumptions considered to be the most significant are the discount rate adopted, infiabion represented by RPI, and
the longewity assumptions

The sensitivi
, Funding Position

of the 2016 year end results to changes In the three key assumptions is shown below o
or:. Bl ‘RPI'movement of 0.1%) Longevity assumplwn
movemeant of +1year |

Increase i Flan liabilities £4 Tm £4 8m £5 6m

The sensitvty of the 2015 year end results 1o changes in the three key assumplions 1s shown below
C! " | RPI movement of 0.1%3

ding Po D

{Decrease) / Increase n Plan hahilties (£3 9m) (£4 0m) £4 4m

assumplions 15 shown below
RP} movement of 0.1% |

Yongevily assumption
ovement of +1 year SN

(Decrease) f increase in Plan habilihes | {£3 7m) (E3 3m) £03Im

The sensitivity of the 2014 | year end res resulls to changes mn the three ke
Funding Pasition

Discount rate movement 6f}

This sensitwity analysis may not be representative of the actual change In the defined benefit obligaton as i is unhkely
that the change in assumptons would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated

The Group anticipates contnbutions to the defined benefit Plan for the year ending 30 June 2017 wili be £nil due to the
closure of the scheme to future accruat
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33 Related party transactions

Balances and transactions between the company and its subsidianes, which are related partes, have been eliminated on
consolidation and are not disctosed in this note Transachons with the Group’s pension scheme are disclosed in note 32
Transactions between the group and its associates are disclosed below

Trading transactions
During the year ended 30 June 2016 the Group entered into the following transactions with related partes who are not
members of the Group

Associates - - - 71 69 43
Jomt ventures 08 - - 11 08 34
Entires under comman control 302 164 134 113 Q5 04

310 164 134 195 83 81

All transactions are on third-party terms and all outstanding balances, with the exception of the amount cutstanding
referenced below, are interest free, un-secured and are not subject to any financial guarantee by either party

In additian, the Group received £nil (2015 £0 1m, 2014 £0 tm) of dnadends from assocates and Entl (2015 £0 2m,
£9 3m} from joint ventures i which if holds an investment

As at 30 June 2016, the amount recevable from associates was £ml (2015 Enil, 2014 £1 8m) and joint ventures was
£0 5m (2015 £0 5m, 2014 £0 3m) Interest receved dunng the year from joint ventures was £0 1m (2015 £0 1m, 2014
£0 Om) charged at 12% of the outstanding balance

Ag at 30 June 2018, the amount recervable from entites under common control was £ml (2015 £0 4m, 2014 £0 4m)
Remuneration of key management personnel

The remuneration of the key management personnel of the Group 15 set out below n aggregate for each of the
categones specified in |AS 24 Refated Farty Disclosures

Satanes and other short-term employee benefits 58 55 59

Termination benefits 22 0&

Post-employment benefits a2 03 a3
82 64 62

One member of key management personnel (2015 one, 2014 one) 15 a member of the Group's defined benefit pension
scheme (see note 32)

The members of key management personnel had no matenal transactians with the Graup duning the year, other than n
connection with thewr service agreements

Further information 1 respect of the remuneration of the Company’s statutory directors has been provided on page 123
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Investor transactions
There are two investor companies, FICAL and MEIF I, which are related parties with the Group in accordance with 1AS
24, by vintue of significant shareholding in the Group Refer to the Directors report for further details of these investor

companias

TP e
Prism =

& ) &)
Shareholder loan notes 47 348 93 6652
Shareholder loan note interest for the year 14 709 24 1367
Accrued shareholder loan note interest 73 2425 106 467 4

* A related party by virtue of common influence
+ An investor company and a related party by wirtue of sigmificant shareholding {as at 30 June 2016)

T

T30 June 2014

(F'm] [Em] G
Shareholder toan notes 47 344 8 a3 6652
Shareholder loan note interest for the year 12 623 21 1202
Accrued shareholder loan note interest 59 1716 82 3306

* Arelated party by wirtue of common influence
+ Aninvestor campany and a related party by virtue of sigruficant shareholding (as at 30 June 2015}

- Lo L e

a [ e m a
Shareholder loan notes 47 344 8 a3 665 2
Shareholder loan note interest for the year 11 54 8 19 1057
Accrued shareholder loan note interest 47 1083 81 2104
* Acrelated party by virtue of comman influence
+ An investor company and a related party by wirtue of significant shareholding (as at 30 June 2014)
T WA SR
Prigm 4
£ (£'m] ('m
Shareholder loan notes 47 348 93 665 2
Shareholder loan note interest for the year 10 391 13 752
Accrued shareholder loan note interest 36 546 42 104 8

* Arelated party by wirtue of common influence
+ Aninvestor comparny and a related party by virtue of significant shareholdmng (as at 1 July 2013}

34 Events after the report date

On 7th September 2016 the Group entered into an agreement for the sale of Arqiva WiFi Limited, a subsidiary
undertaking of the Group that forms part of the Telecoms & M2M reporting segment (see note 5 to the financial
statements) The sale Is subject to vanous pre-completion conditions and 15 expected to be completed before the end of
the calendar year This disposal 15 1n accordance with management's strategy to divest non-core business areas The
results of the disposal group are not matena! to the Group's financial statements Further information i1s contained on
page 49
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35 First time adoption of IFRSs

The following tables present the recognion and measurement differences relating the presentation of financial
performance and position under IFRS ‘As report under UK GAAP' refers to the histonc UK GAAP framework prevarling
at each respective reporting date The financial reporting framework which now applies fo entiies prepanng financiai
statements in accordance with legisiation, regulation or accounting standards applicable in the UK and the Repubiic of
Ireland 18 FRS 100, Application of Financial Reporting Requirements, which was 1ssued 1n November 2012 FRS 100
includes EU-endorsed IFRS, FRS 101 (IFRS with a reduced disclosure framework) and FRS 102 (a framewark based
on IFRS} as permissible reporting frameworks These standards are mandatory for statutory financial statements for
accountng penods beginming an or alter 1 January 2015 Pursuant to the introduchon of these new standards, the Group
has adapted IFRS for these consolidated financial statements

Group reconcihiation of equity as at 1 July 2013 (‘transition date’

Notes to the il As reported Recognition I Re~tassification P IFRS #t 1 July]

s D an oo
(UKGAAR S measuremant [purposes
G ET=D & Ga
L <mif
Non-current assets
Goodwill A 20087 - - 20087
Other mtangible assets B 93 - 241 334
Property, plant and equipment 8 1,658 3 - {24 1} 1,634 2
Deferred tax F - 1034 359 1383
Interest 1n associates and joint ventures A 100 - - 100
3,686 13 1034 359 38256
Current assets
Trade and ofher recevables F 2546 - (352} 219 4
Cash and cash equivalents 1490 - - 1490
4036 - (35 2) 368 4
Total assets 408989 1034 07 4,194 0
Current liabiiities
Borrowings D - - (298 Q) (298 0)
Trade and other payables O {682 2} - 2980 (384 2)
Provisions o - ~ {72) {72
(682 2} - 72 (689 4}
Neot current liabilities (278 6) - (42 4) 321 0)
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings o - - {4,165 D) {4 165 0)
Denvative finantial instruments D - (1,218 8) - (1,218 8)
gi:l:; g?yables {including acervals and deferred D (4.201 5) 809) 41650 (117 4)
Provisions C (54 1) - 72 (46 9)
Retreament benefits {2 3) - 07) (30)
{4,257 9} {1,285 7) 65 (5561 1)
Total (fabilities (4,940 1) (1,209 7 o7} (6,240 5)
Net Habhilities {850 2) {1,196 3} - {2,046 5}
Share capital 6539 - - 6539
Share premwm 3156 - - 3156
Retained eamings AF (1,819 ¢) (1196 3) - (3.0157)
Translation reserve (0 8) - - 08)
Equity attnbutable to owners of the Company 850 7) {1,195 3} - (2,047 G}
MNon-controfing interest 05 - - 05
Total aquity {850.2) {1,195 3} - {2,046 5)
Arglva Group Limited Annup) report and consolidatod financial statements
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Group reconciation of equity as at 30 June 2014

recancillation

m presentational

Pomy & | purposes’ &
o
Non-current assets
Goodwill A 1,856 6 1555 (0 5) 20116
QOther intangible assets B g2 - 37 439
Property, plant and equipment B 1,7103 - (337 1,676 6
Deferred tax F - - 557 557
Retirement benefils 38 - 0g 47
Interest in associates and joint ventures A 1086 - 05 111
35915 1555 566 38036
Current assets
Trade and other recewvables F 2696 - {56 6) 2130
Cash and cash equivalents 974 - - 97 4
3670 - (56 6} 3104
Total assets 39585 1555 . 411490
Current habilites
Borrowings 5} - - {513 3} (5133
Trade and other payables D 970 7) 680 5133 (388 4)
Provisions c - - {7 4) (74
(870 7) 680 74 (908 1)
Net current llabilities {603 7) 690 64 0) (598 7)
Non-currant liabilities
Bomrowings D - - (4,159 1) (4,159 1)
Denvative financial instruments D - (1.267 0) - {1,267 0)
Other payables {(including accruals and deferred D (4,297 6) 312 41591 (107 3)
income)
Prowvisions c 47 9) - 74 (40 5)
{4,345 5) {1,235 8) 74 {5,573 9)
Total liabiltles {5,316 2) {1,166 8) - {6,483 0)
L]
Net llabilites (1,357 1) (1,041 3) - (2,369 0}
Share capital 6539 - - 6539
Share prenmum 3156 - - 3158
Retained eamings A-F {2 327 B) {1.011 3 - {3,338 9)
Translation reserve 03) - - 03
Equity atinbutable to owners of the Company (13584) {1011 3) - (2,369 7)
Nan-contralling nterest a7 - - 07
Total equity {1,357 7) (1,011 3) - (2,369 0}
Arqiva Group Linuted Annual report and consolldated financial! statements
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Group reconciation of equity as at 30 June 2015

Notes to (he [
reconciliation

Non-current assets
Googwll A 16776 3108 - 1,988 4
QOther intangible assets B 100 (33) 305 arz
Property, plant and eguypment B 1,767 1 - {30 5) 1,7366
Oeferred tax F - - - -
Retirement benefits G - 66 - 66
{nterest in assoviates and joint ventures A 46 - - 48
34593 3141 - 3,734
Currgnt assots
Trade and other receivables F 237 4 - . 2374
Cash and cash equivalents 885 - - g8 S
3359 - - 3359
Total assets 3,795 2 41 - 41093
Current liabllities
Borrowings D - - (758 3) (758 3)
Trade and other payables 8] (11436 167 7563 (368 6)
Provisions Cc - - (11 3) (11 3)
{1,143 6) 187 1t 3} {1,138 2}
Net current liabilities (807 T} 167 (11 3) (802 3)
Non-current liabliibes
Borrowings D - - (4,304 3) {4,304 3)
Oenvative finaneial instruments D - {1.210 3} - (1,210 3)
Other payables (including accruals and deferred D (4.526 7) 102 6 4,304 3 (119 8)
mncome)
Provisions C (55 4} - 113 (44 1}
(4,582 1) (1,107 7) 113 (5,678 5)
Total habilities (5,725 7T) (1,091 0) - (6,816 7
Net hahilities {1,930 5) {776 9) - (2,707 4)
Share capital 6539 - - 653 9
Share premium 3158 - - 3156
Retaned eamings A-G {2 899 3) (777 0) - {3676 3)
Transiation reserve (10} - - (10
Equity attnbulable to owners of the Company {1,930 8) {777 0) - {2,707 8)
Non-controling imterest 03 gt - 04
Total equity (1,930 5) {776 9) . (2,707 4)
Arglva Group Umited Annual report and consolidated financial stataments
Campany registration no 05254001 Year ended 30 June 2016
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Group reconciliation of the income statement for the year ended 30 June 2014
7 \FRSforthe year ended 30 June
2014

" UKGAAP

Recognition
and

Notes to the measuramant

reconciiiation Pre differences Pre . .
axceplional Exceptional Yotal ‘ © exceplional  Exceptional Total

' items ems items items
£m £'m £'m £'m £fm - £'m £'m

Continuing operations

Group revenue 82586 - 8258 - 8256 - 8256
Cost of sales { (301 4) - (301 4) 241 (277 3) - (2773
Gross profit 5242 - 5242 241 5483 - 5483
Depreciation 8 (122 6) - {1226) B4 (114 2) - (1142
Amortisation AR (157 7) - (157 1) 147 2 (10 5) - {105)
Impairment - - - - - N -
Other operating expenses Al (117 8) (82) (126 0) (24 2 (141 9) (83} (1502}
Total operating sxpanses (398 1} {82 (406 3) 1314 {266 6) 83y (274 9)
Share of result of pont

venlure and assocrates 12 ) 12 B 12 ) 12
Operating profit 1273 B2 1191 1555 2829 (8 3) 2746
Finance income 27 - 27 - 27 - 27
Finance costs J K (531 1) (1123) (643 9) 162 2 (481 2) - (4812)
Qther gains and losses L - - - (31 1) (24 1) 7o 311
Loss bafore tax (401 1) (120 5) (5216} 2866 (218 7} (193} (2350}
Tax F 182 (102 7) (84 5)
Loss for the year (503.4) 1839 (319 5)
Non-controliing interests H {03 03

Loss for the financial year (5037 184 2

Argiva Group Limited Annual report and conselidated financlal statements.
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Group reconciliation of other comprehensive income for year ended 30 June 2014

IFRS for the)
year ended 30

Recognition and

| measurement |
UK GAAF,
_ W

@ )
Natas to the
&o &0
Loss for the financial year (503 7) 184 2 (319 §)

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or

loss

Actuanal (losses) / gains on defined benefit pension schemes J (53) 14 39)

Movement on deferred tax relating to pension schemes J 11 07 04
42 07 {35)

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or

loss

Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 02 03 0s
{4 0} 10 {30)

Total comprehensive loss _{507 7} 185 2 (322 5)

3
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Group reconciliation of the iIncome statement for the year ended 30 June 2015

(FRS at 30 June 2015]

[ukcarc I

o

Notes b measursment
e exceptional votall it sxceplional Jl Exceplional Fotal)
items o items items
Gh o Op Bo ) Ga Go

Continuing operations
Group revenue 857 1 - 857 1 - 857 1 - 8571
Cast of sales ! (328 3) - (3283) 217 (306 5) - {3056)
Gross profit 5288 - 5288 217 550 5 - 5505
Depreciation 8 (1187 - 1N 63 {113 4) - (1134
Amortisation AB (158 9 - (158 9) 1509 (80) - (80)
Impawment A - @337 (337) 52 . (389) (389)
Other operating expenses i (110 6) (M7 (1223) (217} (1323 (117 (144 0)
Total operating expanses {389 2) (454) (4346) 1302 {2537 (506) (3043}
Share of result of jomnt venture
and assoCiales 24 . 24 ) 24 ) 24
Operating profit 1420 (45 4) %66 1520 2092 {50 8) 248 6
Finance Income 27 10 37 (140) 27 - 27
Finance costs JK (508 3) (100 5) (608 8) 109 5 499 3) - (4993)
Other gains and losses L - - - {34 6) (356) 10 (34 6)
Loss before tax {363 6) (144 9) (508 5) 2259 {233 0) (498) (2826)
Tax (57 6) 04 (57 2)
Loss for the year (566 1) 2263 {339 8)
Non-caniroling mterests H 1) 01
Loss for the financiai year (566 2} 226 4
Argiva Group Limited Annual report and consolidated financlal statements
Company registraton no (5254001 Yea ended 30 Jung 2016
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Group reconciliation of other comprehensive income for year ended 30 June 2015

Notes te the
&

LUK GAAPS

e —— —

Loss for the financial year {566 2) 226 4 {339 8)
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or
loss
Actuanal {losses) / gains on defined benefit pension schemes G,J 59 82 13
Movement an deferred tax refating to pension schemes G, 4 14 032 12
{5 5} 84 25
ftemns that may be reciassified subsequently to profit or
loss
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations (07) . en
{6 2) 80 18
Totat comprehensive loss (572 4) 2344 (338 0)
A
Argiva Group Limited Annudd rdpoct and lidated financial (+]
Year ended 30 Jung 2018

Company reqisiraton no 05254001

113



Notes to the reconciliation of equity as at 4 July 2013, 30 June 2014 and 30 June 2015, and the income statement
and statement of other comprehensive income for the years ended 30 June 2014 and 30 June 2015

A Goodwill and intangibles
On transiion to IFRS, and in accordance with IFRS 1, goodwill has continued to be recognised at its carrying
value

Under UK GAAP, these goodwill balances were amartised in ine with the Group's previous accounting policy
The amortisation for the years ended 30 June 2015 and 30 June 2014 has therefore been reversed to present
the IFRS posiion as at 30 June 2015 and 30 June 2014 respectively As a result, an addibonal £5 2m of
imparmment was recogrised in the year ended 30 June 2015

Under IFRS, acquisition related fees (£0 1m) that arose in the year ended 30 June 2014 and were capitalised
as part of the carrying value of goodwill under UK GAAP, were re-Classified as adrministrabve expenses within
the income statement

B Software and development costs
Under UK GAAP software and certain asscciated development costs were reported as tangible assets {carrying
value at 30 June 2015 £30 5m, 30 June 2014 £33 7m, 1 July 2013 £24 1m) Under 1AS 38, these capitahised
costs are reclassified and presented as an intangible asset and amortised 1n ine with the Group’s accounting
policy which 1s the same as the previous depreciation charges

C ClassHfication of provisions
On adoption of {AS 37 Frovisions and contingent lrabiities, the element that 1s anticipated to fall due within one
financial year has been separately presented as a current kability (carrying value at 30 June 2015 £11 3m, 30
June 2014 £7 4m, 1 July 2013 £7 2m) with the remaining balance presented as a non-current hiability

D Recogmtion of denvative financial instruments and de-recogmtion of associated financial instruments
The farr value of the Group's denvative financial instruments (fair value habity at 30 June 2015 £1,210 3m, 30
June 2014 £1,267 Om, 1 July 2013 £1,218 8m} 1s recognised under (FRS, and was not recognised under UK
GAAP Therr recogriion at fair value 15 determined from the present value of the expected future cash flows
when compared to prevailing market rates, discounted at a nsk-adjusted discount rate

The swap premium (carrying vaive at 30 June 2015 £16 6m within current habiities and £172 Om within non-
current habiities, 30 June 2014 £9 1m within current habhbes and £84 5m within non-current habilities, m! at 1
July 2013) previously recognised under UK GAAP requires de-recogrution as its fair value is included withun the
fair value of the denvative instrument itself In addition, pnncipal accretion on inflation nked swaps, which had
prewiously been recognised as a separate habibty under UK GAAP (carrying value at 30 June 2015 nil, 30 June
2014 £599m, 1 July 2013 £202m), has been derecogmsed as a separate financial mstrument and
incorporated into the fair value and fair value movements of the inflation inked swaps to which it relates

Certain histonc denvative ‘exit’ casts {carrying value at 30 June 2015 £75 9m withun non-current assets, 30
June 2014 £855m, 1 July 2013 £95 0m) winch had been recognised on balance sheet under UK GAAP were
de-recogmsed as they reflect the crystailisation of losses on previously held denvatives (not recognised under
UK GAAP} when these instruments were disposed of Under IFRS, the losses on de-recogmition of the
denvative insfruments would have been recorded i profit and loss and therefore \mpact brought forward
retaingd earnings under IFRS

Under UK GAAP, the Group applied an adustment (following the pnncipies of SSAP 20 Foreign Currency
Translation) to reduce foreign currency volatility on the balance sheet and profit and loss account in relation to
s US dollar denominated borrowings The cumulative effective of this adjusiment has been reversed on
transition to {FRS {carrying vaiue at 30 June 2015 £7 8m, 30 June 2014 £25 1m, 1 July 2013 £0 6m}

E Debtissue cosis
Under UK GAAP, certain costs capitalised and amortised in association with the 1ssue of debt and s matunty
profile (respectively), are treated as profit and loss items under IFRS where the instrument itself 1s measured on
a far value through profit and loss basts These costs {carrying value at 30 June 2015 £1 3m, 30 June 2014
£2 8m, 1 July 2013 £6 7m} have been de-recognised m full

F Deferred tax
IFRS defines deferred tax in relation to temporary differences between camying values and therr related tax
bases, rather than tming differences in the profit or loss, therefore adjustments are required to recognise a
number of tems for which no deferred tax was recognised under UK GAAP This pnncipally relates to the farr
value moment an denvative financial instruments (which was not required to be recorded on the Group's UK
GAAP balance sheet) The Group’s accounting policy under IFRS, and previously under UK GAAP, 15 to
recogmse these differences as a deferred tax asset to the extent to which it 15 considered recoverable Based
on the forecasts available to management as at 1 July 2013 an additonal £103 4m of deferred tax was

recoghised
Argiva Group Limited Annual report and & fidates f inf
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G Retirement benefits — Statement of Financial Position
In the UK GAAP reported financial posthon at 30 June 2015, the Group restncted its recogniion of its retirement
benefit surplus on application of the rules of FRS 17 Relirement Benefits On adophon of IFRS and application
of IAS 19 Employee benefits, the Group has been able to support its recogmition of its retirement benefits
surplus in full and therefore presents an asset of £6 6m as at 30 June 2015

H. Non-controlling interest
A presentational adjustment has been made to analyse the comprehensive loss for the year between that
attnbutable to the owners of the Company and that attnbutable to non-controlling interests, 1 e the loss for the
year 1s presented on a gross-basis

I Income statement classification
A presentatonal adjustment has been made to akgn the classification of certain operating costs and costs
refating to certain cost of sales activibies

J Retirement benefits — Income Staternent
Under IFRS the net finance cost associated with the Group's defined benefit scheme 15 calculated based upon
the defict/surplus positton i place at the start of the accounting pencd and the discount rate n force Under UK
GAAP, this was calculated based upon the expected return on assets

K. Finance costs
Finance costs have been adjusted to reflect

o The unpact of the de-recognition of the swap premium, defered denvative close out costs, certain debt
1Issue costs and adjustments for foreign currency movements (2015 aggregate impact £21 7m charge
on conversion, 2014 £35 7m credit on conversion),

o The presentation of unreaised foreign currency movements on US$ denominated debt as ‘other gains
and losses' (2015 £17 5m charge, 2014 £24 2m gamn}

o Adustments with respect to the 1AS 19 calculation of the retum on scheme assets (2015 £16m, 2014
£3 5m),

o The grossing up of the farr value movement on denvatives to include the movement of pnncipal
accretion on inflabion inked swaps charged to profit and loss {2015 £15 0m, 2014 £39 7m) (see note
L}, and

o The de-recognition of swap break costs (2015 £100 5m, 2014 £112 3m), classified as exceptional
financing costs under UK GAAP where these are represented in the opening balances

L. Other gains and losses
Other gamns and losses present

o Farr value movemants on dervatives including pancipat accretian (See notes D and K,

o Unreahsed foreign currency movements on US$ denominated debt as described in note K.

o Exceptional break costs on the exit of swap arrangements which were cash seftled (in the year ended
30 June 2014),

o Exceplional proceeds on the disposal of the swap ophons (in the year ended 30 June 2015)
reclassified from exceptional finance income

M Restatement of cash flow statement from UK GAAP to IFRS
The transition from UK GAAP to IFRS has no effect upon the cash fiows generated by the Group The IFRS
cash flow statement 1s presented in a different format from that required under UK GAAP with cash Rows spht
into three categories of actwites — operating actvibies, investng actwvities and financing activites The
reconciling rtems between the UK GAAP presentation and the IFRS presentation have no net impact on the
cash flows generated

Arqiva Group Limuted Annual report and consolidated finzncial statements
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Directors’ report and statement of directors’ responsibilities for
Argiva Group Limited (‘the Company’)

The Directors of Arqiva Group Limited, registered company number 05254001, {'the Company’) submuit the following annual
report and francial statements in respect of the year ended 30 June 2018

On 22™ June 2016, a Nohce of Change of Name by Resoluton was submitted to Companies House to change the name of
the Company from Argiva Broadcast Holdings Limited to Arqiva Group Limited

Business review and principal activities

The Company acts as an uitimate holding company of the Arqiva Group Limited (AGL") graup {'the Group’) of companies
The Company has a loss for the year of £3 9m (2015 £0 8m, 2014 nil) and net assets of £1,764 1m (2015 £1,768 dm,
2014 £1,768 8m, 2013 £1,768 8m)

Pnncipal nsks and uncertainties and key performance indicators (‘KPis’)

From the perspective of the Company, the pnncipal nsks and uncertainhes arsing from its actvities are integrated with the
prncipal nsks and uncertanties of the Group and are not managed separately Accordingly, the pnncipal nsks and
uncentainbies of the Group, which include those of the Company, are discussed on pages 44 to 46

Given the straightfarward nature of the Company's actvities, the Directors are of the opinion that analysis usihng KPIs ts not
necessary for an understanding of the development, performance or posthon of the business The KPIs of the Group are
discussed on pages 28 and 29

Dividends and transfers to reserves
The Directors do not propose to pay a dwvidend (2015 mil, 2014 ni) The loss for the year £3 9m (2015 £0 8m, 2014 ml)
was transferred to reserves

Financial nsk management
Due to the straightforward nature of the Company’s operations, it 15 exposed te imited financial nsks The Group's financial
nsk management programme 15 detailed on page 47

Future developments and going concern
It 15 the intention of the Company to continue to act as the Group's ultimate holding compariy

The Company adopts the going concem basis in prepanng its finanwal statements on the basis of the future profit, cash
flows and avalable resource of the Group which lead the Directors of the Company to be confident that the Company will
have adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future

Directors

The following held office as directors of the Company dunng the penod and up to the date of this report
Mike Parton

Mark Braithwaite

Paul Mullins

Chnisthian Seymour

Robert Wall {resigned 24 Jure 2018}
Peter Adams (allemate) (appomnted 24 June 2016)
Damian Waish

Nathan Luckey

Sally Dawis

Deepu Chintamanem (aiternate)

Michael Giles is the Company Secretary

Directors’ indemnities
The Company has prowvided an indemnity for its Directors and the Company Secretary, which 15 a qualifying third party
ndemnity provision for the purposes of the Companies Act 2006

On behalf of the Board

Reador

Mike Parton - Director
2.¢ September 2016
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Statement of directors’ responsibilities
The directors are responsible for prepanng the Directors’ Report and the financial stalements in accordance with apphcable
law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law the directors
have prepared the financial statements 1n accordance with apphcabte law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards
(Umited Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure
Framework ('FRS 101")

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true
and fair view of the state of affars of the Company and of the profit or loss of the Company for that penod  In prepanng
these financial statements, the directors are required to

+ select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,

= make judgements and accountng estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

e state whether applicable United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including FRS 101 have been followed, subject to
any matenal departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements,

« notfy its sharehotders in wnting about the use of disclosure exemptions, If any, of FRS 101 used in the preparation
of financial statements, and

« prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it Is iInappropnate to presume that the Company
will continue 10 business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the company's
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any tme the financial position of the company and the group and
enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Compames Act 2006 They are also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and the group and hence for taking reascnable steps for the preventon and
detection of fraud and other imegulanties

The directors are responsible for the mamntenance and integnty of the Company's website Legislation in the United Kingdom
governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other junsdictons

Arglva Group Limited Company financial statements
Company registration no 05254001 Year ended 30 Juna 2016
17



Independent auditors’ report to the members of Argiva Group
Limited

Report on the Company financial statements

Our opinion
In our opinion, Arqiva Group Limited's company financal statements (the “financial statements®)
+ giwe a true and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs as at 30 June 2016,

« have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, and
« have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

What we have audited
The financal statements, included within the Annual Report and Consolidated Financial statements (the “Annual Report?),
compnse

« the Company statement of financial position as at 30 June 2016,

+ the Company statement of changes in equity for the year then ended, and

« the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information

The financial reporting framework that has been applied n the preparation of the financial statements 15 United Kingdom
Accounting Standards, compnsing FRS 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework®, and applicable law (United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

In applying the financial reporing framework, the directors have made a number of subjectve judgements, for example in
respect of significant accounhng estimates In making such estimates, they have made assumptions and considered future
events

Opinion on other matter prescnbed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinton, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit

« the information given in the Strategic Repont and the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements, and

« the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements

In addition, in hight of the knowledge and understanding of the Company and its environment obtained in the course of the
audit, we are required to report if we have idenhfied any matenal misstatements i the Sirategic Report and the Directors’
Report We have nothing to report in this respect

Other matters on which we are required to report by exception

Adequacy of accounting records and information and explanations received
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you If, In our opmion
« we have not received ali the information and explanations we require for our audit, or

« adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us, or

« the financial statements are not In agreement with the accounting records and returns

We have no exceptions to report ansing from this responsibility

Directors’ remuneration
Under the Companies Act 2005 we are required to report to you if, In our opimon, certain disclosures of directors’
remuneration specified by law are not made We have no exceptions to report ansing from this responsibility

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Our responsibilities and those of the directors
As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities, the directors are respeonsible for the preparation of
the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view

Our respensibility 1s to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with appficable law and
International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) ("ISAs (UK & lreland)’) Those standards require us to comply with the
Audting Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors

Argiva Group Limited Company financial statements
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This report, Including the opintons, has been prepared for and only for the Company's members as a body n accordance
with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2008 and for nc other purpose We do not, in giving these opinions, accept
or assume responsibility for any other purpose or ta any other person to whom this report 18 shown or into whose hands #
may come save where expressly agreed by our pnor consent in writing

What an audit of finan¢ial statements involves
We conducted our audit in accordance with 1SAs (UK & Ireland) An audit thvolves obtaiming evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from
matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error This includes an assessment of
s whether the accounting polcias are appropnate to the Company's circumstances and have been consistently
apphed and adequately disclosed,

+ the reasonableness of significant accounting estmates made by the directors, and
+ the overall presentation of the financial statements

We pnmanly focus our work in these areas by assessing the directors’ judgements against availlable evidence, forming our
own judgements, and evaluating the disclosures in the financial statements

We test and examine information, using samphng and other auditing techrigues, to the extent we consider necessary to
provide a reasonable basis for us to draw conclusions We obtain audit evidence through testing the effectiveness of
controls, substantive procedures or a combination of both

In additon, we read all the financial and nan-financial information mn the Annual Report to identify matenal inconsistencies
with the audited financial statements and to identify any informaticn that 1s apparently matenally incorrect based on, or
matenally inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us 1n the course of performing the audit. If we become aware of any
apparent matenal rmisstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implicatons for our report With respect to the Strategic
Report and Directors’ Report, we consider whether those reports nclude the disclosures required by applicable legat
requiements

Other matter
We have reported separately on the group financial statements of Argrva Group Limited for the year ended 30 June 2015

Cdenn tnic

Graham Lambert (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of PncewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
Southampton

26 September 2016

Argiva Group Limited Company financial statements
Company registration no 05254001 Year ended 30 June 2016
119



Company statement of financial position

[€'m]

Non-current assets
Investments 4 1,767 0 1,767 0 1,767 0
Receivables 5 21 18 18

1,769 1 1,768 8 1,768 8
Current assets
Recenables 5 - o1 -
Cash and cash equivalents [ 01 01 01
Total current assets 01 02 01
Payables 7 (51) (10 {0 1)
Nat current liabilities {50) {0 8) -
Net assets 1,764 1 1,768 0 1,768 8
Equity
Share capilal 8 6539 6539 6539
Share premium 3156 3156 3156
Retained earmings 7946 7985 7993
Total equity 1,764 1 1,768 0 1,768 8

The accounting policies and notes on pages 122 to 129 form part of these financial statements
The result for the year for the Company was a loss of £3 9m (2015 £0 8m loss, 2014 £nil)

These financial statements on pages 116 to 129 were approved by the Board of Directors on
were signed on its behalf by

e

Mike Parton - Director

Argiva Group Limited
Company registration no 05254001

20 september 2016 and
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Company statement of changes in equity

Retained earnings

Balance at 1 July 2013 and 30 June 2014 6539 3156 7993 1,768 8
Loss for the year - - (08) (0 8)
Balance at 30 June 2015 6539 356 798 5 1,768 0
Loss for the year - - (39) (39)
Balance at 30 June 2016 €539 3156 7946 1,764
Arqiva Group Limited Company financial statemants

Company registrabon no 05254001
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Notes to the Company financial statements
1 Arqiva Group Limited accounting policies and other information

Basis of preparation
As used in these finanoial statements and associated notes, the term ‘Company’ refers to Arqiva Group Limited

The Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101,
‘Reduced Disclosure Framework' (FRS 101') The Company has also early adopted the amendments to FRS 101 which
were Issued in July 2015 The financial statements have been prepared under the histoncal cost convention and In
accordance with the Companies Act 2006 The Group's financial statements (Arqiva Group Limited and its subsidianes) are
available online at www arqiva com

This 1s the first year that the Company has presented its results under FRS101 The most recent financial statements were
prepared under previous UK GAAP and were for the year ended 30 June 2015 The date of transition to FRS 101 was 1
July 2013 There are no recogmtton and measurement differences relating to the presentation of financial performance and
position under FRS 101 therefore no reconcihation of equity at 1 July 2013 {'transition date’) and 30 June 2014 and 30 June
2015 or total comprehensive income for the years ended 30 June 2014 and 30 June 2015 1s presented

The requirements have been applied in accordance with the requirements of the Compamies Act 2006 As permitted by
Section 408(3) of the Companies Act 20086, the Company’s income statement has not been presented

The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis and under the fustoncal cost convention

The fallowing disclosure exemptions, as permitted by paragraph 8 of FRS 101, have been taken in these Company financial
statements and notes

EU-adopted IFRS Relevant disclosure exemptions
IAS 1 Presentation of The reguirements of paragraphs 10(d), 10(f), 16, 38A, 38B to D, 40A to D, 111 and 134 to
financial statements 136

IAS 7 Statement of Cash All disclosure requirements

Flows
|AS 24 Related Party The requirements of paragraph 17, the requirement to disclose related parly transactions
Disclosures entered Into between two or more members of a Group, provided that any subsidiary party

to the transaction 15 wholly owned by such a member

Accounting policies
Investments

Investments in subsidianes and associates are shown at cost less provision for impairment

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash includes cash at bank and n hand and bank deposits repayable on demand

Dwidends
Dividend distnbutions are recegnised as a habiity in the year in which the dividends are approved by the Company's

shareholders

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity

Other information

Employees

The Company had no emplayees dunng the year (2015 none, 2014 none) None of the Directors (2015 none, 2014 none)
were remunerated by the Company Their individual remuneration reflects the services they provide o the Company, its
subsicharies and a number of other entties outside of the Group [t 1s therefore not possible to make an accurate
apportionment of each Director's remuneration in respect of their service to the Company except where sums are paid to
third parties in respect of their services There were no such sums paid in the year (2015 none, 2014 none)

Audt fees
The audit fee in respect of the Company and fees payable to PncewaterhouseCoopers LLP for non-audit services were not
specific to the Company and are disclosed in the notes to the Group financial statements (see note 6)

Argiva Group Limited Company financial statements
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2 Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The application of the accounting policies n note 1 did not require any cntical judgments or any sources of estmation
uncertainty

3 Directors’ remuneration

The aggregate of the amount paid to the Directors in respect of their services as a Director of the parent company and the
amount they receive 1n respect of their services as a Director of the group are set out below

Aggregate remuneration 04 02 03
Amoaunts due under long tenm mcentive plans 10 - -
Sums paid to third parbies in respect of services - 01 .
Compensation for loss of office ) 01

Total remuneration 14 04 03

Certain of the Directors were representatives of the Company's sharehelders and their indwidual remuneration reflects the
services they provide to the Company, its subsidianes and a number of other entities outside of the Group It)s therefore
not possible to make an accurate apporionment of each Director’'s remuneration in respect of their service to the
Company and the Group except where sums are paig to third partes 1n respect of their services Accordingly, the details
set out In the table above include no remuneration N respect of these Directors other than in relation to sums paid to

third parties 1n respect of services

Highest paid director
included 1n the above s remuneration in respect of the highest paswd Director of

©

Aggregate remuneration 13 02 03
Compensation for loss of office - 01

Total remuneration 13 03 03
Argiva Group Limited Company financial statements
Campany registration no 35254001 Year ended 30 June 2016
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4 Investments

Th man 's subsidia

investments (held indirectly unless stated) are shown below
Bl Principal activities

g Percentage of

ABHL Ougital Limited

ABHL Digital Radio Limited
ABHL Multiplex Limited

Aenal UK Limited

Arqiva {Scetland) Lirniited

Arqiva Aenal Sites Limited
Arqiva Asia Limited

Arqiva Broadcast Finance Pl
Arqiva Broadcast Intermediate Limited
Argiva Broadcast Limited

Arqiva Broadeast Parent Limited

Arqiva Communications Limited

Arqva Defined Benefit Pension Plan
Trustees Limited

Argiva Digital Limited

Argiva Ftnance Lirmited

Argiva Financing No 1 Limited
Arqiva Financing No 2 Limited
Argiva Financing No 3 Ple
Arqiva Financing Plc

Argiva Group Holdings Limited
Arqwva Group Intemediate Limited
Argiva Group Parent Limited
Arqiva Holdings Limited

Argiva Inc

Arqiva internabonal Heldings Lirmited
Arqiva Limited

Argiva Limited

Arqiva Media bimited

Arqiva Mobile Broadcast Limited
Arqiva Mobile Limited

Arqiva Mobile TV Limited

Arqiva No 10 Limited

Argqiva No 11 Limited

Arqiva No 2 Limited

Argiva No 3 Limited

Arqiva No 4 Limited

Argiva Pension Trust Limited
Arqiva PP Financing Plc

Argiva Pte Limited

Arqiva Public Safety Limited
Argiva SAS

Umted Kingdom
United Kingdom
Umted Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdomn
United Kingdom
Hong Kong
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Umted Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
UsA

United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Irefand

United Kingdom
Urited Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Uniited Kingdom
Uruted Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Umited Kingdom
United Kingdom
Singapore
Urited Kingdom
France

Holding company

Helding company
Oormant company
Deormant company
Transmission services
Management of aenal siles
Satellite transmission services
Financing vehicle

Holding company
Dormant company

Holding company

Dormant company
Pension company
Dormant company
Dormant company

Holding company

Holding company

Holding company
Financing vehicle

Holdirg company

Holding company

Helding company

Holding company

Satellite transmission services
Holding company
Transmission services
Transmission services
Dormant company
Dormant company
Dormmant company
Dormant company
Dormant company
Dormant company
Transmission sernvices
Transmission services
Dormant company
Domant company
Financing vehicle

Satellte transmussion services
Dormant company

Satellte transmission services

30-Jun
30-Jun
30-Jun
30-Jun
30-Jun
30-Jun
30-Jun
30-Jun
30-Jun
30-Jun
30-Jun
30-dun
30-Jun
30-Jun
30-Jun
30-Jun
30-Jun
30-Jun
30-Jun
30-Jun
30-dun
30-Jun
30-Jun
30-Jun
30-Jun
30-Jun
30-Jun
30-Jun
30-Jun
30-Jun
30-Jun
30-Jun
30-Jun
30-Jun
30-Jun
30-Jun
30-Jun
30-Jun
30-Jun
30-Jun
30-Jun

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
99 99% (held directly)
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

Argiva Group Limited
Campany registration no @52540G1
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fcompany)

ountry of incorporation

Principal activilies

Arqiva Salelhite Limited

Arqiva Senior Finance Limited
Argiva Services Limited

Arqiva Smart Financing Limited
Argiva Smart Holdings Unuted
Argiva Smart Metenng Limited
Arqiva Smart Parent Limited
Argiva SRL

Argiva Swing Limited

Argiva Telecommunicatons Asset
Development Company Limited

Arqiva Telecams Investment Limited
Argiva Transnmission Limited

Argiva UK Broadcast Holdings Limited
Argiva Wik Limited

Argiva Wireless Limited

Capablue Limited

Cast Communmications Limited
Connect TV (Scotiand) Lirited
Connect TV Limited

Digital One Limited

Inmedia Communicatons (Holdings)
Limited

Inmedia Communications Group Limited
Inmedia Communications Limited

JF MG Lmited

Macropohtan Lirmted

Now Digital (East Midlands) Limited
Now Digital (Oxtord) Lirmited

Now Digital {Southern} Limited

Now Digital Limited

NWPF Spectrum Holdings Lirmted

NWP Sireet Limuied

Prnmrose No T Limited

Scanners {Europe) Limited

Scanners Television Quiside Broadcasts
Limited

Selective Media Limited

South West Orgital Radio Limited
Spectrum Interactive (UK) Limited
Spectrum Interactive GmbH

Spectrum Interactive Limied

United Kingdom
Urnited Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Haty

United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Urited Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Umited Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Urmted Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom

United Kingdom

United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Gemany

United Kingdom

Dormant company
Financing vehicle
Transmission services
Financing vehicle

Holding company

Smart metenng
commurications

Holding company

Salelite transmussion
services

Dormant company
Dormant company
Holding company
Dormant company
Holding company
WiF1 services
Domant company
Transmission services
Dormant company
Dormant company
Transmission services
TransmiSsion Services
Dormant company
Dormant company
Dormant company
Spectrum services
Dormant company
Transmission services
Transmussion services
Transmission services
Transmission services
Hoiding company

Operating street
payphones

Dormant company
Dormant company
Dormant company
WiF1 services
Transmuission services
Dormant company
Dormant company

Holding company

30-Jun
30-Jun
30-Jun
30-Jun
30-Jun
30-Jun
30-Jun
30-Jun
30-Jun
30-Jun
30-Jun
30-Jun
30-Jun
30-Jun
30-Jun
30-Jun
30-Jun
30-Jun
30-Jun
30-dun
30-Jun
30-Jun
30-Jun
30-Jun
30-Jun
30-Jun
30-Jun
30-Jun
30-Jun
30-dun

30-dun

30-Jun
30-Jun
30-Jun
30-Jun
30-dun
30-Jun
30-Jun
30-Jun

100%
100%
100% (held directly}
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
52 50%
100%
100%
100%

100%

100% (disposed of
11 Oecember 2015,
see note 32)

100% (hetd directly)
100%

100%

100%

66 67%

100%

100%

100%

Argive Group Limited
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With the following exceptions, the registered office of each of the subsidiary companes listed was Crawley Cour,

Winchester, Hampshire, SO021 2QA

Rcempany]

Registerad office

Arqiva inc

Arqiva Pte Limited

Argiva Asia Limited

Argiva SAS

Argiva SRL

Argiva (Scotland) Limited

c/o The Corporation Trust Company, Comorahon Trust Centre, 1209 Orange Street,

Wilmington DE19801, United States of Amenca

8 Manna Boulevard #05-02, Manna Bay Financial Centre 018981, Singapore

1401 Hutchison House 10 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong

Tour Vendome 204, Rond Point du Poni De Sevres, 92100, Boulogne France

c/o Studio Bandinn & Assoaatl, Via Calabna 32, Rome, Italy

c/o Morton Fraser, Quartermile 2, 2 Lister Square, Edinburgh, EH3 8GL, Scotland

In addition to the subsidiary undertakings the Company indirectly holds the following interests in associates and joint

ventures
° 2
! Percentage
oumy.of of Ordi
o i e Principal activities Registered office E of ordinary,
m incorporation g shares held
Joint ventures
Media House Peterborough
United Ownership and operabion of Business Park, Lynch Wood,
Sound Digital Limited Kingdom UK DAS radio multiplex icence  Peterborough United Kingdom, 31-Dec 40 0%
PE2 6EA
Arts Aliance Media Bnhish Virgin Landmark House, Hammersmith
Investment Limed 1slands Digital cnema distnbution Bndge Road, London, W6 9EJ 30-Jun 24 99%
United QOpen source IPTV 10 Lower Thames Street Third
Youview TV Limited Kingdom development Floor, London, EC3R 6YT 31-Mar 14 30%
Associate undertakings
United Bidding for UK DAB digital 96a, Curtain Road, London
Muxco Limited Kingdom radio muitiplex licences EC2A 3AA 31-Dec 250%
DTT Multiplex Operatars United 27 Mortmer Street, London
Limited Kingdom Transmission serces Engtand, W1T 3JF 30-Jun  250%
United 27 Mortimer Street, London,
Digital UK Limited Kingdom Transmission services England, W1T 3JF 30-Jun  250%
United 2nd Floor 27 Mortimer Street
DTV Services Limited Kingdom Freeview market services London England, W1T 3JF 31-May 20 0%
Uruted 30 Leicester Square, London,
MXR Holdings Limited Kingdom Transmission serices WC2H TLA 30-Jun  120%

Argiva Group Limsted
Company registration no 05254001
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The following companies within the Group will adopt the Department for Business, Innovation and Skills audit exemption for
the year ended 30 June 2016 As the ultimate parent company, AGL has guaranteed the debts and liabibties held within
these companies as required under section 479A of the Comparues Act 2006

{Company NENE ) = ) Company registration
number,

8126989

Arqiva Group Intermediate Limited

Arqiva Group Holdings Limited 8221064
Arqiva UK Broadcast Holdings Limited 5254048
Argiva Telecoms Investment Limited 3696564
Argiva Scotland Limited SC365509
Arqiva Aenal Sites Limited 1480772
ABHL Digrtal Limited 3538787
ABHL Digital Racio Limited 3573732
Digital One Limited 1537636
Now Digital Limited 3546921
Now Digital (Southermn) Limited 3654065
Connect TV Limited 07403839
Arqiva Finanging No 2 Limited 06137899
Argiva Imternational Holdings Limited 08753024
Angiva No 2 Linited 03922958
Arqiva No 3 Limited 02973983
Argiva Smart Holdings Limited Argiva 08723422
Smart Parent Limited 08723419
Capablue Limited 06962172
NWP Spectrum Holdings Limited 04412123
Selective Media Limited 06579687
Spectrum Interactive Limited 04440500
Argiva Group Limited Company financial statements
Company registration no 05254001 Year ended 3¢ June 2016
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The following dormant companies within the Group will take the exemption from prepanng and filing financial statements for
the year ended 30 June 2016 (by virtue of 5394A and s448A of Companies Act 2006 respechvely) As the ulbmate parent
company, AGL has guaranteed the vanous debts and habilities he!d within these companies as required under section 394C

of the Companies Act 2006

fcomeanrd -

Company registration
number,

o

g

.

ABHL Multiplex Limited

Arqiva Mobile TV Limited

Argiva Public Safety Limited

Aenal UK Limited

Argiva Broadcast Limited

Arqiva Communications Limited

JFMG Limited

Argiva Digital Limited

Argiva Finance Limited

Argiva Media LUirmited

Arqiva Mobile Broadcast Limited

Arqiva Mabile Limited

Arqiva No 4 Limited

Arqiva No 10 Limited

Argiva No 11 Lirnited

Arqiva Sateliite Lirmted

Now Digital (Oxford) Limited

Argiva Swing Limited

Argqiva Telecommunications Asset Development Company Limited
Arqiva Transmission Limited

Arqiva Wireless Limited

Cast Communications Limited

Connect TV (Scotland) Limited

Inmedia Commumcations (HMoldings) Limited
Inmedia Communications Group Lirmited
Inmedia Communications Limited
Macropolitan Limited

Pnmrose No 1 Limited

Scanners (Europe} Limited

Scanners Television Quiside Broadcasts Limited
Spectrum Interactive (UK) Limited

05138188
4107732
3344257
2333949

03844675

02928653
3297317

03120642

03347387

02826184

02816853

03246721

02903056

05393073

05393079

02192952
6314242

07140424

03956595

03598122

03055844

05097626

SC403631

02755211

05097612

05097623

05401565

07046887

02833712

03391685

03500162

The Company held the following investments in subsidianes

9

Cost
At 1 July 2013, 30 June 2014, 30 June 2015 and 30 June 2016

Provision for impairment
At 1 July 2013, 30 June 2014 30 June 2015 and 30 June 2016

Carrying value
At 1 July 2013, 30 June 2014, 30 June 2015 and 30 June 2016

1,767 0

1,767 0

The Directors consider the carrying value of the Company’s investments in its subsidianes on an annual basis, or more
frequently should indicators anse, and beheve that the carrying vatues of the investments are supported by the underlying

trade and net assets

Argiva Groyp Limited
Company registration no 05254001
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5 Receivables

Amounts receivable from other group entities are unsecured and interest-free

6 Cash and cash equivalents

. 30 June 2046 L 30 June 201¢

Cash at bank 01 01 01 -
Total cash and cash equivalents 01 01 01 -
7 Payables

30 June 2016 )

Amounts payabie to fellow group undertakings 12 02 - -
Accruals 39 1)) 01 -
Total payables 51 10 01 -

The Company has no payables falling due after more than one year

8 Share capital

30 Junw 2016

Authonsed, 1ssued and fully paid
653 928,000 ordinary shares of £1 each 6539 653 9 6539 6539

9 Related parties

The Company has apphed the provisions within FRS 101 to be exempt from the disclosure of transactions entered into, and
balances outstanding, with a Group entity which 1s wholly-owned by another Group entity

10 Controlling parties

The Company i1s owned by a consortium of shareholders including Canada Pension Pian Investment Board, Macquane
European Infrastructure Fund i1, other Macquane managed funds and minontes

The Company Is the parent company of the largest group to consolidate these financiat statements

Argiva Group Limited Company financsal statemants
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Glossary

The following table references some of the terms and acronyms used n this report

Term Definition or exptanation -

AGL ‘Argiva Group Limited’

AEB ‘Arqiva Employee Board'

BECTU ‘Broadcasting, Entertainment, Cinematograph and Theatre Unior’

CA 2006 ‘Companies Act 2006

CHuURP ‘Comms Hub Receivables Purchasing’

DAB ‘Digital Audio Broadcast’

DAS ‘Distnbuted Antenna Systems’

DCC ‘Data and Communications Company’ a body licensed by statute and
backed by the utlity companies

DCMS ‘Department of Culture, Media and Sport’

DTTY ‘Digitat Terrestnal Television’

EBITDA ‘Earnings Before Interest Tax Depreciation and Amortisaton’ refers to
earnings before nterest, tax, depreciaton and amorhsation and
additionally before the Group's share of results of associates and jomt
ventures, profit or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment, non-
nterest finance costs and exceptional operating expenses Underlying
EBITDA represents 2 measure of the Group's operational performance
{see page 23 for further information)

ERM ‘Enterpnse Risk Management’

Free cash flow

'Free cash flow' represents the cash generated after spending the money
required to maintain or expand its asset base This 1s calculated as net
cash flow from operatons minus the net cash flow from capital
‘expenditure and financial investment (which includes mflows or outflows
in relation to the acquisition or disposal of assets or investments)

FRS101

‘Financial Reporting Standard 101

IFRSs

‘International Financial Reporting Standards’

internet of Things

The internet of things 15 a system of interrelated computer, mechanical
and digital devices that have the ability to transmit data over a network
without requiring human intervention

loT ‘intemet of Things’

1P ‘Intemet Protocol’

IPTV 'Internet Protocol Television'’

KPI ‘Key Performance Indicator’

M2M ‘Machine-to-Machine’ data connectivity, M2M s an important element of
our Telecoms & M2M business unit

Metadata Metadata 1s used with video streaming to provide information about the
contents of the data within the stream

Mip ‘Mobile Infrastructure Project’

MNOQs ‘Mobile Netwark Operators’

OTT ‘Over-The-Top'

SNG ‘Satellite News Gathenng’

Teleport A telecommunmications port {'teleport’) 15 a ground station that acts as a
hub to connect a satellite network te a terrestnal telecommurnicahons
network

TMT ‘Telecoms, Media and Technology’ sector

Argiva Group Limited
Company registraten no 05254001
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